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M r .  Dotson. Good af ternoon,  M r .  Cooney. 

On behal f  o f  the Committee on Oversight and Government 

Reform, I thank you f o r  be ing here today. This  proceeding i s  

known as a  "depos i t ion . "  Th is  depos i t i on  i s  p a r t  o f  the 

committee's i n v e s t i g a t i o n  i n t o  a l l e g a t i o n s  o f  p o l i t i c a l  

i n te r fe rence  w i t h  government c l ima te  change work. The person 

t r a n s c r i b i n g  t h i s  proceeding i s  a  House repo r te r  and Notary 

Publ ic  - -  w e l l ,  no t  a  Notary Pub l ic  - -  author ized t o  

administer oaths.  The Notary Pub l ic  has a r r i v e d  and w i l l  now 

place you under oath.  

[Witness sworn . ]  

M r .  Dotson. My name i s  Greg Dotson. I have been 

designated as m a j o r i t y  counsel f o r  the  depos i t ion .  I am 

accompanied by J e f f  Baran, and he i s  a lso  designated as 

m a j o r i t y  counsel f o r  the depos i t ion .  There are severa l  o ther  

m a j o r i t y  s t a f f e r s  here who w i l l  now i d e n t i f y  themselves. 

M r .  Gordon. Michael Gordon. 

Ms. T e i t z .  Alexandra T e i t z .  

M r .  Jones. E r i c  Jones. 

M r .  Dotson. Would m i n o r i t y  counsel please i d e n t i f y  

themselves f o r  the record? 

Ms. Safavian. Jenn i fe r  Safavian. 

Ms. Bennett.  Brooke Bennett.  

Ms. Husar. K r i s t i n a  Husar. 

M r .  Dotson. Before beginning w i t h  the quest ion ing,  I 



would l i k e  t o  go over some standard i n s t r u c t i o n s  and 

explanat ions regard ing the  depos i t ion .  

M r .  Cooney, because you have been p laced under oath,  

your test imony here today has the same f o r c e  and e f f e c t  as i f  

you were t e s t i f y i n g  before the committee. I f  you knowingly 

prov ide f a l s e  test imony, you cou ld  be sub jec t  t o  c r i m i n a l  

prosecut ion f o r  p e r j u r y  - -  making f a l s e  statements - -  o r  

o ther  r e l a t e d  of fenses.  Do you understand t h i s ?  

The Witness. I do. 

M r .  Dotson. I s  t he re  any reason you are unable t o  

prov ide t r u t h f u l  answers t o  today 's  depos i t ion?  

The Witness. No. 

M r .  Dotson. Under the committee's r u l e s ,  you are 

al lowed t o  have an a t to rney  present t o  advise you. 

For the  record,  do you have an a t to rney ,  who represents 

you, appearing w i t h  you today? 

The Witness. I do. 

M r .  Dotson. Would counsel f o r  M r .  Cooney please 

i d e n t i f y  y o u r s e l f  f o r  the record? 

M r .  Tuohey. Yes. My name i s  Mark Tuohey. I am a  

par tner  w i t h  Vinson & E l k i n s  i n  Washington, D . C . ,  and I 

represent M r .  Cooney. Thank you. 

M r .  Dotson. The depos i t i on  w i l l  proceed as f o l l o w s :  

I w i l l  ask you quest ions regard ing the  sub jec t  matter of 

the committee's i n v e s t i g a t i o n  f o r  up t o  1 hour. When I am 



f i n i s h e d ,  m i n o r i t y  counsel has the oppor tun i t y  t o  ask you 

quest ions f o r  up t o  1 hour. A d d i t i o n a l  rounds o f  ques t ion ing  

a l t e r n a t i n g  between the m a j o r i t y  and the m i n o r i t y  counsel may 

then f o l l o w  u n t i l  the depos i t ion  i s  completed. 

The repo r te r  w i l l  be t a k i n g  down every th ing  you say, and 

we w i l l  make a  w r i t t e n  record of the depos i t ion .  You need t o  

g i ve  ve rba l ,  aud ib le  answers because the repo r te r  cannot 

record nods o r  gestures. 

Also,  i n  order f o r  the record t o  be c l e a r ,  please w a i t  

u n t i l  I f i n i s h  each quest ion before you begin your answer, 

and I w i l l  w a i t  u n t i l  you f i n i s h  your response before asking 

you the next quest ion.  Do you understand? 

The Witness. Yes. 

M r .  Dotson. I f  you d o n ' t  hear a  ques t ion  o r  don ' t  

understand a  quest ion,  please say so, and we w i l l  repeat o r  

rephrase i t .  I f  I ask you about conversat ions or  events i n  

the past and you are unable t o  r e c a l l  t he  exact words o r  

d e t a i l s ,  you should t e s t i f y  t o  the substance o f  such 

conversat ions o r  events t o  the  best o f  your r e c o l l e c t i o n .  I f  

you r e c a l l  on ly  a  p a r t  o f  a  conversat ion o r  o f  an event, you 

should g i v e  us your best r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  those events o r  

p a r t s  o f  conversat ions t h a t  you do r e c a l l .  

Do you understand? 

The Witness. I do. 

M r .  Dotson. This  i s  a  congressional  proceeding, and as 



such, i t  i s  d i f f e r e n t  i n  many respects from a c i v i l  o r  from a 

c r i m i n a l  proceeding. The r u l e s  o f  evidence t h a t  apply i n  

j u d i c i a l  proceedings, such as the  r u l e s  against  hearsay and 

speculat ion,  are not  app l i cab le  i n  congressional  proceedings. 

General ly,  the  committee i s  e n t i t l e d  t o  o b t a i n  the 

i n fo rma t ion  i t  needs t o  f u l f i l l  i t s  ove rs igh t  and l e g i s l a t i v e  

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  unless the i n fo rma t ion  i s  p ro tec ted  by a 

c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  p r i v i l e g e  such as the r i g h t  against  

s e l f  - i n c r i m i n a t i o n .  

M r .  Cooney, do you have any quest ions before we begin 

the depos i t ion?  

The Witness. I do n o t .  

M r .  Tuohey. Counsel, I do have a p o i n t ,  i f  I may. 

I t  i s  my understanding t h a t  counsel f o r  the Counci l  o f  

Environmental Q u a l i t y  has requested t h a t  he be present ,  and 

i t  i s  my understanding he w i l l  no t  be pe rm i t ted  t o  be 

present.  I am not  going t o  argue the m e r i t s  o f  t h a t .  

My p o s i t i o n  i s  t h a t  I t h i n k  i t  would be appropr ia te f o r  

counsel t o  be here because o f  the p r i v i l e g e  issues, bu t  t h a t  

i s  your c a l l .  However, I d i d  rece ive  - -  and I w i l l  g i ve  you 

a copy - -  t h i s  morning o f  a l e t t e r  from Dinah Bear, General 

Counsel o f  the Counci l  o f  Environmental Q u a l i t y ,  whjch i n  sum 

and substance - -  and I am happy t o  read i t  i f  you want me 

t o  - -  bu t  i n  sum and substance, i t  asks t h a t  I r a i s e  

ob jec t i ons  where and i f  necessary t o  p r o t e c t  e i t h e r  the 



d e l i b e r a t i v e  process p r i v i l e g e  o r  the execut ive p r i v i l e g e ,  

and I w i l l  do so i f  I deem i t  imperat ive,  because M r .  Cooney 

i s  no t  i n  a  p o s i t i o n  t o  waive the p r i v i l e g e .  I t  may no t  be 

necessary, bu t  I w i l l  g i ve  you a  copy o f  the l e t t e r  f o r  the 

record, and I w i l l  r a i s e  ob jec t i ons  and advise M r .  Cooney 

approp r ia te l y  i f  the p r i v i l e g e  issue i s  imp l i ca ted  i n  any way 

t h a t  I t h i n k  i t  needs t o  be addressed. 

[ E x h i b i t  No. 1 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

M r .  Tuohey. That i s  the  on ly  p o i n t  I wanted t o  make. 

The on ly  o ther  p o i n t  I wanted t o  make was t h a t  - -  and I 

made a  statement e a r l i e r  - -  I t h i n k ,  i n  f a i r n e s s  and out  o f  

respect f o r  you, M r .  Cooney has a  6:05 f l i g h t  back t o  Da l las  

t o n i g h t ,  so because the understanding was t h i s  was t o  be a  

3-hour i n te rv iew ,  g ive  o r  take, no t  exact,  we in tend  t o  have 

him take t h a t  f l i g h t ,  so I j u s t  want t o  - -  I t h i n k  you are 

smart i n  having rounds o f  an hour, and I t h i n k  we probably 

w i l l  be f i n i s h e d  long  before t h a t ,  b u t  I j u s t  want t o  l e t  you 

know he has a  f l i g h t  a t  6:05 t o n i g h t  back t o  Da l las .  

Ms. Safavian. Two p o i n t s  on what M r .  Tuohey j u s t  

ra ised :  one on agent 's  counsel being present .  I have a  

l e t t e r  t h a t  I want t o  have be p a r t  o f  the  record from 

M r .  Davis where he a l so  asks t h a t  agency counsel be present 



dur ing  t h i s  depos i t ion ,  and I have copies t h a t  I am happy t o  

pass out  t o  everyone. 

M r .  Cooney, i f  you would l i k e  a  copy. 

[ E x h i b i t  No. 2 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

The Witness. Thank you. 

Ms. Safavian. Sure. 

I wanted t o  make t h a t  p o i n t  and put  i t  on the record.  

Also,  w i t h  regard t o  the t i m i n g  o f  t h i s ,  I understand 

t h a t  there i s  obv ious ly  t ime l i m i t a t i o n s  because the witness 

needs t o  catch a  f l i g h t ,  and we are going t o  do rounds, so I 

suggest perhaps, r i g h t  now, t h a t  we s t a r t  o f f  w i t h  1 hour 

each and see what t ime i t  i s  and see how much more we both 

have t o  do before we decide how t o  s p l i t  the r e s t  o f  the t ime 

up because I understand 4:00, g ive  o r  take a  l i t t l e  b i t ,  i s  

what you are saying. 

M r .  Tuohev. I ' m  not  going t o  p u l l  the c u r t a i n  down l i k e  

we have t o  be out  o f  here by 4:30. 

Ms. Safavian. Sure, and we may be done. So why d o n ' t  

we s t a r t  w i t h  t h a t ,  1-hour rounds, and then, before we s t a r t  

our next round, w e ' l l  determine how much more t ime we have, 

t h a t  the wi tness has, and we w i l l  d i v i d e  t h a t  up equa l ly .  

M r .  Dotson. On a  couple po in ts ,  f i r s t ,  on the issue o f  

CEQ, CEQ, as you know, i s  not  i n v i t e d  t o  t h i s  depos i t ion ,  and 



s ince  t h i s  i s  a  d e p o s i t i o n ,  pursuant  t o  t h e  House Rules, they 

a re  a c t u a l l y  p r o h i b i t e d  f rom a t t e n d i n g  under t h e  committee 

r u l e s .  However, Ted B o l i n g ,  t he  Deputy General Counsel f o r  

CEQ, i s  w a i t i n g  i n  t h e  room o u t s i d e  t h i s  door ,  and he i s  

a v a i l a b l e  shou ld  any i ssues  a r i s e  f o r  which you would l i k e  t o  

c o n s u l t  w i t h  him i n  o rde r  t o  ensure t h a t ,  t o  t h e  maximum 

e x t e n t  p o s s i b l e ,  you a re  ab le  t o  answer ques t ions .  

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. F ine .  

Ms. Sa fav ian .  And j u s t  t o  be c l e a r ,  t he  committee 

r u l e s ,  w h i l e  they do s t a t e  t h a t ,  Greg, t h e r e  were d iscuss ions  

a t  t he  markup o f  t h e  committee r u l e s  where i t  was exp la ined  

where t h e r e  cou ld  be excep t ions  made t o  t h a t ,  t h a t  i t  i s  no t  

a  f a s t  and steady r u l e ,  so I j u s t  want t o  make sure t h a t  t h a t  

i s  on t he  reco rd  a l s o .  

M r . .  Dotson. W i th  regard  t o  t h e  1-hour rounds, I t h i n k  

we do need t o  ge t  s t a r t e d .  We have a  l o t  o f  m a t e r i a l  t o  

cover ,  and I t h i n k  - -  I agree t h a t  w e ' l l  say t h a t  we w i l l  

proceed i n  1-hour rounds,  and then we can agree t o  modi fy i t  

as app rop r i a te .  

Ms. Sa fav ian .  We l l ,  c e r t a i n l y ,  i f  he has t o  leave  a t  

4:30, I d o n ' t  want t o  l o s e  p a r t  o f  my t ime i f  he has t o  leave 

t o  ca t ch  a  f l i g h t .  So, i f  we each o n l y  g e t  an hour and a  

h a l f  o r  an hour ,  45 - -  

M r .  Dotson. I f  we h a v e n ' t  covered t h e  m a t e r i a l  by t he  

t ime,  we c o u l d  con t i nue  on a  subsequent day, so t h a t  i s  an 



o p t i o n  as w e l l .  

Ms. Safav ian.  Of course.  

M r .  Tuohey. One o t h e r  p o i n t  i f  I may. 

There i s  go ing  t o  be some re fe rence  i n  response t o  your 

ques t ions ,  ques t ions  t h a t  I a n t i c i p a t e  you w i l l  be ask ing,  

w i t h  respec t  t o  documents, i n  p a r t i c u l a r ,  documents o f  t h e  

EPA r e p o r t  and seve ra l  r e p o r t s  i ssued  by v a r i o u s  branches o f  

t h e  Execut ive  Branch o f  t h e  Government, which I am sure you 

have cop ies  o f  - -  I have g l o s s i e s  o f  those r e p o r t s  here i f  

need be - -  so t h a t  t h e  w i tness  can be respons ive t o  your 

ques t ions ,  he has made a  c h a r t ,  a  copy o f  which I w i l l  show 

you here,  o f  d i f f e r e n t  pages i n  t he  EPA r e p o r t  which a re  

p a r t i c u l a r l y  o f  i n t e r e s t  and, I know, a re  as t o  t h e  n a t u r e  o f  

your ques t ions ,  and he may r e f e r  t o  t h i s  c h a r t  f rom t ime t o  

t ime  i n  h i s  tes t imony ,  and I j u s t  want t o  l e t  you know. They 

a re  s imply  pages and paragraphs. 

The Witness.  References t o  pages i n  t h e  

N a t i o n a l  Academy o f  Sciences'  Report o f  June 2001. 

M r .  Tuohey. So he w i l l  make t h a t  c l e a r .  We w i l l  make 

i t  very  c l e a r  what he i s  r e f e r r i n g  t o .  Okay. Thank you. 

M r .  Dotson. Okay. Great .  

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q M r .  Cooney, would you p lease s t a t e  your f u l l  name 



f o r  t h e  record .  

A P h i l i p  Andrew Cooney. 

Q What i s  your home address? 

A 

JI 
Q Where a re  you c u r r e n t l y  employed? 

A ExxonMobil Corporat ion.  

Q What i s  your c u r r e n t  p o s i t i o n ?  

A My t i t l e  i s  Corporate Issues Manager. 

Q Where d i d  you work be fore  ExxonMobil? 

A From June 2001 through, I t h i n k  i t  was, June l o t h ,  

2005, I worked a t  t h e  White House Counc i l  on Environmental 

Q u a l i t y  as t h e  Ch ie f  o f  S t a f f ,  and j u s t  t o  be c l e a r ,  I 

b e l i e v e  I began on June 25th o f  2001. 

Q What were your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  as Ch ie f  o f  S t a f f ?  

A Wel l ,  I w i l l  t r y  t o  be concise here. 

I had broad managerial  r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  f o r  t he  

p r e p a r a t i o n  o f  budget, t he  implementat ion o f  budgets, h i r i n g ,  

f i r i n g ,  a  whole hos t  o f  managerial r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  w i t h i n  

t h e  Agency, b u t  t h e  Agency's miss ion  r e a l l y  i s  t o  guide the  

Federa l  Government i n  i t s  compliance w i t h  t h e  N a t i o n a l  

Environmental  P o l i c y  Act ,  and i t  i s  a l s o  t o  serve the  

P r e s i d e n t ' s  P o l i c y  Development Coord ina t ion  O f f i c e  w i t h i n  the  

White House on Energy, Environmental and N a t u r a l  Resource 

P o l i c i e s ,  and we had - -  you know, I had a s t a f f  - -  maybe 



there were 22 f u l l - t i m e  s t a f f ,  something l i k e  t h a t ,  bu t  on 

occasion, a t  d i f f e r e n t  t imes through the  admin i s t ra t i on ,  

there  were var ious  interagency task fo rces  where de ta i l ees  

from agencies would come t o  the  White House CEQ t o  work on 

d i s c r e t e  mat ters .  We had a  NEPA task f o r c e  t h a t  was look ing  

a t  re forming and improving the  NEPA Program. We had a  task 

fo rce  on oceans p o l i c y  and working w i t h  the  Oceans Commission 

t o  develop p o l i c i e s  f o r  the admin i s t ra t i on  w i t h  respect t o  

oceans, r e a l l y  a  huge sub jec t  area. Those are examples o f  

the types o f  task forces t h a t  we had a t  the White House. We 

a lso  had, you know, de ta i l ees  a t  d i f f e r e n t  po in ts  from 

d i f f e r e n t  agencies working on d i f f e r e n t  repo r t s  o r  e f f o r t s .  

M r .  Tuohey. The quest ion i s  about your 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s ,  not  the whole o f  the Agency. 

The Witness. Wel l ,  i n  a  way, because I was Chief  o f  

S t a f f ,  I d i d  s o r t  o f  l ook  across the Agency, bu t  you know, 

every day was d i f f e r e n t .  I had a  l o t  o f  managerial 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y .  One e s s e n t i a l  element o f  my job  was t o  be 

sure t h a t  p r i o r i t y  issues reached the chairman's a t t e n t i o n  

and t h a t  our o f f i c e  assignments were made appropr ia te ly  f o r  

rev iewing Federal l e g i s l a t i o n ,  Federal test imony through the 

OMB review process, rev iewing documents from the s t a f f  

sec re ta ry ' s  o f f i c e  i n  the  White House. I f  the President were 

going t o  g i ve  a  speech o r  issue a  p o l i c y  statement or  issue a  

p o l i c y  book o r  a  f a c t  sheet, you know, a l l  the White House 



o f f i c e  genera l l y  reviewed those. So we would - -  you know, I 

would make sure t h a t  our o f f i c e  was - -  t h a t  someone was 

rev iewing i t ,  th ings  l i k e  the Counci l  o f  Economic Advisors.  

The economic r e p o r t  o f  the  President comes ou t  annual ly .  

That goes t o  a l l  White House o f f i c e s  f o r  review and 

clearance, so I would make sure t h a t  one o r  two o r  th ree  

people were rev iewing i t  but  p r i m a r i l y  managerial.  And 

r e a l l y ,  we had d i f f e r e n t  emphases on d i f f e r e n t  issues 

throughout the 4 years, which would consume va ry ing  amounts 

o f  my t ime. That i s  the  best d e s c r i p t i o n  I can g i ve  o f  my 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s .  

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q Where d i d  you work before working a t  the Counci l  on 

Envi ronmental Qual  i t y ?  

A I worked a t  the  American Petroleum I n s t i t u t e  from 

January 1986 through, you know, June 2001 when I took the 

p o s i t i o n  a t  the White House, Counci l  on Environmental 

Q u a l i t y .  

Q What p o s i t i o n s  d i d  you ho ld  there?  

A My i n i t i a l  p o s i t i o n  was Jun io r  A t to rney ,  and t h a t  

was a  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  I took a f t e r  having worked f o r  an 

admin i s t ra t i ve  law judge a t  the Department o f  Labor on a  

whole host o f  issues - -  b lack l ung  and longshoremen's 

b e n e f i t s ,  t h ings  l i k e  t h a t .  So, when I took t h i s  job,  i t  was 



i n  a  d i f f e r e n t  area w i t h  t h e  t r a d e  a s s o c i a t i o n ,  and I r e a l l y  

d i d n ' t  know what I was g e t t i n g  i n t o  n e c e s s a r i l y ,  b u t  I went 

through t h e  ranks o f  t h e  O f f i c e  o f  General  Counsel t he re ,  and 

we had about 20 lawyers  i n  t h e  O f f i c e  o f  General Counsel a t  

t he  American Petro leum I n s t i t u t e ,  and I was a  j u n i o r  

a t t o r n e y .  Then I was a  sen io r  a t t o r n e y ,  and t h a t  was 

p robab ly  f o r  my f i r s t  1 3  years  t he re .  I j u s t  worked i n  t h e  

O f f i c e  o f  General  Counsel on a  whole hos t  o f  

r e g u l a t o r y / l e g i s l a t i v e  i s sues .  I cannot remember t he  exact  

year ,  b u t  a t  one p o i n t ,  t h e r e  was a  t r a n s i t i o n  i n  API ' s  

l eade rsh ip .  We g o t  a  new p res iden t ,  and t h e r e  was a  

r e o r g a n i z a t i o n ,  and I went, and I had t h e  t i t l e  o f  Counsel t o  

t h e  Execu t i ve  V i ce  P res iden t  o f  t he  American Petroleum 

I n s t i t u t e ,  b u t  I was work ing on a  l o t  o f  o r g a n i z a t i o n a l  

t r a n s i t i o n a l  i ssues  maybe f o r  a  year and a  h a l f .  And then,  

i n  my l a s t  year ,  I was what they c a l l  t h e  team leader  o f  t he  

C l imate  Team a t  t h e  American Petroleum I n s t i t u t e .  And t h e  

way we were organ ized was t h a t ,  on p r i o r i t y  i ssues ,  

m u l t i d i s c i p l i n a r y  teams w i t h i n  t h e  API , were assembled t o  

work on p r i o r i t y  i ssues ,  you know, f o r  t h e  member companies, 

and those teams would have s c i e n t i s t s ,  economists, l o b b y i s t s ,  

communicators, press people,  a  team leade r  s o r t  o f  s t e e r i n g  

t h i n g s ,  b u t  they were advocacy teams, m u l t i d i s c i p l i n a r y  teams 

t h a t  were assembled t o  work on i ssues .  

Q As team leade r  o f  t he  C l imate  Team, what were your 



r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s ?  

A Wel l ,  t o  implement a program o f  advocacy f o r  t h e  

member o i l  companies. To t he  e x t e n t  t h a t  they had a 

consensus p o s i t i o n  on c l i m a t e  change i ssues ,  we, the  team, 

worked i n  d i f f e r e n t  advocacy realms t o  advance those 

p o s i t i o n s ,  so we would undertake media out reach.  We would 

have l o b b y i s t s  who would come up on t h e  H i l l .  As you must 

know, t h e r e  were a whole hos t  o f  hear ings  su r round ing  t he  

Kyoto P r o t o c o l  a t  t h a t  t ime ,  and we had people  cover those 

hear ings ,  t h a t  s o r t  o f  t h i n g  r e a l l y .  

Q For t h e  record ,  I am go ing  t o  ask you about your 

educa t iona l  background. 

A Yes. 

Q Please s t a t e  f rom where and when you earned your 

undergraduate degrees. 

A My undergraduate degree was earned f rom t h e  

U n i v e r s i t y  o f  Richmond i n  1981. 

Q And what was your degree? 

A I had a double major  i n  Economics and P o l i t i c a l  

Science. 

Q Were c o l l e g e - l e v e l  sc ience courses r e q u i r e d  as p a r t  

o f  these degrees? 

A Yes, they were. 

Q And what c o l l e g e - l e v e l  sc ience courses d i d  you 

take?  



A We l l  - -  

M r .  Tuohev. J u s t ,  i n  genera l ,  i f  you remember. 

The Witness.  I b e l i e v e  i t  was phys i cs  t h a t  I took  t o  

meet t h e  requ i rement  f o r  t h e  L i b e r a l  A r t s  degree, b u t  I d o n ' t  

r e a l l y  remember. 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q Have you taken any pos tg radua te - l eve l  sc ience 

courses? 

A We l l ,  I went - -  I have a  law degree - -  

Q I am go ing  t o  ask you i n  a  moment about t h a t .  

A Okay. So, i n  some cases, law courses cover 

s c i e n t i f i c  i ssues ,  b u t  no, I d i d n ' t  take  s c i e n t i f i c  courses, 

per  se, postgraduate .  

Q You d i d  n o t  t ake  pos tg radua te - l eve l  sc ience 

courses? 

A  No, b u t  I took  l e g a l  c l asses ,  obv ious l y ,  t h a t  had 

t h e  elements - -  

M r .  Tuohey. So t h e  answer i s ,  no, you d i d  n o t ,  okay? 

The Witness.  Okay. No. Okay. No. 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q Please s t a t e  t h e  i n s t i t u t i o n  f rom which you earned 

a  law degree and t h e  year  i n  which you rece i ved  i t .  

A  V i l l a n o v a  U n i v e r s i t y ,  1984. 



Q D i d  you have an area o f  focus i n  your  s tudy o f  law? 

A  Not r e a l l y .  No, n o t  r e a l l y .  

Q Please s t a t e  t h e  i n s t i t u t i o n  f rom which you earned 

an advanced l e g a l  degree and t he  year  i n  which you rece ived  

i t .  

A  I n  1989, I rece ived  a  Mas te r ' s  i n  Legal  Taxa t ion  

f rom Georgetown U n i v e r s i t y .  

Q Now I am go ing  t o  ask you about your employment a t  

t h e  American Petro leum I n s t i t u t e .  So the  reco rd  i s  c l e a r ,  we 

w i l l  sometimes r e f e r  t o  t h e  American Petroleum I n s t i t u t e  as 

"API . " 

I s  i t  accura te  t h a t ,  i n  the  l a s t  p o s i t i o n  you h e l d  a t  

API, you were t h e  API s t a f f  member, t h e  l e a d  A P I  s t a f f  member 

on t he  i s s u e  o f  c l i m a t e  change? 

A  I was t h e  team leade r .  But API had a  p r e s i d e n t  and 

o t h e r  s e n i o r  o f f i c i a l s  who were o f  h i ghe r  rank than I who 

spoke t o  t h e  c l i m a t e  change advocacy i ssues .  

Q Please desc r i be  your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  i n  t h i s  

p o s i t i o n .  

A  Again, i t  was t o  coo rd ina te  t h e  work o f  a  

m u l t i d i s c i p l i n a r y  team on advocacy on c l i m a t e  change. 

Q What were your  d u t i e s  comprised o f  on a  day-to-day 

b a s i s ?  

A  You know, t h e r e  are  elements o f  my j o b  t h a t  I 

remember, you know, p u b l i c  p o l i c y  jobs .  



M r .  Tuohey. Just  g i ve  him your best r e c o l l e c t i o n ,  

per iod .  Jus t  g i ve  him your answers. 

The Witness. Wel l ,  on some days, we would a t tend a  

hear ing,  and we would w r i t e  up a  r e p o r t  of the hear ing,  and 

we would send i t  out  t o  the members f o r  t h e i r  i n fo rma t ion .  

On some days, we would go - -  we had planned t o  go and meet 

w i t h  an e d i t o r i a l  board o f  a  major newspaper and g i ve  

p o s i t i o n s  - -  g i ve  the i n d u s t r y ' s  p o s i t i o n s ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  

about the Kyoto Protocol ,  which was very c o n t r o v e r s i a l  a t  the 

t ime. The team would meet sometimes. You know, we would 

communicate and pu t  together a  " t o  do" l i s t  t h a t  people were 

going t o  do, and someone was going t o  d r a f t  a  l e t t e r  t o  the 

e d i t o r  on behal f  o f  the i n s t i t u t e ,  responding t o  some 

e d i t o r i a l  o r  column somewhere. Sometimes we would prepare 

t a l k i n g  p o i n t s  o r  d e l i v e r  t h i r d - p a r t y  s tud ies  t o  committees 

on the H i l l  about, say, the economic impacts o f  the Kyoto 

Pro toco l .  The l o b b y i s t s  would make v i s i t s .  They would p lan  

v i s i t s .  They would d i v i d e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s .  I t  was j u s t  

general  day-to-day advocacy work, and I coord inated our 

team's implementation o f  those e f f o r t s .  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q I s  i t  accurate t o  say t h a t  your j ob  was t o  he lp  

ensure t h a t  any governmental act ions taken r e l a t i n g  t o  

c l ima te  change were cons is ten t  w i t h  the  goals o f  the  American 



Pet roleum I n s t i t u t e ?  

A  Yes. 

Q Was c l i m a t e  change an impo r tan t  i s sue  f o r  API? 

A  I t  was. 

M r .  Dotson. I would l i k e  t o  t u r n  t o  our f i r s t  document. 

I w i l l  ask t h e  r e p o r t e r  t o  - -  I would l i k e  t o  ask t he  

r e p o r t e r  t o  mark t h e  document. 

Ms. Safav ian.  Do you want t o  mark t h a t  3 s ince  these 

a re  1 and 2? 

M r .  Dotson. Ah, yes. 

[ E x h i b i t  No. 3 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q E x h i b i t  3 i s  an API document dated October 26th ,  

1999. I t  i s  a  f a x  f rom you and David Deal o f  API t o  numerous 

rep resen ta t i ves  o f  o t h e r  t r a d e  a s s o c i a t i o n s ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

M r .  Tuohey. Take a  l ook ,  and read i t  on b o t h  pages, 

f i r s t ,  s t a r t i n g  down here.  

Do you r e c a l l  t h e  ques t ion?  

The Witness.  I d o n ' t  r e c a l l  t h e  ques t i on .  

M r .  Tuohey. J u s t  read back t h e  q u e s t i o n  o r  say i t  

aga in ,  Greg. 

BY MR. DOTSON: 



Q E x h i b i t  3 i s  an A P I  document dated October 26th, 

1999. I t  i s  a  fax  from you and David Deal o f  A P I  t o  numerous 

representa t i ves  o f  o ther  t rade  assoc ia t ions ;  i s  t h a t  co r rec t?  

A Yes. 

Q I n  t h i s  f a x ,  you are i n v i t i n g  o ther  t rade  

assoc ia t i on  representa t i ves  t o  a meeting a t  the  A P I  on 

November 30th,  1999, t o  d iscuss a  p e t i t i o n  f i l e d  a t  EPA, 

seeking t o  r e g u l a t e  carbon d iox ide  and o ther  greenhouse 

gases; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A I am s o r r y .  I was reading wh i l e  you were speaking. 

What i s  the  ques t ion  again? 

Q The ques t ion  i s  t h a t ,  i n  t h i s  fax ,  you are i n v i t i n g  

other  t rade  assoc ia t i on  representa t i ves  t o  a  meeting a t  the 

A P I  on November 30th,  1999, t o  d iscuss a  p e t i t i o n  f i l e d  a t  

EPA, seeking t o  regu la te  carbon d i o x i d e  and o ther  greenhouse 

gases; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A That i s  c o r r e c t .  

Q Did  t h i s  meeting occur? 

A I n  a l l  l i k e l i h o o d ,  i t  oc+curred. I f  f i v e  people 

c o u l d n ' t  make i t ,  we might have rescheduled i t .  This  i s  

something t h a t  happened 8 years ago, so I d o n ' t  want t o  - -  

M r .  Tuohey. Do you know whether i t  occurred,  yes o r  no? 

The Witness. C e r t a i n l y ,  an o r g a n i z a t i o n a l  meeting 

occurred a t  API. I d o n ' t  know i f  I t  happened on t h a t  exact 

date.  I d o n ' t  know i f  i t  came o f f  o r  n o t .  



BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q And you d o n ' t  know i f  a l l  of the  attendees on t h a t  

l i s t  attended? 

A I d o n ' t  know. 

Q Do you know who d i d  at tend? Do you have a 

r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  who d e f i n i t e l y  attended? 

A No, I d o n ' t .  I remember a b i g  meeting room. We 

got a  b i g  meeting room because there  were a l o t  o f  people, 

and I remember we hosted a meeting, bu t  I do not  remember 

faces and names around the room. 

Q I f  you were t o  assign a rough number t o  the number 

o f  attendees, what would i t  be? 

M r .  Tuohey. I f  you are able t o  r e c a l l .  I f  you a r e n ' t ,  

you a r e n ' t ,  and say so. 

The Witness. Let  me j u s t  p i c k  a number, and i t  i s  

a r b i t r a r y ,  and i t  i s  based upon - -  j u s t  i f  I am p i c k i n g  a 

rough number l i k e  your quest ion asked, I would say 20. 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q And do you r e c a l l  any s p e c i f i c  attendees a t  the 

meeting? 

A I j u s t  d o n ' t  have the s t reng th  o f  r e c o l l e c t i o n  t o  

see faces around the room. There were meetings about t h i s  

t o p i c ,  but  I do not  remember one from the o ther  o r  who. I 



j u s t  d o n ' t  remember a  f ace  i n  t h e  room. 

Q I n  your mind, what was t h e  purpose o f  t h i s  meet ing? 

M r .  Tuohey. "Th i s  meet ing" meaning t h e  October 26 

meet ing? Excuse me, t h e  November 30th? Do you remember a 

meet ing on November 30th ,  t h a t  day? 

The Witness.  We l l ,  as I s a i d ,  I d o n ' t  remember t h a t  i t  

s p e c i f i c a l l y  occur red  t h a t  day. 

M r .  Dotson. But he r e c a l l s  t h e  ex i s tence  o f  a meet ing,  

whether o r  n o t  i t  was p r e c i s e l y  on t h a t  da te .  

M r .  Tuohey. Yes, he s a i d  t h e r e  were a  number o f  

meetings on t h e  i ssue .  

The Witness.  S o r t  o f  a  p r e l i m i n a r y  meet ing.  I n  t h i s  

memorandum, I s t a t e  our  v iew t h a t  ,- t h i s  i s  a  development o f  

p o t e n t i a l  importance i n  t h e  c l i m a t e  change area, and I t h i n k  

what we were t r y i n g  t o  gauge - -  and I r e a l l y  am specu la t i ng ,  

so maybe I should  s top .  

M r .  Tuohey. Then d o n ' t  specu la te .  

The Witness.  I w i l l  n o t  specu la te .  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q You have no r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  what t h e  purpose o f  

t h i s  meet ing was? 

A I t  was t o  - -  my r e c o l l e c t i o n  i s  as f o l l o w s :  I t  was 

t o  share and c o l l e c t  t h e  judgments o f  how o t h e r  people 

reviewed t h e  importance o f  t h i s  p e t i t i o n .  



Q I be l i eve  the fax  t a l k s  about the  p o t e n t i a l  o f  

responding on a  j o i n t  o r  on an i n d i v i d u a l  bas is .  

Was the re  a  d iscuss ion about responding on a  j o i n t  o r  on 

an i n d i v i d u a l  bas is?  

A I don ' t  r e c a l l  anyth ing s p e c i f i c a l l y .  I t h i n k  our 

i n i t i a l  o b j e c t i v e  was t o  see i f  people cared. Did people see 

t h i s  as an impor tant  development on the  p o l i c y  o f  g loba l  

c l ima te  change? So I do no t  r e c a l l  whether we got t o  the 

next steps o r  anyth ing l i k e  t h a t .  

Q Did  you t h i n k  i t  was an impor tant  development? 

A I d i d .  

Q Was i t  p a r t  of your job as an employee o f  API t o  

organize a  response o f  the o ther  t rade associat ions t o  t h i s  

development? 

A Not necessar i l y  and no t  so l i t e r a l l y .  My job a t  

the API was t o  r e f l e c t  the p o l i c y  guidance t h a t  I received 

from my members on th ings ,  and so I d i d n ' t  have an 

independent - -  so I d i d n ' t  necessar i l y  have an independent, 

immediate r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  t o  respond. I had t o  know what my 

members thought. 

Q Do you r e c a l l  i f  o rgan iz ing  t h i s  meeting was your 

idea,  o r  d i d  someone a t  API d i r e c t  you t o  do i t ?  

A I do no t  r e c a l l .  

Q Okay. We are f i n i s h e d  w i t h  t h a t  e x h i b i t .  

A I was - -  



1 M r .  Tuohey. You've answered t h e  ques t i on ,  P h i l .  

2 Excuse me a second. 

3 M r .  Dotson. I w i l l  ask t h e  r e p o r t e r  t o  mark t h i s  

4 e x h i b i t .  

5 [ E x h i b i t  No. 4 

6 was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

7 

8 BY MR. DOTSON: 

9 Q E x h i b i t  4 i s  a document summarizing an agenda i t e m  

10 f o r  a meet ing o f  t he  API C l imate  Change S t e e r i n g  Group; i s  

11 t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

12 M r .  Tuohey. Le t  him take  a l o o k  a t  t h e  document i f  you 

are go ing  t o  ask him about t he  substance o f  i t .  

M r .  Dotson. I am. 

The Witness.  November 10 th .  

M r .  Tuohey . F i  n i  shed? 

The Witness.  I am f i n i s h e d .  

M r .  Tuohey. What was your ques t ion?  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q T h i s  i s  an API document summarizing an agenda i t e m  

22 f o r  t h e  meet ing o f  t he  API C l imate  Change S t e e r i n g  Group; i s  

23 t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

24 A I t  appears t o  be what you desc r i be .  

25 Q The committee has reason t o  b e l i e v e  t h a t  you 



prepared t h i s  document. Did you prepare t h i s  document? 

A I d o n ' t  - -  I d o n ' t  r e c a l l  p repar ing  i t .  

Q Would you have been the API s t a f f  member t o  have 

prepared t h i s  document f o r  a  November 10th.  1999, meeting? 

A I t  would have been l i k e l y ,  but  as you know, the 

Ass i s tan t  General Counsel, David Deal, was on t h a t  i n i t i a l  

i n v i t a t i o n ,  and I j u s t  c a n ' t  r e a l l y  r e c a l l  who he ld  the pen 

t o  d r a f t  up t h i s  a c t i o n  i tem issue paper, whether I wrote i t  

o r  whether someone e l s e  wrote i t .  I d o n ' t  - -  I d o n ' t  

remember w r i t i n g  i t .  

Q Whether o r  no t  you wrote t h i s  document, you would 

have reviewed t h i s  document and approved i t ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A I would have approved i t  t o  send ou t  t o  our members 

along w i t h  an agenda. 

Q And you would have presented t h i s  a t  the meeting; 

i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Not necessa r i l y .  David Deal could have presented 

i t  t o  the  members. I do not  r e c a l l  who presented i t .  

Q Are there  o ther  API s t a f f  who could have presented 

i t ?  

A Wel l ,  we had a l e g a l  o f f i c e ,  and we had lawyers 

assigned t o  work - -  assigned t o  prov ide t ime t o  the Cl imate 

Team, and so t h i s  i s  p r i m a r i l y  a  l e g a l  proceeding, so someone 

i n  the O f f i c e  o f  General Counsel cou ld  very w e l l  have managed 

t h i s  element o f  the  agenda. 



Q U l t i m a t e l y ,  t h e  p r e p a r a t i o n  and rev iew and approval  

of  t h i s  document was your r e s p o n s i b i l i t y ?  

M r .  Tuohey. I s  t h a t  a ques t i on  o r  a statement? 

M r .  Dotson. That i s  a ques t i on .  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q I s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A U l t i m a t e l y  - -  j u s t  say t he  statement again.  

Q U l t i m a t e l y ,  t h e  p repa ra t i on ,  rev iew and approva l  o f  

t h i s  document was your r e s p o n s i b i l i t y ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Yes, I b e l i e v e  so. 

Q As you can see a t  t h e  bot tom o f  t h i s  document, 

t h e r e  i s  a l i n e  t h a t  reads "Recommendation: Endorse p l a n  t o  

coo rd ina te  j o i n t  i n d u s t r y  response." 

Was t h a t  your recommendation a t  t h e  t ime? 

A I t h i n k  i t  was, b u t  I do n o t  s p e c i f i c a l l y  r e c a l l .  

T h i s  i s  - -  

Q I s  t h e r e  another person whose recommendation i t  

cou ld  have been? 

A We l l ,  t h e  team met once a week, and t he  team would 

o f t e n  come t o  conc lus ions  f o r  p r e f e r r e d  courses o f  a c t i o n ,  

and so - -  

Q You would have approved o f  t h i s  recommendation even 

if you h a d n ' t  i n i t i a l l y  c rea ted  t he  recommendation; i s  t h a t  

c o r r e c t ?  



A I would have approved i t s  be ing sent t o  the member 

companies as p a r t  o f  an agenda f o r  the meeting, and I l i k e l y  

endorsed the p lan ,  bu t  I d o n ' t  s p e c i f i c a l l y  r e c a l l .  

Q According t o  t h i s  e x h i b i t ,  one aspect o f  a  j o i n t  

i ndus t r y  response would be t o  demonstrate, quote, " i n d u s t r y ' s  

u n i t y  and resolve opposing the p e t i t i o n , "  unquote. 

Why would A P I  want t o  demonstrate t h a t ?  

M r .  Tuohey. I f  you know. 

The Witness. Because we d i d  not  - -  we d i d  not  genera l l y  

support an expansive view o f  EPA's j u r i s d i c t i o n  under the 

Clean A i r  Act ,  and t h i s  c l e a r l y  would have broadened i t  

s u b s t a n t i a l l y  and may have brought harmfu l  p o l i c i e s  t o  the 

country .  We thought the Kyoto Protocol  was a harmful p o l i c y .  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q Who attended t h i s  A P I  Cl imate Change Steer ing Group 

meeting? 

A I do not  r e c a l l .  

Q Do you r e c a l l  what the outcome o f  d iscuss ion was on 

t h i s  agenda i tem? 

A I do not  r e c a l l  the outcome o f  the discussion. I 

can say t h a t  a  j o i n t  e f f o r t  d i d  u n f o l d  t o  oppose the 

p e t i t i o n .  

Q For the record,  d i d  A P I  be l i eve  t h a t  carbon d iox ide  

was a p o l l u t a n t  under the Clean A i r  Act? 



M r .  Tuohey. I f  you r e c a l l .  

The Witness. I t h i n k  i t  was - -  I d o n ' t  t h i n k  A P I  had a  

p r e e x i s t i n g  p e t i t i o n .  I t h i n k  the p e t i t i o n  - -  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q Do you mean " p o s i t i o n " ?  

A Oh, excuse me. The p o s i t i o n  on whether carbon 

d iox ide  was covered by the Clean A i r  Ac t .  I t h i n k  we were i n  

the midst  o f  f o rmu la t i ng  a  p o s i t i o n  i n  response t o  the 

p e t i t i o n  t h a t  had been f i l e d .  I d o n ' t  know t h a t  we had 

thought hard about the  quest ion before the  p e t i t i o n  was 

f i l e d .  

Q As a  lawyer, d i d  you be l i eve  t h a t  carbon d iox ide  

was a  p o l l u t a n t  under the Clean A i r  Act? 

A I d i d n ' t  have an op in ion  because my r o l e  was as the 

team leader .  And we had a  lawyer on the team, and the lawyer 

was supposed t o  make the hard l e g a l  ana lys is  o f  whether i t  

was o r  was no t .  I was the team leader coo rd ina t i ng  advocacy 

i n  a  general  sense. 

M r .  Dotson. Okay. We are f i n i s h e d  w i t h  t h a t  e x h i b i t .  

Okay. I w i l l  ask the repo r te r  t o  mark t h i s  e x h i b i t .  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 5 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. DOTSON: 



Q E x h i b i t  S i s  a  l e t t e r  t o  Fred Smith o f  t h e  

Compet i t i ve  E n t e r p r i s e  I n s t i t u t e ,  o r  C E I ,  from t h e  API; i s  

t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

M r .  Tuohey. Can I j u s t  c l a r i f y  t h e  ques t i on?  

I t  i s  unsigned. Do you mean, i s  i t  a  d r a f t ,  o r  i s  i t  a  

copy o f  a  l e t t e r  t h a t  was sen t?  There i s  no s i g n a t u r e  on i t .  

M r .  Dotson. There i s  no s i g n a t u r e  on i t .  There i s  no 

s i g n a t u r e  on t h e  l e t t e r .  

The Witness.  O r  l e t t e r h e a d .  

M r .  Dotson. That  i s  t r u e .  

M r .  Tuohey. Are you ask ing  whether he wrote  t h i s  

l e t t e r ?  Because, if you a r e  n o t ,  I ' m  n o t  su re  - -  you had 

b e t t e r  ask h im if he i s  f a m i l i a r  w i t h  i t .  I d o n ' t  know 

whether he knows what t h i s  i s .  

M r .  Dotson. I w i l l  l e t  him rev iew t h e  l e t t e r  f i r s t .  

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. Sure. 

The Witness.  I have reviewed t h e  l e t t e r .  What i s  your 

ques t i on?  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q We b e l i e v e  t h a t  t h i s  i s  a  l e t t e r  t o  Fred Smith o f  

t h e  Compe t i t i ve  E n t e r p r i s e  I n s t i t u t e ,  o r  C E I ,  f rom t h e  API; 

i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A  I t  appears t o  be, b u t  i t  I S  unsigned, and t h e r e  i s  

no l e t t e r h e a d ,  so I r e a l l y  c a n ' t  speak t o  i t s  a u t h e n t i c i t y .  



Q The committee has reason t o  be l i eve  t h a t  you 

d r a f t e d  t h i s  l e t t e r .  D id  you d r a f t  t h i s  l e t t e r ?  

A  I do not  r e c a l l  d r a f t i n g  t h i s  l e t t e r ,  and what I 

would say i n  a d d i t i o n  i s  t h a t  I d i d  no t  go t o  Buenos A i res ,  

so I wouldn ' t  have hoped t o  run i n t o  t h i s  C E I  cont ingent  a t  

t h a t  t ime.  

Q Did you ever d r a f t  l e t t e r s  f o r  B i l l  O'Keefe i n  your 

p o s i t i o n  a t  A P I ?  

A  I d i d .  I d i d .  

Q Do you be l i eve  t h a t  you d r a f t e d  t h i s  l e t t e r  f o r  

B i l l  O'Keefe a t  A P I ?  

A  I do not  know. 

Q Did B i l l  O'Keefe at tend Buenos A i res  i n  t h a t  year? 

A I be l ieve  - -  I remember he went t o  Kyoto. I j u s t  

c a n ' t  remember i f  he went t o  Buenos A i res .  I t h i n k  he d i d ,  

bu t  I d o n ' t  s p e c i f i c a l l y  remember. I t  was 1998, so i t  was a  

l o n g  t ime ago. 

Q I s  t h i s  l e t t e r  t y p i c a l  o f  the k i n d  o f  l e t t e r  t h a t  

you would d r a f t  f o r  B i l l  O'Keefe? 

A I d i d  a  l o t  o f  miscellaneous l e t t e r s ,  and t h i s  

could have been t y p i c a l  o f  one t h a t  I would have w r i t t e n  f o r  

him. 

Q Would i t  have been t y p i c a l  f o r  A P I  t o  have provided 

$10,000 t o  C E I  so t h a t  C E I  could a t tend a  Uni ted Nat ions 

conference on c l ima te  change? 



A Wel l ,  you know, I r e a l l y  c a n ' t  speak t o  what was 

t y p i c a l  a t  t h a t  t ime. I was counsel t o  B i l l  O'Keefe, but  

we - -  a t  the t ime t h a t  I was serv ing ,  I was working on a  l o t  

o f  p r o j e c t s .  We cu t  our s t a f f  from 600 t o  300. We changed 

o f f i c e s .  We d i d  a  l o t  o f  t h ings  t h a t  were o rgan iza t i ona l .  

We had an e a r l y  re t i rement  program I remember working on. I 

worked on a  l o t  o f  miscel laneous aspects o f  a  major 

reorgan iza t ion  a t  A P I  du r ing  the t r a n s i t i o n  t o  Red Cavaney as 

the pres ident ,  and so I was counsel t o  B i l l  O'Keefe. But I 

was working on a  l o t  o f  o rgan iza t i ona l  issues.  I d i d  work 

from t ime t o  t ime on l i t t l e  t h ings  f o r  B i l l  t h a t  would r e l a t e  

t o  c l imate ,  bu t  I worked on a whole host o f  random 

o rgan iza t i ona l  issues.  I was an a s s i s t a n t  t o  a  senior  

execut ive,  and he had a  b i g  p o r t f o l i o  o f  t h ings .  There was a  

separate Cl imate Program, a  team a t  t h a t  t ime, and I was not  

on the team. I d o n ' t  know what the program was. I d o n ' t  

be l i eve  I had jo ined t h a t  team i n  1998. So there was c l ima te  

change a c t i v i t y  a t  A P I  and a  program and, perhaps, funding 

f o r  C E I ,  but  I d i d  a  l o t  o f  miscel laneous th ings  when I was 

counsel t o  the  execut ive v i c e  pres ident ,  t o  B i l l  O'Keefe, and 

I was not  - -  there  were people who were i n t e g r a l  i n  working 

on c l ima te  change a l l  the t ime, and I r e a l l y  was no t  a t  t h a t  

t ime. I would come i n  contact  w i t h  i t  and do l i t t l e  th ings ,  

bu t  there  were a  l o t  o f  people working hard on the issue. 

M r .  Tuohey. Excuse me. 



BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q More g e n e r a l l y ,  was i t  t y p i c a l  f o r  API t o  fund 

t h i n k  tanks o r  advocacy groups t o  do work on c l i m a t e  change? 

A Yes, API d i d  t h a t .  

Q And how much money would you es t imate  API p rov ided  

t o  these groups i n  any g i ven  year? 

M r .  Tuohev. For c l i m a t e  change? 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q For c l i m a t e  change. 

A I r e a l l y  do n o t  r e c a l l  s p e c i f i c a l l y  whether the  

budget was f o r  g ran t  f und ing  f o r  t h i r d - p a r t y  groups. I j u s t  

d o n ' t  n o t  r e c a l l  s p e c i f i c a l l y .  

Q Do you r e c a l l  any s p e c i f i c  groups t h a t  rece ived  

f undi  ng? 

A I do. 

Q Would you l i s t  them f o r  us? 

A There was fund ing  t o  t h e  Hear t land  I n s t i t u t e .  

There was fund ing  t o  Reason Organ iza t ion .  There was fund ing  

t o  the  C E I ,  t he  Compet i t i ve  E n t e r p r i s e  I n s t i t u t e .  There was 

fund ing  t o  t h e  Acton I n s t i t u t e .  Oh, t h e r e  was fund ing  t o  the 

American Counc i l  on C a p i t a l  Format ion.  

Q What d i d  API hope t o  accomplish by p r o v i d i n g  

fund ing  t o  these groups? 



A The promot ion o f  f r e e  market p r i n c i p l e s .  That  was 

t he  e s s e n t i a l  ph i losophy o f  those groups. 

Q Was t h e r e  any c l i m a t e  change s p e c i f i c  goa l  t h a t  A P I  

hoped t o  achieve by f und ing  these groups? 

A  These groups were opposed p u b l i c l y  t o  t h e  Kyoto 

P ro toco l ,  and f rom t ime t o  t ime,  they would analyze o r  w r i t e  

about t h e  nega t i ve  impacts o f  t he  Kyoto P r o t o c o l  and would 

advocate aga ins t  i t ,  t e s t i f y  be fo re  Congress. 

Q Okay. We a re  done w i t h  t h a t  e x h i b i t .  

Can you t e l l  me who Russe l l  Jones i s ?  

A  I can. He i s  - -  w e l l ,  I t h i n k  now he i s  a  sen io r  

economist a t  t h e  American Petroleum I n s t i t u t e .  He i s  - -  

t h a t ' s  who he i s .  

Q When you were l a s t  i n  t h e  p o s i t i o n  you h e l d  a t  API, 

what was your r e l a t i o n s h i p  t o  Russe l l  Jones? 

A  Russe l l  had preceded me as t he  team leade r  - 

C l imate  Team, and when I became the  team leade r ,  because they 

r o t a t e d  these t h i n g s ,  he served as one o f  t h e  economists on 

the  team, bu t  we had seve ra l  economists on t h e  team. 

M r .  Dotson. Okay. I w i l l  ask t h e  r e p o r t e r  t o  mark t h i s  

e x h i b i t .  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 6 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

M r .  Tuohey. Take your t ime  and read i t .  



BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q E x h i b i t  6 i s  an i n t e r n a l  API document prepared 

du r ing  API 's  budget review i n  1999; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

M r .  Tuohey. Let him take a l ook  a t  the  document. 

Review i t .  

The Witness. What year i s  i t ?  1999, you sa id? 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q 1999. 

A And i t  i s  a budget? 

Q I t  i s  an i n t e r n a l  A P I  document prepare du r ing  API 's  

budget review i n  1999. 

A Okay. 

M r .  Tuohey. I s  there  a quest ion pending, Greg, on t h i s ?  ' 

What i s  the quest ion? 

M r .  Dotson. I am asking him i f  t h a t  i s  c o r r e c t .  

M r .  Tuohey. Oh, i f  t h a t  i s  c o r r e c t ?  

M r .  Dotson. Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. I take i t  your quest ion i s  asking 

him whether he knows whether t h a t ' s  the case as opposed t o  

reading the document and asking i f  t h a t  i s  what i t  sounds 

l i k e .  I mean, there  i s  no foundat ion i f  he i s  f a m i l i a r  w i t h  

the document. Are you going t o  ask him whether he has ever 

seen i t ,  o r  whether he knows what i t  i s ?  



M r .  Dotson. We w i l l  be t a l k i n g  about t h a t ,  yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. Okay. 

The Witness. Okay. What's your quest ion? I ' m  sor ry .  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q I s  t h a t  an API i n t e r n a l  document prepared dur ing  

API 's  budget review i n  1999? 

M r .  Tuohey. Do you know what i t  i s ?  

The Witness. Wel l ,  i t  i s  t a l k i n g  about the proposed 

2000 program budget o f  $3.8 m i l l i o n ,  so i t  seems t o  be 

g e t t i n g  i n t o  - -  I mean, I d o n ' t  - -  i t  appears t o  be t h a t ,  and 

reading i t ,  i t  r i n g s  b e l l s .  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q I t  seems f a m i l i a r  t o  you? 

A I t  seems f a m i l i a r  t o  me now t h a t  I look a t  i t .  I 

haven' t  thought o f  i t  s ince,  bu t  i t  i s  f a m i l i a r .  

Q Noth ing i n  the  document makes you have doubts about 

i t s  a u t h e n t i c i t y ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A That i s  c o r r e c t .  

Q The committee has reason t o  b e l i e v e  t h a t  Russel l  

Jones prepared t h i s  document and t h a t  you reviewed i t .  

Have you seen t h i s  document before? 

A I be l ieve  I have seen the document before.  I do 

not  r e c a l l  who reviewed o r  approved i t .  



Q Can you r e c a l l  under what circumstance you saw the 

document? 

A Under what circumstance I saw i t?  

Q What s i t u a t i o n  you were i n .  

A Wel l ,  there  i s  a  budget p repara t ion  process on 

i n d i v i d u a l  issues t h a t  occurs a t  A P I ,  and I j u s t  d o n ' t  

remember a t  what p o i n t  i n  the  process t h i s  document was 

developed, bu t  i t  appears t o  have been developed du r ing  t h a t  

process. 

Q Okay. I would l i k e  t o  d i r e c t  your a t t e n t i o n  t o  the 

f i r s t  page, t o  t e x t  beginning on the seventh l i n e  o f  the 

document. I t  reads, "Cl imate i s  a t  the center  o f  i n d u s t r y ' s  

business i n t e r e s t s .  P o l i c i e s  l i m i t i n g  carbon emissions 

reduce petroleum product use. That i s  why i t  i s  API 's  

h ighest  p r i o r i t y  issue and def ined as ' s t r a t e g i c . ' "  

A P I  was concerned about the issue o f  c l ima te  change 

because they d i d  not  want t h i s  country o r  o ther  count r ies  t o  

reduce petroleum product use; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Someone wrote t h a t  reason on t h i s  sheet. A P I  had a 

number o f  p o l i c y  concerns r e l a t i n g  t o  c l ima te  t h a t  went 

beyond the  narrow p o t e n t i a l  o f  reduced petroleum use. I 

t h i n k  t h a t  there  was a genuine and wel l - founded and consensus 

view among the membership t h a t  the Kyoto Pro toco l  would have 

been harmful  f o r  the American economy and the  wor ld  economy 

and was bad p u b l i c  p o l i c y  and t h a t  we, as an i ndus t r y ,  along 



w i t h  o ther  i n d u s t r i e s  and o ther  voices i n  soc ie ty  should s tep  

up and oppose harmful  p u b l i c  p o l i c i e s ,  bu t  I d o n ' t  deny t h a t  

there  was a  pa roch ia l  i n t e r e s t  t o  the i n d u s t r y  based upon 

these words t h a t  are on t h i s  sheet. 

Q So i t  i s  accurate t o  say t h a t  the i ndus t r y  d i d  n o t  

want t o  reduce carbon emissions, one o f  t he  reasons being 

t h a t  they d i d  not  want t o  reduce petroleum product use? 

M r .  Tuohey. Are you asking him whether he agrees w i t h  

t h a t  statement? 

M r .  Dotson. Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. Do you agree w i t h  t h a t  statement? 

The Witness. I ' m  so r ry .  I d o n ' t  mean t o  over th ink ,  bu t  

I d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h a t  they wanted t o  r i s k  a  reduced r e l i a n c e  on 

petroleum based upon p r o v i s i o n a l  science, emerging science o r  

based upon harmfu l  p u b l i c  p o l i c i e s .  So i t  i s  j u s t  a broader 

concern than merely l e s s  petroleum use. 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q So, t o  summarize, I be l i eve  what you are saying i s  

they d i d  not  be l i eve  the science ye t  j u s t i f i e d  reducing 

petroleum product use? 

M r .  Tuohey. I s  t h a t  what you ' re  saying o r  no t?  

The Witness. I t h i n k  there  was a  concern t h a t  the 

science was no t  s u f f i c i e n t l y  w e l l  understood t o  j u s t i f y  

l e g a l l y  mandated reduct ions i n  energy use. 



BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q I n  go ing  back t o  your p rev ious  statements,  when you 

worked on c l i m a t e  change, you were work ing  t o  represent  AP I ' s  

p o s i t i o n ,  c o r r e c t ?  

A Co r rec t .  

Q And so your e f f o r t s  would be r e f l e c t e d  i n  - -  o r  the  

goals  o f  your e f f o r t s  would be r e f l e c t e d  i n  these k i nds  o f  

concerns; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

M r .  Tuohey. I n  which k i nds  o f  concerns? 

M r .  Dotson. Concerns about reduced pet ro leum product  

use. 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q That was a concern o f  your member companies, and 

t h e r e f o r e ,  i t  was your concern s ince  you were head o f  the  

C l imate  Team; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. Excuse me a second. 

M r .  Dotson. I w i l l  j u s t  note  f o r  t he  record  t h a t  

counsel  i s  - -  t h a t  M r .  Cooney's counsel i s  c o n s u l t i n g  w i t h  

him. 

M r .  Tuohey. Yes, I am a d v i s i n g  him, n o t  c o n s u l t i n g  him. 

He i s  n o t  c o n s u l t i n g  w i t h  me. I am a d v i s i n g  him. 



BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q You have mentioned severa l  t imes t h a t  A P I  was very 

concerned about the Kyoto Pro toco l ,  and p a r t  o f  your job  was 

t o  oppose the Kyoto Pro toco l ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A  Yes. 

Q Can I ask you t o  t u r n  t o  Page 3 o f  the  document i n  

f r o n t  o f  you? 

On t h i s  page, i t  envis ioned a  $2 m i l l i o n  ex te rna l  

expendi ture program on c l ima te  t h a t  i s  discussed. A t  the 

bottom o f  the page, i t  says t h a t  $100,000 cou ld  be provided 

f o r  c l ima te  science and science unce r ta in t y  research. 

Please descr ibe what A P I  envis ioned accomplishing w i t h  

these funds. 

M r .  Tuohey. Do you understand the quest ion? 

The Witness. Could you ask t h e  quest ion again? 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q Under the l a s t  b u l l e t  o f  the page, St rategy 3.  

A  Yes. 

Q I t  discusses an expendi ture o f  $100,000 f o r  c l imate  

science and science unce r ta in t y  research, and I am asking 

what A P I  envis ioned accomplishing w i t h  these funds. 

A I d o n ' t  r e a l l y  r e c a l l .  I t  c i t e s  the  Nat iona l  

Environmental P o l i c y  I n s t i t u t e  and the CAT0 I n s t i t u t e ,  and I 

do not  r e c a l l  what they were doing on those - -  on t h a t  set  o f  



issues t h a t  would have warranted a c o n t r i b u t i o n .  

Q Are those organ iza t ions  t y p i c a l l y  thought o f  as 

s c i e n t i f i c  i n s t i t u t e s ?  

A I c a n ' t  r e a l l y  speak t o  how they are charac ter ized .  

Q Do you - -  

A I n  general ,  people have d i f f e r e n t  views o f  them. 

Q Do you t h i n k  t h a t  t h i s  $100,000 would be used f o r  

hard research o r  f o r  more advocacy work on the  issue o f  

research? 

M r .  Tuohey. I f  you know. 

The Witness. I d o n ' t  know. 

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q ON the  l a s t  two l i n e s  o f  the page, $100,000 i s  

descr ibed as being prov ided f o r  h e a l t h  research t o  address 

vector-borne disease c la ims.  Please descr ibe what A P I  

envis ioned accomplishing w i t h  these funds. 

A I do not  r e c a l l .  I do not  r e c a l l .  

Q A t  t h i s  t ime, you may r e c a l l  t h a t  the issue o f  

vector-borne disease and i t s  connection w i t h  c l ima te  change 

was something t h a t  was being debated i n  the  media w i t h i n  

Congress elsewhere. Does t h a t  he lp  r e f r e s h  your memory a t  

a l l  about what these funds could have been used f o r ?  

A I j u s t  d o n ' t  remember s p e c i f i c a l l y .  

Q Could you make a general statement o f  what you 



t h i n k  they might have been used f o r ?  

M r .  Tuohey. I mean, t h a t  c a l l s  f o r  speculat ion.  He 

s a i d  he doesn ' t  know. 

M r .  Dotson. Wel l ,  speculat ion i s  no t  an o b j e c t i o n  t h a t  

app l i es  i n  t h i s  proceeding. 

M r .  Tuohey. Wel l ,  I ' m  no t  sure I agree w i t h  t h a t  

statement a t  a l l .  I f  i t  c a l l s  f o r  speculat ion,  I am not  

going t o  l e t  him speculate.  

M r .  Dotson. Wel l ,  what I am asking him i s  based on h i s  

experience a t  A P I .  He has a very c l e a r  understanding o f  what 

A P I  was doing on a day-to-day bas is .  He i s  f a m i l i a r  w i t h  

these issues.  We c e r t a i n l y  see t h a t  i n  h i s  e d i t s  o f  EPA 

repo r t s ,  o f  Cl imate Change Science Program repor ts .  Th is  i s  

no t  an abs t rac t  issue.  

BY MR. DOTSON: 

Q This  i s  an issue t h a t  you have demonstrated 

f a m i l i a r i t y  w i t h  i n  the documents we have reviewed, and I am 

guessing t h a t  you can make a general statement about what you 

t h i n k  A P I  would be funding w i t h  $100,000 i n  vector-borne 

research i n  connect ion w i t h  c l imate .  

M r .  Tuohev. That i s  a f a i r  quest ion,  and i f  he i s  able 

t o  answer i t ,  he can. 

Can you answer i t?  

The Witness. What I remember when I became the team 



leader was t h a t  we had funded Carnegie Mel lon f o r  severa l  

years, and I t h i n k  i t  was Granger Morgan a t  Carnegie Mel lon 

f o r  severa l  years, and i t  was s o r t  o f  a  - -  i t  was no t  a  

s tanding gran t ,  bu t  we had confidence i n  t h e i r  research, and 

I would merely add t h a t  Granger Morgan and h i s  views on 

c l ima te  change science and hea l th  impacts va r ied  over the 

years.  They were no t  constant,  but  I r e c a l l  t h a t  we had 

funded Carnegie Mel lon,  and 1 s o r t  of i n h e r i t e d  t h a t .  I was 

s o r t  o f  t o l d  when I was team leader t h a t  t h a t  i s  something we 

fund, and so i t  i s  i n  the budget there ,  and I d o n ' t  r e a l l y  - -  

you know, we had s c i e n t i s t s  on the M u l t i d i s c i p l i n a r y  Team. 

So we had people who had the r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  Carnegie 

Mel lon who knew what i t  was about, bu t  I d i d n ' t  r e a l l y  ever 

get  invo lved.  I d o n ' t  be l i eve  I ever met M r .  Morgan. He 

d i d n ' t  come and r e p o r t  t o  me on the work he was doing a t  

Carnegie Mel lon.  We had a  M u l t i d i s c i p l i n a r y  Team. The 

s c i e n t i s t s  on the team may have met w i t h  Carnegie Mellon and 

understood, but  I was running, as you can see, a  f a i r l y  broad 

program, and I r e a l l y  was no t  d i r e c t l y  i nvo l ved  w i t h  the  

knowledge o f  the work t h a t  was being funded there.  

M r .  Dotson. Okay. We are done w i t h  t h a t  document, w i t h  

t h a t  e x h i b i t ,  and t h a t  i s  the  end o f  the f i r s t  hour. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q M r .  Cooney, j u s t  t o  re in t roduce mysel f ,  my name i s  



Jenn i fe r  Safavian. I would l i k e  t o  take you back a  l i t t l e  

b i t  w i t h  how we s t a r t e d  w i t h  when you s t a r t e d  a t  CEQ. 

Were you the f i r s t  Chief  o f  S t a f f  a t  CEQ under the  

Bush admin i s t ra t i on?  You sa id  you s t a r t e d  on June 25th. Do 

I have t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A I d i d .  I s t a r t e d  on June 25th and, the chairman 

began, I t h i n k ,  a  week o r  two before I had. We had c a r r i e d  

over, though, the C l i n t o n  admin i s t ra t i on  Chief  o f  S t a f f ,  

Judy - -  I cannot remember her l a s t  name - -  bu t  she stayed and 

acted and cont inued t o  serve as Chief  of S t a f f  o f  the counc i l  

through May, I be l ieve ,  so we had some holdovers a t  CEQ from 

the p r i o r  admin i s t ra t i on .  I a n  Bowles was another person who 

was he ld  over from the admin i s t ra t i on  and cont inued t o  work 

a t  CEQ f o r  severa l  months under the new admin i s t ra t i on .  

Q So you were Chairman Connaughton's f i r s t  c h i e f  o f  

s t a f f ?  

A I was Chairman Connaughton's f i r s t  c h i e f  o f  s t a f f ,  

yes. 

Q Okay. Great. 

I know you k i n d  o f  a l ready genera l l y  descr ibed what your 

job r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  were, bu t  who d i r e c t e d  you? Who t o l d  

you what your j ob  r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  were going t o  be? 

A Wel l ,  M r .  Connaughton was my boss, and he was the 

chai  rman. 

Q So the  two o f  you together k i n d  o f  determined what 



your r o l e  and r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  and d u t i e s  would inc lude? 

A I t  became t h a t  way, bu t  i n i t i a l l y ,  I d i d  what the 

chairman asked me t o  do, and I was assigned work by the 

chairman, and I - -  you know, i t  was a  new job.  I wanted the 

chairman t o  be happy. I was h i s  c h i e f  o f  s t a f f ,  and I was 

t r y i n g  t o  be very at tuned t o  e x a c t l y  what he wanted i n  terms 

o f  s e t t i n g  up the o f f i c e ,  having issues covered. You know, I 

was very l i n k e d  t o  him i n  the i n i t i a l  few months. He l a t e r  

gained confidence i n  me t o  prepare budgets and th ings  l i k e  

t h a t ,  and I d i d  t h a t ,  and I d i d  no t  consu l t  w i t h  him u n t i l  i t  

was a t  the end o f  the process, so - -  bu t  a t  the beginning, we 

worked very c l o s e l y ,  and I was assigned work by the chairman. 

Q Okay. Can you exp la in  t o  me, when you f i r s t  

s t a r t e d ,  how - -  because you mentioned e a r l i e r  t h a t  p a r t  o f  

your r o l e  o r  CEQ's r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  was the p o l i c y ,  the 

Pres ident ' s  c l ima te  change p o l i c y .  So, when you f i r s t  

s t a r t e d  and even throughout your tenure there,  how d i d  you 

know what the P res iden t ' s  c l ima te  change p o l i c y  was? 

A Wel l ,  f o r t u n a t e l y ,  f o r  me, p a r t i c u l a r l y ,  the 

President gave a  major speech on the  c l ima te  change p o l i c y  i n  

the  Rose Garden w i t h  h i s  Cab ine t - l eve l  review group w i t h  

which he had been meeting f o r  severa l  months t o  devise a  

p o l i c y ,  and he gave the p o l i c y  speech on June l l t h ,  2001, and 

i n  con junc t ion  - -  so t h a t  i s  on the White House Web s i t e .  

And i n  con junc t ion  w i t h  g i v i n g  the  speech, the  admin i s t ra t i on  



i ssued a  ve ry  broad p o l i c y  book. 

M r .  Tuohey. Le t  t he  reco rd  r e f l e c t  t he  wi tness i s  

h o l d i n g  a  copy of t he  C l imate  Change Review I n i t i a l  Report  o f  

t h e  P res iden t ,  June l l t h ,  2001, which i s  a  p u b l i c  document. 

I assume counse l  has i t .  

The Witness. And t h i s  i s sue  o f  c l i m a t e  change was 

obv ious l y  a  huge p r i o r i t y  f o r  t h e  new a d m i n i s t r a t i o n  i n  t h e  

s p r i n g  o f  2001. The Pres iden t  assembled a  C a b i n e t - l e v e l  

rev iew.  I t h i n k  t h e r e  were t e n  Cabinet  Sec re ta r i es .  I t h i n k  

they met seven o r  e i g h t  t imes and had economists and 

s c i e n t i s t s  and o t h e r  people b r i e f  them as they  cons idered 

p o l  i cy . 

BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

Q But you were no t  i n v o l v e d  i n  t h a t  process because 

you hadn ' t  s t a r t e d  y e t ?  

A  No, I had n o t  s t a r t e d  y e t .  That  i s  e x a c t l y  r i g h t .  

So, when I came i n  - -  and I would j u s t  add a d d i t i o n a l l y  

t h a t  assembled a t  CEQ was one o f  these in te ragency  ad hoc 

teams, maybe 15 people,  f rom the  d i f f e r e n t  Federa l  agencies 

who were a d v i s i n g  on t he  P r e s i d e n t ' s  p o l i c y  speech t h a t  he 

gave on June l l t h  and were h e l p i n g  t o  prepare and v e t  t h e  

elements o f  t h i s  p o l i c y  book t h a t  he i ssued  on June l l t h .  

They went back t o  t h e i r  agencies, you know, r i g h t  be fo re  I 

a r r i v e d ,  b u t  when I a r r i v e d ,  t h i s  was on my desk. Here i s  



the P res iden t ' s  p o l i c y ,  and - -  

M r .  Tuohey. You d o n ' t  need i t .  I mean, if you want t o  

r e f e r  t o  i t  - -  

The Witness. There i s  one t h i n g  I would r e f e r  t o  

because I t h i n k  i t  i s  re levan t ,  and I would j u s t  o f f e r  i t  

about - -  and t h a t  i s  t h a t  Chapter 3 o f  the p o l i c y  book ta l ked  

about advancing the  science o f  c l ima te  change, and i t  

r e f l e c t e d  i n  g rea t  d e t a i l  the f i n d i n g s  o f  a  Na t iona l  Academy 

o f  Sciences' Report t h a t  the Pres ident ' s  Cab ine t - l eve l  review 

committee had requested, which was d e l i v e r e d  t o  the 

Pres ident ,  you know, I t h i n k  a t  the  end o f  May o r  e a r l y  June, 

bu t  i f  you read Chapter 3 o f  the p o l i c y  book, i t  describes 

and i temizes  very s p e c i f i c a l l y  - -  maybe the re  are 50 s p e c i f i c  

quotes from the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences, i t e m i z i n g  

p r i o r i t y  research areas and fundamental - -  i n  the words o f  

the Na t iona l  Academy o f  Sciences, fundamental s c i e n t i f i c  

u n c e r t a i n t i e s  r e l a t i n g  t o  c l ima te  change, and the President 

embraced those f i n d i n g s  i n  t h i s  p o l i c y  book, and as you w i l l  

see, had many s p e c i f i c  quotes from the Na t iona l  Academy 

Report, and he committed t o  address those u n c e r t a i n t i e s  t h a t  

were i d e n t i f i e d  i n  t h a t  r e p o r t  i n  June 2001, and again, t h i s  

a l l  preceded my coming, bu t  when I came, the t a b l e  was f a i r l y  

w e l l  se t  as t o  the P res iden t ' s  p o l i c y  on science, and h i s  

p r i o r i t i e s  on c l ima te  change science were p r e t t y  w e l l  se t .  



BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q So, t o  f a m i l i a r i z e  y o u r s e l f  w i t h  what the 

Pres ident ' s  p o l i c y  was, you r e f e r r e d  t o  the c l imate  change 

review - -  

A Yes, the i n i t i a l  review r e p o r t  and the speech t h a t  

he gave i n  the  Rose Garden where he spoke a t  l eng th  o f  the 

c l ima te  change science. 

Q And the  Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences' 2001 Report? 

A Yes. 

Q So, through your tenure a t  CEQ, those documents 

t h a t  we j u s t  mentioned, were those ones you continued t o  r e l y  

on and go back t o ,  o r  d i d  o ther  repo r t s  come ou t?  Did th ings  

change? I f  you could,  k i n d  o f ,  you know, educate us on t h a t .  

A Some th ings  changed and evolved because there  i s  

always new s c i e n t i f i c  i n fo rma t ion  emerging, but  I would say 

t h a t  these documents and the p o l i c i e s  se t  f o r t h  i n  these 

documents were foundat iona l  t o  the admin i s t ra t i on .  

Q So no la rge ,  substant ive changes t o  those 

documents? 

A No. 

Q Okay. 

A  These were foundat iona l  guidance f o r  our work i n  

the  White House p o l i c y  shop t o  make sure t h a t  a l l  f u tu re  

e f f o r t s  o f  the  admin i s t ra t i on  t h a t  we were c a l l e d  upon t o  

review were a l i gned  w i t h  the P res iden t ' s  s t a t e d  p r i o r i t i e s .  



Q Okay. 

M r .  Tuohey. Let  the record r e f l e c t  the wi tness has a l so  

r e f e r r e d  t o  a  second document, which i s  the Cl imate Change 

Science o f  the  Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences. That i s  the 

second document he has r e f e r r e d  t o  together  w i t h  the Cl imate 

Change Review. Thank you. 

BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

Q Okay. Can you exp la in  t o  me - -  because I ' v e  got  t o  

t e l l  you t h a t  I have had a  l i t t l e  t r o u b l e  understanding CEQ 

and a l l  o f  the d i f f e r e n t  e n t i t i e s  o r  agencies t h a t  the 

President r e l i e s  on f o r  h i s  c l ima te  change p o l i c y  and the 

science. 

I s  there  some way you could k i n d  o f  walk me through who 

everybody was, where CEQ f i t  i n  t h a t ,  and i f  i t  i s  h e l p f u l  a t  

a l l  - -  and I d o n ' t  know i f  i t  i s  - -  I have got t h i s  cha r t ,  

t h i s  diagram - -  

A Yes. 

Q - -  which you can r e f e r  t o ,  and maybe i t  w i l l  he lp  

you answer a l l  o f  the quest ions,  but  i f  i t  doesn ' t ,  f e e l  f r e e  

t o  ignore i t ,  and I can pass t h a t  ou t .  

M r .  Tuohey. Let the record f u r t h e r  r e f l e c t  t h a t  the 

diagram o f  the  document presented t o  the  witness i s  a  cha r t  

e n t i t l e d  O f f i c e  o f  the President w i t h  subd iv i s ion  

des ignat ions f o r  the Committee on Cl imate Change Science and 

Technology and o ther  r e l a t e d  working groups i n  the Cl imate 



Change Science Program. 

Ms. Safavian. And, i f  we could,  we w i l l  go ahead and 

mark t h a t  as E x h i b i t  7 .  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 7 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q So t h a t  i s  a  broad quest ion I am asking you, bu t  

I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  understand maybe where CEQ f i t s  w i t h i n  the 

admin i s t ra t i on  when i t  comes t o  the P res iden t ' s  c l ima te  

change p o l i c y  and these other  o rgan iza t ions .  

A  Wel l ,  CEQ, a f t e r  the Pres ident  issued h i s  June 11th 

p o l i c y ,  was assigned a  major r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  t o  address the 

issue o f  greenhouse gas m i t i g a t i o n .  I f  you read the 

P res iden t ' s  p o l i c y  o f  June l l t h ,  i t  t a l k e d  a  l o t  about 

s c i e n t i f i c  i n i t i a t i v e s .  I t  ta l ked  a  l o t  about technology 

i n i t i a t i v e s .  I t  t a l k e d  a  l o t  about c e r t a i n  p r i n c i p l e s  f o r  

reducing greenhouse gas emissions, bu t  i t  was not  s p e c i f i c  on 

a  roadmap f o r  reducing greenhouse gas emissions i n  the 

Uni ted States,  and when M r .  Connaughton came i n ,  he was named 

the  Coord inator ,  the Cont inu ing Coordinator,  f o r  the 

Cab ine t - l eve l  review process, and everyone recognized - -  I 

d o n ' t  know - -  t h a t  there  was an a d d i t i o n a l  element o f  

pol icymaking t h a t  needed t o  be developed w i t h i n  the 

admin i s t ra t i on ,  and t h a t  was "what i s  our rou te  t o  reducing 



greenhouse gas emissions"? Chairman Connaughton l e d  t h a t  

e f f o r t  w i t h  Cabinet members and supported by h i s  s t a f f  a  

pol icymaking e f f o r t  t h a t  culminated i n  the  President on 

February 14th,  2002, d e l i v e r i n g  h i s  second major speech on 

g l o b a l  c l i m a t e  change, and t h a t  was the speech i n  which he 

a r t i c u l a t e d  a n a t i o n a l  goal  f o r  the American economy t o  

reduce the greenhouse gas i n t e n s i t y  by 18 percent w i t h i n  a 

decade, and i f  t h a t  - -  

Q Let  me say, j u s t  w i t h  regard t o  t h a t ,  who a l l  - -  I 

mean, CEQ was obv ious ly  i nvo l ved  i n  t h a t ,  and then you sa id  

there  were how many o ther  agencies o r  departments? 

A The Cab ine t - l eve l  review t h a t  the  President had 

convened i n  the sp r ing  o f  2001 remained i n  p lace,  and Jim 

Connaughton, the chairman o f  CEQ, was the p o l i c y  coord inator  

f o r  t h i s  element o f  remaining pol icymaking, and so what he 

would do would be t o  go and v i s i t  i n d i v i d u a l  Cabinet 

Secretar ies and s o l i c i t  t h e i r  i n p u t  on emerging ideas, 

pol icymaking t h a t  we were undertaking, t o  reduce - -  t o  have a 

p lan  t o  reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and i t  was very 

l a b o r - i n t e n s i v e  on h i s  p a r t ,  and i t  was - -  you know, i t  was a 

huge e f f o r t .  

A f t e r  t h a t ,  on February 25th, a f t e r  the  President gave 

h i s  speech on February 14th,  which was another b i g  p o l i c y  

book a r t i c u l a t i n g  the 18-percent greenhouse gas reduct ion 

i n t e n s i t y  goal ,  bu t  i t  a l so  l a i d  out  a  whole host o f  



mechanisms f o r  achiev ing t h a t  n a t i o n a l  goal ,  so i t  had a  l o t  

o f  pol icymaking i n  the p o l i c y  book as w e l l  on m i t i g a t i o n .  

I be l i eve ,  on February 25th, Chairman Connaughton issued 

t h i s  o rgan iza t i ona l  cha r t  t o  the members o f  the  Cab ine t - leve l  

review. There i s  a  cover memorandum which i s  not  here today, 

bu t  i t  was approved a t  a  Cab ine t - leve l  meeting, I be l i eve ,  a t  

the end o f  January 2002, t h a t  t h i s  would be the 

o rgan iza t i ona l  cha r t  f o r  managing c l i m a t e  change p o l i c y  

w i t h i n  the admin i s t ra t i on ,  and Chairman Connaughton issued 

t h i s  o rgan iza t i ona l  cha r t  a t  the end o f  February 2002, and a t  

the  top, i t  s t i l l  has the " O f f i c e  o f  the  Pres ident"  and s o r t  

o f  a  placeholder f o r  the Cab ine t - leve l  review which had been 

coordinated by d i f f e r e n t  o f f i c e s ,  bu t  then i t  set  ou t ,  you 

know - -  

M r .  Tuohey. The cha r t  speaks f o r  i t s e l f .  

The Witness. Yes, the cha r t  speaks f o r  i t s e l f .  I t h i n k  

i t  does anyway, but  CEQ, obv ious ly ,  i s  represented i n  a  

number o f  the boxes w i t h  leadership p o s i t i o n s ,  and - -  

BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q Yes, I do see t h a t ,  but  I d o n ' t  see CEQ l i s t e d  i n  

each box. 

A They are n o t .  CEQ, impor tan t l y ,  was l i s t e d  on the  

top  box, the  Committee on Cl imate Change Science and 

Technology I n t e g r a t i o n .  The CEQ chairman p a r t i c i p a t e s  on 



t h a t  along w i t h  Cabinet Secretar ies,  and then the Interagency 

Working Group on Cl imate Change Science and Technology a l so  

had deputy and undersecretary l e v e l  people i n  var ious Cabinet 

departments w i t h  CEQ a l so  represented i n  t h a t  group, and t h a t  

group was r e a l l y  the  h igher  l e v e l  working group t h a t  would 

guide the implementation o f  the Cl imate Change Science 

Program and the Cl imate Change Technology Programs t h a t  the 

President had announced on June l l t h ,  2001. 

Q So, t o  get  i t  t o  be the P res iden t ' s  p o l i c y ,  i t  

would k i n d  o f  work i t s  way - -  a f t e r  t h i s  was i n i t i a t e d ,  t h i s  

cha r t ,  i t  would work i t s  way up through the  cha r t  so t h a t  the 

Committee on Cl imate Change Science and Technology 

I n t e g r a t i o n  were r e a l l y  the core group o f  people who would 

make those dec is ions? 

A You know, I would say t h a t  90 percent o f  the work 

was done, a c t u a l l y ,  a t  the Deputy Secretary l e v e l .  Although, 

when i t  comes t o  a whole host o f  r e p o r t s  about c l ima te  

change, whether i t  i s  the  Our Changing Planet  Report o r  the 

10-year S t ra teg i c  Plan, those documents were signed by the  

Secretar ies o f  Energy, Commerce and the  P res iden t ' s  White 

House Science Advisor,  and so, you know, they were 

t ransmi t ted  t o  Congress w i t h  a cover l e t t e r  from the 

Secretary and the P res iden t ' s  Science Advisor .  

Q Okay. You referenced the February 25th, 2002, 

p o l i c y  o r  you s ta ted  t h a t  t h a t  was l i k e  the Pres ident ' s  next 



l a r g e  p o l i c y  i n i t i a t i v e .  

A Yes. 

Q What was t h a t  c a l l e d ,  do you remember? 

A I have t h a t  p o l i c y  book r i g h t  here as w e l l ,  and i t  

i s  a v a i l a b l e  on the  White House Web s i t e ,  both the 

P res iden t ' s  speech t h a t  he gave a t  NOAA t h a t  day and h i s  

p o l i c y  book e n t i t l e d ,  U.S.  Cl imate Change Strategy, a  New 

Approach, and i t  was issued February 14th,  2002, but  i t  i s  a  

speech i n  which we issued a  l o t  o f  elements o f  m i t i g a t i o n  

p o l i c y  t o  achieve the Pres ident ' s  n a t i o n a l  goal  o f  reducing 

greenhouse gas i n t e n s i t y  o f  the American economy by 18 

percent by 2012. 

Q Okay. Can you t e l l  me, when i t  came t o  l a r g e  

documents - -  l i k e  you mentioned the s t r a t e g i c  plan, the 

10-year S t r a t e g i c  Plan o r  Our Changing Planet or  the d r a f t  

r e p o r t  on the environment by EPA; when we're t a l k i n g  about 

those major documents, can you t e l l  us, i f  you know, what the 

process was as f a r  as the  review, l i k e ,  you know, the  

t i m e l i n e  o r  the  - -  e x p l a i n  f o r  us how t h a t  came t o  be 

developed, and then, who would review i t ?  When d i d  CEQ get 

invo lved? Do you understand what I ' m  asking? I j u s t  want t o  

know from you i f  you would exp la in  t o  us - -  and we can s t a r t  

w i t h  the s t r a t e g i c  p l a n  because i t  may be d i f f e r e n t  f o r  each 

one i f  t h a t  i s  a  good one t o  s t a r t  w i th .  

A Yes. 



Q For the  s t r a t e g i c  p lan,  can you k i n d  o f  exp la in?  

Now t h a t  was CCSP's 10-year p lan.  

A Yes. 

Q So I know they 've  got t h e i r  own box here and t h e i r  

own people w i t h i n  t h a t  box. 

A Yes. 

Q So maybe - -  I w i l l  j u s t  l e t  you, a c t u a l l y ,  t e l l  me. 

Do you know how t h a t  s t a r t e d  and how t h a t  came t o  be? 

A I t h i n k  - -  you know, I do no t  r e c a l l  s p e c i f i c a l l y ,  

bu t  D r .  Mahoney probably announced i t  t o  the  b lue  box, the 

interagency core group, t h a t  he was probably going t o  

undertake a  10-year s t r a t e g i c  p lan.  

M r .  Tuohev. Let  me j u s t  i n t e r r u p t  f o r  a  second. 

We are t a l k i n g  about the s t r a t e g i c  p lan  - -  l e t  the 

record r e f l e c t  t h a t  we are t a l k i n g  about the s t r a t e g i c  p lan  

f o r  the U.S .  Cl imate Change Science Program, a  repo r t  by the 

Cl imate Change Science Program, CCSP r e f e r r e d  t o  by Counsel, 

and the Subcommittee on Global Change and Research. That i s  

the p l a n  t h a t  i s  being r e f e r r e d  t o ,  and the  date i s  Ju l y  o f  

2003. 

The Witness. Correct .  

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. Your quest ion,  Counsel, i s  f o r  the 

wi tness t o  exp la in  what process was used t o  review t h i s  p lan  

o r  t o  come up w i t h  t h i s  p lan? 

Ms. Safavian. R igh t ,  because we have seen many 



vers ions,  d r a f t  vers ions,  o f  t h i s  p l a n  - -  

The Witness. Yes. 

Ms. Safavian. - -  w i t h  severa l ,  you know, d i f f e r e n t  

dates. 

The Witness. R igh t .  

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q So I am cur ious .  How does i t  get  t o  t h a t  stage? 

How does i t  get  t o  you a lso? I want t o  go back. You 

mentioned the b lue box, and I have seen t h a t  r e f e r r e d  t o ,  and 

I d i d n ' t  know what t h a t  meant before - -  

A Right .  

Q - -  bu t  now, based on E x h i b i t  7, you are saying the 

blue-shaded box on t h i s ?  

A Yes. I t  became w i t h i n  the admin i s t ra t i on  known as 

the "b lue box," and i t  i s  a  box t h a t  met every 6 weeks o r  2 

months t o  go through a  whole host  o f  issues r e l a t e d  t o  g loba l  

c l ima te  change. 

M r .  Tuohey. Let the record r e f l e c t  again t h a t ,  on 

E x h i b i t  Number 7, the b lue box i s  r e f e r r e d  t o  as the 

Interagency Working Group on Cl imate Change Science and 

Technology. That i s  the box w i t h  a  number o f  o rgan iza t ions  

r e f e r r e d  t o  the re in .  

I s  t h a t  what you ' re  t a l k i n g  about? I s  t h a t  what you ' re  

t a l k i n g  about? 



The Witness. Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. Thank you. 

Thank you, Counsel. 

Ms. Safavian. Sure. 

The Witness. On the 10-year S t r a t e g i c  Plan, I t h i n k  

t h a t  t he re  was - -  I r e c a l l ,  you know, a  very e labora te  

process o f  review, p a r t i c u l a r l y  o f  p u b l i c  review. The p lan  

was - -  elements o f  the d r a f t  p lan  were posted on a  Web s i t e  

i n  November o f  2002, and a  major i n t e r n a t i o n a l  workshop was 

h e l d  i n  December o f  2002 here i n  Washington, D . C . ,  a t  which 

1,300 s c i e n t i s t s  from 36 count r ies  attended t o  prov ide 

comments on our d r a f t ,  so i t  was a  very t ransparent  process. 

A lso,  the d r a f t  p lan  was sent t o  the Nat iona l  Academy o f  

Sciences f o r  i t s  review, and they issued t h e i r  op in ion  o f  the 

d r a f t  i n  February o f  2003. So, through the sp r ing  o f  2003, I 

t h i n k  t h a t  the o f f i c e  and D r .  Mahoney and h i s  people were 

working very hard t o  respond t o  the guidance t h a t  they had 

requested and received from the  Na t iona l  Academy o f  Sciences 

and the 1,300 p u b l i c  comments t h a t  were o f f e r e d  a t  t h i s  

workshop; 1,300 p a r t i c i p a n t s  p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  t h i s  workshop, 

but  there  was a  huge volume o f  comments on the d r a f t  

s t r a t e g i c  p lan ,  p u b l i c  comments. 

There was then a  narrower l e v e l  o f  review t h a t  took 

place sometime l a t e r  i n  the sp r ing  o f  2003, t h a t  D r .  Mahoney 

i n i t i a t e d ,  which preceded what we c a l l e d  the " fo rmal  OMB 



1 review." When OMB takes a  document, i t  i s  genera l l y  a t  i t s  

2  f i n a l  stage. They c i r c u l a t e  i t  ou t  t o  any agency a f fec ted ,  

3 r e a l l y ,  by the  contents o f  the document. So, i n  t h i s  case, 

4 i t  was probably sent out  t o  17 agencies f o r  t h e i r  formal 

5 review and comments on the p lan,  and a t  the  same t ime, was 

6 sent t o  probably 5 separate White House o f f i c e s  and other  

7  White House s t a f f ,  but  i t  was sent ou t  very  broadly by OMB 

8 f o r  comment. OMB c o l l e c t e d  the comments from a l l  o f  these 

9 i n d i v i d u a l s  and, from what I understand, gave a  synthesized 

10 summary o f  a l l  o f  the comments t h a t  had been received i n  

11 interagency review t o  D r .  Mahoney, who was the Ass is tan t  

12 Secretary o f  Commerce fo r  Oceans and Atmosphere and i n  charge 

13 o f  the Cl imate Change Science Program, and D r .  Mahoney took 

14 those comments, and he e i t h e r  accepted changes o r  d i d  no t  

15 accept changes, bu t  he made the f i n a l  r e s o l u t i o n  on the 

16 content o f  the p lan  w i t h  the b e n e f i t  o f  the  comments t h a t  he 

17 had received from the agencies and the  White House o f f i c e s ,  

18 and i n  the case o f  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan ,  a c t u a l l y ,  because i t  

19 was a  very h i g h - p r o f i l e  document and one had no t  been done i n  

20 a  long t ime even though the s t a t u t e  c a l l e d  f o r  i t ,  he 

21 requi red o f  the agencies t h a t  they fo rmal ly  s ign  a  

22 concurrence sheet i n  the f i n a l  r e p o r t  before i t  was issued i n  

23 Ju l y  o f  2003, and you know, I have been rev iewing the 

24 documents t h a t  you have i n  your possession t h a t  CEQ has given 

25 you, and I see t h a t  I forma l l y  concurred f o r  CEQ on the 



issuance o f  the f i n a l  r e p o r t  i n  J u l y  2003, bu t  CEQ, along 

w i t h  a  host  o f  a f f e c t e d  Federal  agencies and o ther  White 

House o f f i c e s ,  provided comments s o r t  o f  throughout the 

process. I t  was l i k e  a  year - long process from beginning t o  

end - -  the p u b l i c  workshops, the p u b l i c  comments, the 

Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences' review, and then another round 

o f  i n t e r n a l  reviews before i t  was f i n a l l y  publ ished - -  bu t  

t h a t  was our process. 

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q So were you responsib le  a t  CEQ f o r  rev iewing t h i s  

document? 

A I shared r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  w i t h  Bryan Hannegan, who 

jo ined our s t a f f  i n  the sp r ing  o f  2003. He, h imse l f ,  was a 

Ph.D. I t h i n k  he has h i s  Ph.D. i n  Atmospheric Chemistry o r  

something l i k e  t h a t ,  bu t  he i s ,  you know, a  c l ima te  s c i e n t i s t  

i n  every sense, and he and I both commented on the s t r a t e g i c  

plan, and we coordinated our comments back t o  OMB. 

Q So, when you say the  two o f  you worked on i t  and 

you coordinated your comments, d i d  you put  them together and 

send them o f f  o r  d i d  yours go up on your own and h i s  went up 

under h i s  name? 

A I n  some cases, I see t h a t  he sent up i n d i v i d u a l  

comments, and I sent up i n d i v i d u a l  comments a t  d i f f e r e n t  

stages i n  the process, bu t  a t  o ther  stages, you w i l l  see 



j o i n t  typed comments t h a t  synthesized bo th  o f  our comments, 

and I t h i n k  - -  my r e c o l l e c t i o n  i s  t h a t  he k i n d l y  typed them 

and prepared them. He took my comments and h i s  and made them 

i n t o  one and gave them back t o  the agency, t o  the OMB. 

Q And when d i d  CEQ o r  you and M r .  Hannegan f i r s t  get  

invo lved w i t h  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan? A t  what stage d i d  you 

f i r s t  rece ive  i t  t o  prov ide your comments? 

A I c a n ' t  r e a l l y  remember the  exact dates. I n  the 

sp r ing  o f  2003. 

Q So i t  was a f t e r  the p u b l i c  comments? 

A Yes. There were a whole round - -  there  was a whole 

round o f  interagency review a f t e r  the p u b l i c  workshop and the 

Nat iona l  Academy of Sciences review. There were a couple o f  

d r a f t s  t h a t  evolved i n  the  sp r ing  o f  2003 on which we both 

worked. What I am t r y i n g  t o  r e c a l l  i s  whether CEQ commented 

on the i n i t i a l  d r a f t  s t r a t e g i c  p lan  i n  the f a l l  o f  2002, and 

I cannot remember i f  we d i d  o r  no t .  

Q You c a n ' t  remember what the f i r s t  d r a f t  was t h a t  

you saw o f  i t ?  

A Yes, I d o n ' t  exac t l y  remember. 

Q How q u i c k l y  d i d  the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences 

get  back t h e i r  comments? 

A They got  them back p r e t t y  q u i c k l y  i f  our - -  i f  the 

d r a f t  p lan  was posted on the Web s i t e  i n  November o f  2002 and 

the Na t iona l  Academy o f  Sciences - -  I t h i n k  they gave a 



recommendation - -  they gave t h e i r  feedback on the d r a f t  i n  

February 2003, and then - -  

Q I ' m  so r ry .  Were they s p e c i f i c  d e t a i l s ,  I mean 

comments, o r  was i t  j u s t  a general recommendation? I mean, 

can you j u s t  exp la in?  

A Oh, no. I t  was q u i t e  d e t a i l e d  from the Nat iona l  

Academy o f  Sciences. You know, as I r e c a l l ,  they 

commented - -  the document, i t s e l f ,  was very long,  and they 

commented on many dimensions and aspects o f  the d r a f t  p lan,  

and you know, I t h i n k  t h a t  the program t r i e d  very hard t o  

respond t o  the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences' feedback, and i n  

the end, the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences welcomed the f i n a l  

p lan  t h a t  was issued i n  J u l y  o f  2003. They supported the 

f i n a l  p lan,  so they took a review o f  the f i n a l  p lan  as w e l l  

and e s s e n t i a l l y  endorsed i t .  

Q And, a f t e r ,  you sa id  OMB would send around - -  when 

i t  got  c lose r  t o  the f i n a l  vers ion  o f  t h i s  p lan,  they would 

send i t  back around t o  everybody who was a f f e c t e d  by i t  f o r  

comments. 

A Yes. 

Q Then those comments were sent back t o  OMB o r  t o  

D r .  Mahoney? 

A They were sent back t o  OMB, and then, I t h i n k ,  OMB 

t ransmi t ted  them t o  D r .  Mahoney f o r  h i s  f i n a l  review and the 

dec i s ion  as t o  whether t o  i nc lude  comments o r  t o  no t  inc lude 



comments. 

Q So the  f i n a l  say on whether a comment was going t o  

be inc luded o r  an e d i t  was going t o  be made was 

D r .  Mahoney's? 

A I t  was because he was the D i r e c t o r  o f  the Cl imate 

Change Science Program i n  t h i s  bottom o rgan iza t i ona l  box t h a t  

I am h o l d i n g  up. You know, i t  i s  the same o rgan iza t i ona l  

cha r t  t h a t  we've been t a l k i n g  about, but  he was the D i r e c t o r  

o f  the program. He, h imse l f ,  o f  course, i s  an eminent 

s c i e n t i s t ,  and he had the f i n a l  decision-making on the 

content o f  the  p lan.  

Now, as I said ,  i n  t h i s  case, he d i d  ask every agency 

f o r  a formal  concurrence, and I assume, because the p lan  was 

issued, t h a t  he got  the formal  concurrence from every agency. 

He got i t  from our agency. 

Q And would t h a t  be every agency l i s t e d  i n  t h i s  box, 

the Cl imate Change Science Program box on E x h i b i t  7? 

A You know, I t h i n k  i t  would be - -  I t h i n k  i t  would 
,- 

be even more agencies than t h a t  - -  

Q Oh. 

A - -  because, r e a l l y ,  the 10-year S t ra teg i c  Plan 

es tab l i shes  research p r i o r i t i e s  f o r  a whole host o f  agencies 

and subagencies, and so, I t h i n k  - -  I b e l i e v e  t h a t  i t  was a 

broader review than j u s t  these agencies i n  t h i s  box. I t h i n k  

a l o t  o f  agencies were a f f e c t e d  by t h i s  p lan  and would have 



reviewed i t .  

Q Okay. Keeping w i t h  the  s t r a t e g i c  p lan ,  I t h i n k  

what I would l i k e  t o  show you r i g h t  now, t h i s  i s  E x h i b i t  8.  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 8 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q Mr. Cooney, what t h i s  i s  - -  as you can see from the 

cover o f  i t ,  i t  i s  a memo from Rick P i l t z ,  dated June l s t ,  

2005, t o  the U.S .  Cl imate Change Science Program agency 

p r i n c i p a l s .  

A Yes. 

Q Let  me j u s t  s t a r t  by ask ing you: Have you ever 

seen t h i s  document before? 

A I t h i n k  I have. I t h i n k  I read i t  once. 

Q Okay. Was t h a t  because i t  was sent t o  you 

i n i t i a l l y ?  Because I do not  see your name on here, so - -  

A No, i t  was no t  sent t o  me. 

M r .  Tuohey. Do you want t o  ask him when he f i r s t  saw 

i t ?  

Ms. Safavian. Sure. 

BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

Q When d i d  you f i r s t  see i t ?  

A I t  was i n  the summer o f  2005. I t h i n k  i t  was on a 



1 Web s i t e  o r  something. 

2 Q We are no t  going t o  go over t h i s  whole th ing ,  so 

3 I ' m  no t  going t o  ask you t o  read the whole th ing ,  but  i f  you 

4 would s t a r t  w i th ,  on Page 10, I ' m  j u s t  going t o  look  a t  a few 

5 o f  the paragraphs, and we w i l l  go over j u s t  a couple o f  the 

6 paragraphs, and i t  i s  s t a r t i n g  on Page 10, the second 

7 paragraph. Are you there? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q Okay. I t  s t a r t s  w i th ,  " t h e  Execut ive O f f i c e  o f  the  

10 Pres ident . "  Do you see t h a t ?  

11 A Yes. 

12 Q Okay. I mean, if you want, why d o n ' t  you go ahead 

13 and j u s t  read t h a t  paragraph r e a l  qu ick .  

14 A Okay: S t a r t i n g  i n  2002 - -  

15 M r .  Tuohey. To y o u r s e l f .  

16 The Witness. Do you want me t o  read a l l  o f  the 

17 paragraphs o r  j u s t  t h a t  one paragraph? 

18 

19 BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

20 Q We w i l l  j u s t  do i t  paragraph by paragraph. 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q So, w i t h  regard t o  t h i s  f i r s t  paragraph - -  

23 A Yes. 

24 Q - -  f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  do you know who Rick P i l t z  i s  o r  

25 was a t  the t ime? 



A I do. We were i n  many meetings together  o r  i n  a  

number o f  meetings . 
M r .  Tuohey. They asked who he was, no t  what you d i d  

w i t h  him. Who was he? 

BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

Q Do you know who he was back i n  t h i s  t ime o f  June o f  

2005? 

A He had resigned from Federal se rv i ce  by then. 

Q And before  he resigned, where was he? 

A He was i n  the Cl imate Change Science Program 

O f f i c e .  

Q As what? 

A I d o n ' t  r e a l l y  know what h i s  exact t i t l e  was, bu t  I 

know t h a t  he had p r i n c i p a l  - -  I understood he had p r i n c i p a l  

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  prepar ing the annual budget r e p o r t ,  Our 

Changing Planet .  

Q And do you know beyond t h a t  what h i s  

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  inc luded? 

A I d o n ' t .  

Q Okay. Do you know who he repor ted  t o ?  

A I be l i eve  he repor ted t o  Richard Moss, who was the  

d i r e c t o r  o f  the o f f i c e ,  and Richard Moss, i n  t u r n ,  repor ted 

t o  D r .  Mahoney. The o f f i c e  repor ted t o  D r .  Mahoney. 

Q Okay. Back t o  t h i s  f i r s t  paragraph t h a t  I asked 



you t o  read, i t  says i n  here t h a t  i t  i s  r e f e r r i n g  t o  you, 

t h a t  you were placed a t  the t a b l e  a t  CCSP p r i n c i p a l  meetings 

as the  CEQ l i a i s o n .  

Were you a t  such meetings? I ' m  no t  even sure what he 

means by " p r i n c i p a l s  meetings." Do you know what he i s  

r e f e r r i n g  t o ?  

M r .  Tuohey. Read the f i r s t  sentence o f  t h a t  document. 

Read the f i r s t  sentence o f  t h a t  paragraph. Yes. 

The Witness. The Executive O f f i c e  - 

M r .  Tuohey. No, t o  y o u r s e l f .  Read i t  t o  you rse l f ,  and 

then answer the quest ion.  

The Witness. Okay. 

M r .  Tuohey. Your quest ion,  Counsel, was what was t h i s  

t a b l e  a t  which CCSP p r i n c i p a l s  met? 

Ms. Safavian. R igh t .  

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q I am cur ious ,  M r .  Cooney, f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  what he i s  

r e f e r r i n g  t o  when M r .  P i l t z  says, "CCSP p r i n c i p a l s  meetings." 

A I do. There were - -  from the agencies, I would say 

every 2 months, t he re  was - -  I mean, t h i s  i s  my r e c o l l e c t i o n .  

There was a meeting o f  p r i n c i p a l s  t o  discuss the Science 

Program a t  the Cl imate Change Science Program O f f i c e  on 

Pennsylvania Avenue. 

Q And would these inc lude  the  members - -  again, 



r e f e r r i n g  back t o  the  cha r t ,  the o r g  c h a r t ,  the p r i n c i p a l s  

are the ones from the members o f  these d i f f e r e n t  departments? 

A Yes. People would come from those departments, and 

they would a l so  come from, you know, White House o f f i c e s .  

Q And so were you present a t  these meetings? 

A I was a t  a few. 

Q But no t  r o u t i n e l y ?  

A I t h i n k ,  when Bryan Hannegan jo ined our s t a f f  i n ,  I 

t h i n k  i t  was, the  sp r ing  o f  2003, he began t o  r o u t i n e l y  

a t tend those meetings, and I d i d  no t  anymore. 

Q Why i s  t h a t ?  

A Wel l ,  he had a great  i n t e r e s t ,  f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  and 

he, h imse l f ,  you know, had a very s t rong background on 

c l ima te  change science, so i t  was n a t u r a l  f o r  him t o  be 

i n t e r e s t e d  and t o  want t o  at tend those meetings, and I was 

g lad  t o  be - -  I was g lad t h a t  he attended. 

Q Could you say how many times you a c t u a l l y  attended 

these types o f  meetings? 

A I d o n ' t  r e a l l y  r e c a l l  the exact number, bu t  

maybe - -  I j u s t  d o n ' t  r e c a l l  the exact number, but  they were 

occasional ,  and sometimes I would go and sometimes I would 

n o t .  I d o n ' t  r e a l l y  remember. 

Q And con t inu ing  on w i t h  t h a t  paragraph, he, 

M r .  P i l t z ,  says i n  here t h a t  the CEQ Chief  o f  S t a f f ,  meaning 

you, removed your name from the masthead o f  CCSP pub l i ca t i ons  



as o f  the l a s t  e d i t i o n  o f  Our Changing Planet and designated 

a new CEQ l i a i s o n  t o  the p r i n c i p a l s  committee. 

A That j u s t  goes t o  the  i n s i d e  cover, bu t  here i s  an 

Our Changing Planet Report and who i s  named from the agencies 

on the i n s i d e  cover,  and s ince Bryan Hannegan was a t tend ing  

the meetings, h i s  name went on the i n s i d e  cover o f  the r e p o r t  

because he was the one who was a t tend ing  the meetings and 

r e a l l y  working i n  a  d e t a i l e d  way w i t h  the  program by t h a t  

p o i n t .  

Q You sa id  he s t a r t e d  a t tend ing  those meetings i n  

2003, r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And t h i s  repo r t  was publ ished i n  2004 according t o  

M r .  P i l t z ?  

A I guess, but you prepared the  budget f o r  2004 and 

2003, so I am not  exac t l y  sure o f  the chronology, bu t  Our 

Changing Planet i s  a  budgetary - -  i t  a supplement t o  the  

submission o f  the admin i s t ra t i on ' s  budget f o r  c l ima te  change 

research. 

Q Then he goes on t o  say, "However, he," meaning 

you - -  again, t h i s  i s  r e p o r t i n g  back t o  M r .  P i l t z '  memo - -  

"remains engaged w i t h  the program, and CEQ cont inues t o  p lay  

an impor tant  r o l e  as a White House agent i n  CCSP governance." 

I s  t h a t  an accurate d e s c r i p t i o n  o f  CEQ's r o l e  o f  CCSP? 

A I t h i n k  i t  i s  h i s  op in ion.  



Q Wel l ,  what was CEQ's r o l e  w i t h  CCSP? How d i d  the 

two o f  you i n t e r r e l a t e ?  

A The pr imary r o l e  o f  CEQ i n  these meetings was i n  

ensur ing t h a t  the  budget i m p l i c a t i o n s  o f  what was being 

planned were understood and accurate and agreed t o .  OMB was 

there,  so we wanted t o  be sending up accurate budgets t o  

C a p i t o l  H i l l  t h a t  accura te ly  r e f l e c t e d  the program. 

Also,  we would deal  w i th ,  you know, j u s t  very  o rd inary  

types o f  management issues l i k e ,  when do we t h i n k  we're going 

t o  be able t o  p u b l i s h  the Our Changing Planet Report.  One 

year,  f o r  example, they combined repo r t s  because we were 

prepar ing  the 10-year S t ra teg i c  Plan, so we submitted a  

2-year r e p o r t ,  bu t  they were dec is ions  l i k e  t h a t  - -  managing 

the development and the schedul ing o f  products,  and when are 

we going t o  have the  workshop. 

Another agenda i t em I remember was should we b r i n g  i n  

the Na t iona l  Academy o f  Sciences t o  f o r m a l l y  review the 

10-year p lan .  Everyone agreed t h a t  we should. Those k inds  

o f  quest ions would come up a t  these meetings. 

Q Okay. I f  you w i l l ,  take a  l ook  a t  the  next 

paragraph o f  M r .  P i l t z '  memo, s t a r t i n g  w i t h  number 1, t h a t  

paragraph, please. 

A Page l o ?  

Q Yes, we' re  s t i l l  on Page 10. I f  you w i l l ,  j u s t  

read t h a t  q u i c k l y  t o  y o u r s e l f .  



1 A Okay. 

2 M r .  Tuohey. While he i s  reading t h a t ,  Counsel, are you 

3 going t o  show him t h i s  memo dated October 28th o r  no t?  

4 Ms. Safavian. I w i l l .  

5 M r .  Tuohey. Okay. Have you read i t ?  

6 The Witness. What i s  your quest ion? 

7 Ms. Safavian. I haven' t  asked you one y e t .  I j u s t  

8 wanted t o  g i v e  you a chance t o  read i t .  

9 Mr. Tuohey. Have you read i t ?  

10 The Witness. Yes. 

11 Ms. Safavian. Let  me a t  the same t ime pass out what I 

12 guess i s  Number 9, E x h i b i t  9. 

13 [ E x h i b i t  No. 9  

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

16 BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

17 Q M r .  Cooney, the E x h i b i t  9  t h a t  I j u s t  handed you 

18 has a fax cover sheet t h a t  i s  from you t o  E r i n  - -  he lp  me 

19 pronounce her name. 

20 A Wuchte. 

2 1 Q Wuchte a t  OMB? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q I t  says t h a t  you have at tached CEQ's comments on 

24 the s t r a t e g i c  p lan .  Would you j u s t  take a very qu ick l ook  a t  

25 t h i s ,  and t e l l  me, i s  t h i s  your handwr i t ing  t h a t  we see on 



t h i s  document? 

A I t  i s .  

Q And does t h i s  r e f r e s h  your r e c o l l e c t i o n  t h a t  you 

had seen a d r a f t  o f  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan  - -  

A Yes. 

Q - -  e a r l i e r  than, I t h i n k ,  you o r i g i n a l l y  had 

thought you had? 

A Yes. Yes. I t  r e f l e c t s  t h a t  I reviewed i t  before 

the d r a f t  was released i n  November. 

Q And do you know - -  
M r .  Tuohey. November o f  what year? 

The Witness. 2002. 

M r .  Tuohey. A l l  r i g h t .  

BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q And do you know what ve rs ion  t h i s  would have been? 

I n  o ther  words, i s  t h i s  the i n i t i a l  p l a n  t h a t  was being 

passed around t o  everybody? Was t h i s  before the p u b l i c  

comments? Do you have any idea what vers ion  t h i s  i s ?  

Because I know there  are many vers ions o f  t h i s .  

A I t  says on the cover l e t t e r  CEQ's comments on a 

d r a f t .  The formal  d r a f t  was posted on the Web s i t e  a t  the 

end of'November 2002, so i t  would have been a month before 

the formal d r a f t  was posted f o r  the p u b l i c  workshop we had. 

The formal d r a f t s  were publ ished on Web s i t e s  f o r  reviewers 



i n  November 2002, and the workshop was i n  December 2002. 

Q Okay. 

A So what I am puzz l i ng  over i s  why I sent my 

comments t o  E r i n  Wuchte a t  OMB. I d o n ' t  know i f  OMB had a 

process a t  t h a t  t ime f o r  review. I d o n ' t  know i f  t h i s  was an 

interagency, a formal  interagency, review t h a t  was occur r ing  

a t  t h a t  t ime.  

Q Wel l ,  i f  you w i l l  t u r n  t o  the  next page, we have 

t h i s  double - -  o r  your copy i s  - -  

A Yes. 

Q I t  looks l i k e  i t  was sent t o  you - -  

A Okay. 

Q - -  from D r .  Mahoney. 

A Okay. I t  was sent t o ,  yes, the th ree  White House 

o f f i c e s .  Yes. 

Q So does t h i s  he lp - -  

A Yeah. 

Q - -  you understand - -  

A Okay. 

Q - -  why you were rece iv ing  t h i s  a t  t h i s  p o i n t ?  

A Yes, i t  does. Maybe E r i n  Wuchte was c o l l e c t i n g  

comments f o r  a l l  th ree  White House o f f i c e s .  I j u s t  c o u l d n ' t  

f i g u r e  ou t  why I sent the comments t o  her ,  but - -  

Q As we k i n d  o f  j u s t  f l i p  through t h i s ,  you know, you 

do have e d i t s  on many o f  the pages here. I mean some pages 



have more e d i t s  than o thers ,  and we can go through a  couple 

o f  those. I am not  going t o  go through every e d i t  i n  t h i s  

document o r  we would be here u n t i l  tomorrow, bu t  going back 

t o  M r .  P i l t z '  memo, you know, he i s  c la im ing  t h a t  you had 

about 200 t e x t  changes, and a  l o t  o f  them r e l a t e d  t o  the 

quest ions o f  c l ima te  science and t h a t  you were a l t e r i n g  the 

d r a f t  as i t  had been developed by the Federal Science Program 

p ro fess iona ls ,  and I am j u s t  reading from h i s  memo. 

He i s  a l so  saying, "Taken i n  the aggregate, the changes 

had a  cumulat ive e f f e c t  o f  s h i f t i n g  the tone and content o f  

an already q u i t e  cau t ious l y  worded d r a f t  t o  create an 

enhanced sense o f  s c i e n t i f i c  unce r ta in t y  about c l imate  change 

and i t s  i m p l i c a t i o n s . "  

M r .  Cooney - -  

M r .  Tuohey. You were reading from Subparagraph 1 on 

Page 10 - -  

Ms. Safavian. Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. - -  o f  E x h i b i t  Number 9? 

Ms. Safavian. 8.  

M r .  Tuohey. 9. 

Ms. Safavian. 8. 

M r .  Tuohey. No. I t ' s  Number 9. 

Ms. Safavian. This  i s  8 .  

M r .  Tuohev. I ' m  reading from Document Number 9. 

Ms. Safavian. This  i s  8 .  



M r .  Tuohev. I apologize.  I had t h i s  marked as 

E x h i b i t  8. 

Ms. Safavian. Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. E x h i b i t  8, Page 10, Subparagraph 1. 

Thank you. I apologize.  That i s  what y o u ' r e  reading from? 

Ms. Safavian. Cor rec t .  

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. 

Ms. Safavian. I am reading j u s t  from t h a t .  

BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q So, M r .  Cooney, my quest ion t o  you i s :  

I s  t h a t  accurate? Was t h a t  your i n t e n t i o n  when you were 

reviewing t h i s  d r a f t  which i s  E x h i b i t  9? 

A No. 

Q What was your i n t e n t i o n  when you were reviewing 

t h i s  d r a f t ?  

A I t  was t o  engage D r .  Mahoney as he requested our 

comments, t o  engage him i n  our view o f  the  d r a f t  w i t h  the 

hope t h a t  he might consider our view. I n  many cases, I was 

t r y i n g  t o  a l i g n  the d r a f t  w i t h  the P res iden t ' s  own re l i ance  

on the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences' Report i n  June o f  2001 

and w i t h  the s p e c i f i c  u n c e r t a i n t i e s  t h a t  were i d e n t i f i e d  i n  

t h a t  repo r t  and w i t h  many o f  the  u n c e r t a i n t i e s  t h a t  were 

i temized i n  the p o l i c y  book t h a t  was issued on June l l t h ,  

2001. 



Q Jus t ,  so I ' m  c l e a r ,  are you t r y i n g  t o  say t h a t  you 

were rev iewing t h i s  w i t h  an eye towards ensur ing t h a t  i t  

conformed t o  the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences' Report and the 

P res iden t ' s  Cl imate Change - -  I f o r g e t  the  name o f  i t .  

A Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. Cl imate Change Strategy.  

The Witness. I learned - -  you know, no t  every comment 

t i e s  back t o  the  Na t iona l  Academy. Some are j u s t  my own 

thoughts and quest ions o f  D r .  Mahoney, bu t  they were o f f e r e d  

i n  good f a i t h ,  and I d o n ' t  know how he resolved them. He 

resolved them i n  one way o r  another. 

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q So you do no t  know - -  when you sent these comments 

o f f ,  you do no t  know i n  the end what happened w i t h  your e d i t s  

o r  w i t h  your suggestions? 

A I d i d  no t  - -  I do not  r e c a l l  s o r t  o f  t r a c k i n g  i t  

a l l  the way through t o  see whether i t  was r e f l e c t e d  i n  the 

f i n a l  d r a f t  t h a t  they had the workshops on. 

Q Did  D r .  Mahoney o r  anyone from OMB come back t o  you 

and quest ion any o f  your e d i t s  o r  ask you t o  f u r t h e r  exp la in  

them? 

A D r .  Mahoney and I would t a l k  on occasion, and so - -  

but  I d o n ' t  s p e c i f i c a l l y  r e c a l l  a  conversat ion where he 

c a l l e d  me about these comments, bu t  we would t a l k .  



Q But your e d i t s ,  these comments, D r .  Mahoney could 

have taken o r  no t?  

A Cor rec t .  

Q Going back t o  M r .  P i l t z '  memo, he i s  t r y i n g  t o  say 

t h a t  what you were t r y i n g  t o  do and what o the rs  were t r y i n g  

t o  do i s  emphasize s c i e n t i f i c  u n c e r t a i n t i e s .  I s  t h a t  what 

you were t r y i n g  t o  do w i t h  your e d i t s  i n  t h i s  document? 

A Wel l ,  what M r .  P i l t z  has w r i t t e n  are h i s  op in ions.  

I wasn' t  - -  

M r .  Tuohey. The quest ion was were you t r y i n g  t o  

emphasize s c i e n t i f i c  uncer ta in ty .  

The Witness. Only t o  the ex ten t  t h a t  i t  had been 

emphasized by the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences, i t s e l f  . 

15 BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q And then towards the end o f  t h i s  paragraph, 

M r .  P i l t z  says, t o  h i s  knowledge, " t h i s  CEQ markup," t h i s  

document t h a t  we are t a l k i n g  about, "was no t  shared w i t h  o r  

v e t t e d  by CCSP p r i n c i p a l s  o r  CCSP agency science program 

managers." I s  t h a t  your understanding? 

A I d o n ' t  know whether i t  was. I f  you look a t  the  

cover l e t t e r ,  D r .  Mahoney i s  asking f o r  the  views o f  a few 

o f f i c e s ,  and he i s  not  sending i t  ou t .  He doesn ' t  appear t o  

be sending i t  out  f o r  a wider review, so - -  

Q But even though your cover l e t t e r  t o  t h i s  i s  going 



t o  OMB, i t  i s  your understanding t h a t  these e d i t s  went t o  

CCSP o r  went t o  D r .  Mahoney? 

A  They went back t o  D r .  Mahoney because he i s  the one 

who had requested them. Yes. 

Q I t h i n k  maybe we might l ook  a t  j u s t  a  couple o f  

your e d i t s  i n  E x h i b i t  9. 

A Okay. 

Q I f  y o u ' l l  l ook  on what, I guess, i s  a t  the bottom 

- -  numbered Page 4 ;  i t  i s  r e a l l y  the f i r s t  page. 

M r .  Tuohey. The page numbered 4 o r  the f o u r t h  page? 

Ms. Safavian. I t  says "Page Number 4"  on the bottom, 

but  i t  i s  not  the f o u r t h  page. I t  i s  the f i r s t  page o f  what 

looks l i k e  the p lan .  

M r .  Tuohev. R igh t .  

BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

Q I f  you w i l l  l ook  on the bottom o f f  t o  the s ide,  you 

say, "The NRC e laborated on t h i s  p o i n t , "  and you've got  i n  

brackets ,  "see A ,  next  page," and i t  looks l i k e  on the next 

page you've got something t h a t  looks  l i k e  "A i n s e r t . "  

Can you exp la in  t h i s  t o  us, p lease? 

A  Yes. I thought i t  was impor tant  t h a t  when the 

program ta l ked  about the  connect ion between the observed 

warming i n  t h i s  century  and human a c t i v i t i e s  t h a t  i t  f u l l y  

cover what the Na t iona l  Academy had s a i d  on i t ,  and you know, 



t he re  i s  one sentence i n  t h i s  d r a f t  t h a t  I thought was very 

impor tant .  The i n s e r t  t h a t  I was o f f e r i n g  was a very 

impor tant  element o f  the  Nat iona l  Academy's Report, which 

sa id  t h a t  a  causal  connection between the  observed warming i n  

t h i s  century and human a c t i v i t i e s  cannot be unequivocal ly  

es tab l i shed because we d o n ' t  understand w i t h  enough 

confidence the  range o f  n a t u r a l  v a r i a b i l i t y  i n  c l imate ,  and 

i f  we are going t o  have a  10-year s t r a t e g i c  research p lan,  I 

thought i t  impor tant  t o  have the f u l l  view o f  the Na t iona l  

Academy on t h a t  c r i t i c a l  p o i n t  i f  we are going t o  be s e t t i n g  

the tone f o r  the program f o r  the next 10 years,  and I t h i n k  

i t  - -  I w i l l  leave i t  a t  t h a t .  

Q Okay, and so t h i s  i n s e r t  - -  t h i s  i s  d i r e c t l y  from 

the National. Academy o f  Sciences' Report? 

A I t  i s  d i r e c t .  Yes, i t  a  d i r e c t  copy from the 

Na t iona l  Academy o f  Sciences, and i t  i s  under the capt ion ,  as 

you can see, o f ,  The E f f e c t  o f  Human A c t i v i t i e s .  That i s  

where they take on - -  they purpor t  t o  take on s p e c i f i c a l l y  

the  l i nkage  between observed warming and human a c t i v i t i e s ,  

and I thought i t  was impor tant  t h a t  the  p l a n  r e f l e c t  t h e i r  

f u l l  view on t h a t  p o i n t .  

Q And do you know whether o r  no t  t h i s  was 

incorporated i n t o  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan? 

A I d o n ' t .  

Q I f  you then w i l l  f l i p  t o  what i s  labe led  a t  the 



bottom, Page 20 - -  

A Okay. 

Q - -  do you see t h a t ?  

A Yes. 

Q There i s  i n  t h e  m idd le  o f  t h e  page a  paragraph 

where you have c ross -ou ts  s t a r t i n g  on l i n e  17.  

Do you see t h a t ?  

A Yes. 

Q I f  you w i l l ,  j u s t  take a  q u i c k  l o o k  a t  t h a t  because 

I would l i k e  you t o  e x p l a i n  - -  

M r .  Tuohey. Would you l i k e  him t o  read t h e  sentence he 

crossed o u t ?  

Ms. Safavian.  Yes, and then,  o f  course,  h i s  comments on 

t h e  s i d e  so he can e x p l a i n  t h a t .  

M r .  Tuohey. Go on. 

The Witness. Okay. 

M r .  Tuohey. Have you read i t ?  

The Witness. I ' v e  read i t .  

M r .  Tuohey. J e n n i f e r ,  i s  t h e r e  a  ques t ion?  

Ms. Safav ian.  Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. 

BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q Could you e x p l a i n  why you crossed o u t  these couple  

sentences and your comments on t h e  s i d e  t he re?  



A Yes. I f  you read the  sentences t h a t  remain i n  the  

paragraph t h a t  were no t  crossed ou t  and the  next sec t ion ,  

which i d e n t i f i e s  f i v e  s p e c i f i c  research needs w i t h  respect t o  

the impact o f  c l i m a t e  change i n  the A r c t i c ,  they speak t o  the 

need f o r  fundamental s c i e n t i f i c  research before we can speak 

d e f i n i t i v e l y  t o  impacts t h a t  w i l l  occur. So, i f  you read 

t h a t  whole paragraph and read the research needs, the  

language t h a t  remains i s  what you would expect i n  a  research 

p lan.  These are the fundamental t h ings  - -  i c e  th ickness, 

reducing the u n c e r t a i n t i e s ,  and the  cu r ren t  understanding o f  

the r e l a t i o n s h i p s  between c l ima te  and A r c t i c  hydrology i s  

c r i t i c a l  f o r  eva lua t i ng  p o t e n t i a l  impacts o f  c l ima te  change, 

f o r  example. I ' m  j u s t  reading the  language t h a t  was l e f t .  

There were fundamental, bas ic  research needs t h a t  needed t o  

be undertaken be fore  you could speak d e f i n i t i v e l y  t o  impacts, 

bu t  they began the  sentences by saying there  w i l l  be 

s i g n i f i c a n t  s h i f t s  t h a t  w i l l  have s i g n i f i c a n t  impacts on 

n a t i v e  populat ions.  They spoke t o  impacts t h a t  they then 

subsequently s a i d  they r e a l l y  needed t o  study before they 

could understand, and i t  j u s t  seemed t o  me they were 

concluding i n  an unequivocal way what the l o c a l i z e d  impacts 

would be before they had done the  fundamental research t h a t  

they i d e n t i f i e d  as appropr ia te  t o  understanding what the 

impacts would be. 

Q But - -  and please c o r r e c t  me i f  I ' m  wrong here. 



Was t h i s  w r i t t e n  by s c i e n t i s t s  who had been s tudy ing  

t h i s  i ssue,  t h i s  mat ter ,  and were they no t  aware a t  t h a t  t ime 

o f  what the  cu r ren t  impact was? 

A I d i d  no t  t h i n k  they were aware because they 

i d e n t i f i e d  these bas ic  research needs as being needed t o  be 

undertaken before they could understand l o c a l i z e d  impacts. I 

d o n ' t  - -  t o  your quest ion,  I d o n ' t  know who d r a f t e d  the 

paragraph. 

Q And do you know whether o r  no t  t h i s  e d i t  o f  yours 

o r  t h i s  suggestion about removing t h i s  - -  was t h a t  taken i n t o  

account i n  the  f i n a l  vers ion  o f  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan? 

A I d o n ' t  know. 

Q Before I run out  o f  t ime, which I have j u s t  a  few 

minutes l e f t  - -  

M r .  Tuohey. Excuse me. 

Ms. Safavian. Sure. 

M r .  Dotson. Just  f o r  the record,  M r .  Cooney conferred 

w i t h  h i s  counsel .  

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q I f  you would t u r n  t o  what i s  numbered Page 115  of 

t h a t  document. 

A Yes. 

Q I am i n t e r e s t e d  i n  - -  you have got  the word 

" p o t e n t i a l "  tw i ce  i n  two d i f f e r e n t  l o c a t i o n s  on t h a t  page i n  



1  two d i f f e r e n t  paragraphs. Can you e x p l a i n  why you wanted t o  

2 add t h e  word " p o t e n t i a l " ?  

3 M r .  Tuohey. And l e t  t h e  record  r e f l e c t  on t h a t  ques t i on  

4 t h a t  t he  word " p o t e n t i a l "  i s  i n s e r t e d  a  number o f  t imes 

5 throughout  t h e  r e p o r t ,  so h i s  answer here w i l l  app ly  t o  a l l  

6  o f  them. Go ahead. 

Ms. Safav ian.  We w i l l  see i f  he agrees w i t h  t h a t .  

M r .  Tuohey. Yes. Should we take  them one a t  a  t ime? 

Ms. Safavian. Sure. 

M r .  Tuohev. Take t he  f i r s t  one. 

The Witness.  There i s ,  i n  t h i s  area,  a  d i f f e r e n c e  

between observed changes and changes t h a t  a re  p r o j e c t e d  on a  

l o c a l i z e d  l e v e l  f rom models, and t he  N a t i o n a l  Academy o f  

Sciences'  Report ,  f o r  example, s a i d  t h a t  any connect ion 

between human h e a l t h  and g l o b a l  c l i m a t e  change i s  a  s tudy i n  

16 i t s  i n f a n c y ,  t h a t  much remains t o  be understood about i t .  I t  

17 had a  l o t  o f  language about t h e  l i m i t a t i o n s  o f  models, 

p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  t h e i r  a b i l i t y  t o  r e l i a b l y  i n f o r m  pol icymakers 

about l o c a l i z e d  impacts,  and so, when d i scuss ions  o f  f u t u r e  

l o c a l i z e d  impacts occur,  I t h i n k  t h a t  t h e r e  i s  a  l o t  i n  t h e  

N a t i o n a l  Academy o f  Sciences' June 2001 Report  t h a t  would 

counsel  c a u t i o n .  These a re  f rom modeled p r o j e c t i o n s  which 

are  impe r fec t ,  t he  N a t i o n a l  Academy t o l d  us p a r t i c u l a r l y  on a  

r e g i o n a l i z e d  and l o c a l i z e d  sca le ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  w i t h  respec t  

t o  human h e a l t h  impacts,  and t h a t  would have been a  reason I 



would have i n s e r t e d  the  word " p o t e n t i a l . "  

BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

Q Okay. How about i n  the second sentence, the same 

th ing?  

A That would apply f o r  both.  

Q Okay. So t h a t  i s  j u s t  going back t o  your 

understanding o f  what the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences' 

Report s ta ted? 

A Yes. 

Q And your counsel mentioned t h a t  you d i d  use the 

word " p o t e n t i a l "  o r  " p o t e n t i a l l y "  throughout t h i s  d r a f t .  

A Yes. 

Q Without going t o  each one o f  them, are you able t o  

exp la in  t o  us why you kept throwing i n  t h a t  word? Does i t  go 

back t o  the  Na t iona l  Academy o f  Sciences, your explanat ion 

t h a t  you j u s t  gave us? 

A No, I c a n ' t  say i t  does w i t h  respect t o  each 

change, bu t  there  was a h e s i t a t i o n  there,  and D r .  Mahoney i n  

many cases over ru led  me. I know t h a t  m a t e r i a l s  have been 

sent up t o  the CEQ i n  the past severa l  weeks which I was able 

t o  review on Thursday and Fr iday .  I n  some cases, they would 

prov ide markups back t o  the Agency o f  changes t h a t  had been 

accepted and no t  accepted, and i n  many cases, he d i d  not  

accept my changes, and he had the f i n a l  word. 



M r .  Tuohey. That wasn't  the quest ion.  The quest ion 

was, d i d  you have the same mindset o r  thought process i n  

p u t t i n g  " p o t e n t i a l "  i n  throughout the r e p o r t ?  

The Witness. I would say I probably came t o  i t  w i t h  

t h a t  view, and i t  was from a cumulat ive understanding o f  what 

the Na t iona l  Academy of Sciences had t o l d  us. 

Ms. Safavian. Okay. Thank you. My t ime i s  up. 

M r .  Tuohey. And I w i l l  say t h a t  counsel f o r  the 

m a j o r i t y  has been generous on t h a t  one. I understand we w i l l  

take t h a t  i n t o  account. 

M r .  Dotson. Wel l ,  can I suggest t h a t  we take a 5-minute 

break i f  t h a t  i s  something t h a t  would be o f  i n t e r e s t  t o  you, 

M r .  Cooney? 

The Witness. Thank you. 

M r .  Tuohey. Thank you. 

M r .  Dotson. Great. 

[Recess. ] 

M r .  Baran. Back on the record.  

We are going t o  go i n  ha l f -an-hour  rounds. 

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q My name i s  J e f f  Baran. L e t ' s  d i v e  r i g h t  i n  given 

the t ime c o n s t r a i n t s .  

M r .  Cooney, are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  the Nat iona l  



Assessment f o r  t h e  P o t e n t i a l  Consequence o f  t h e  C l imate  

V a r i a b i l i t y  and Change? 

A  Yes. 

Q Can you t e l l  us b r i e f l y  how t h e  N a t i o n a l  Assessment 

was prepared? 

A  I t  was prepared,  I t h i n k ,  by a  Federa l  adv iso ry  

committee predominant ly  i n  t h e  l a t e  1990s. Al though,  

p o r t i o n s  o f  t h e  N a t i o n a l  Assessment con t inued  t o  come o u t  

through 2003. 

Q I n  your v iew, what was t h e  purpose o f  t h e  N a t i o n a l  

Assessment? 

A  We l l ,  i t s  s t a t e d  v iew was t o  comply w i t h  t h e  l e g a l  

requirement under t h e  G loba l  Change Research Ac t .  To p rov ide  

a  N a t i o n a l  Assessment, t h e  way i t  was organ ized,  i t  pu rpo r ted  

t o  desc r i be  and p r e d i c t  t h e  r e g i o n a l  impacts o f  g l o b a l  

c l i m a t e  change i n  va r i ous  reg ions  o f  t h e  Un i t ed  S ta tes  and i n  

seve ra l  sec to r s  l i k e  a g r i c u l t u r e ,  h e a l t h  and some o t h e r  

sec to r s .  

Q Where were you employed when you f i r s t  l ea rned  t h a t  

t h e  N a t i o n a l  Assessment was be ing  developed? 

A  A t  t h e  American Petroleum I n s t i t u t e .  

Q Was API i n t e r e s t e d  i n  t h e  N a t i o n a l  Assessment? 

A  Yes. 

Q Why? 

A  Because o f  a  concern t h a t  i t  had been designed and 



was being developed w i t h  a  p o l i t i c a l  o b j e c t i v e  t h a t  appeared 

t o  go beyond what science could t e l l  us r e l i a b l y  about 

reg iona l  impacts o f  g loba l  c l imate  change. 

Q Did  API monitor ac t i on  on the  Na t iona l  Assessment? 

A A P I  provided p u b l i c  comment on d r a f t s  o f  the 

Nat iona l  Assessment. Our economists and s c i e n t i s t s  provided 

i n d i v i d u a l ,  l i n e - b y - l i n e  comments on c e r t a i n  sect ions o f  the  

Na t iona l  Assessment. We a lso  provided thematic comments on 

the Na t iona l  Assessment, p u b l i c  comments t o  the  Government. 

Q Did  A P I  take any other  ac t ions  based on the f a c t  

t h a t  the Na t iona l  Assessment was being developed? 

A I r e c a l l  t h a t  there  was once s o r t  o f  a  p u b l i c  

hear ing on the Nat iona l  Assessment, and we p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  

t h a t  p u b l i c  hear ing.  

Q Was the development o f  the Na t iona l  Assessment 

something t h a t  you were p ro fess iona l l y  focused on? 

A Yes, because the Climate Team was focused on i t  as 

i t  was being developed, and as s o l i c i t a t i o n s  f o r  p u b l i c  

comment emerged, we d i d  comment. Also, t he  press was 

r e p o r t i n g  on i t .  The New York Times was r e p o r t i n g  on i t .  

The Wal l  S t ree t  j ou rna l  was r e p o r t i n g  on i t s  development. I t  

was a  prominent development r e l a t i n g  t o  c l i m a t e  change t h a t  

was emerging i n  the  l a t e  1990s. 

Q What was your s p e c i f i c  r o l e  a t  API w i t h  regard t o  

the Na t iona l  Assessment? 



A I t  was t o  be sure t h a t  our M u l t i d i s c i p l i n a r y  Team 

was per forming i n  such a way as t o  advocate e f f e c t i v e l y  our 

concerns about the Na t iona l  Assessment. 

Q I n  1999, Congress enacted as p a r t  of the FY 2000 

appropr ia t ions  cyc le  language t h a t  addressed the Nat iona l  

Assessment. Did you work on t h i s  language as p a r t  o f  your 

employment? 

A I do not  remember i f  I worked on the language. 

Q Would you have been the  s t a f f  member there t o  work 

on the language? 

A Not necessar i l y .  As I said ,  we had lawyers and we 

had l o b b y i s t s  - -  people who covered C a p i t o l  H i l l  - -  who may 

have d r a f t e d  language f o r  the team. I j u s t  d o n ' t  remember 

who - -  I do not  remember i f  A P I  even d r a f t e d  the language. I 

d o n ' t  r e a l l y  r e c a l l ,  bu t  i t  wouldn ' t  necessa r i l y  have been my 

r o l e  t o  do so. 

Q The Nat iona l  Assessment has been descr ibed as, 

quote, " t he  most comprehensive and a u t h o r i t a t i v e  

s c i e n t i f i c a l l y  based assessment o f  p o t e n t i a l  consequences o f  

c l ima te  change f o r  the Uni ted States,"  end quote. 

Do you t h i n k  t h i s  i s  an accurate d e s c r i p t i o n ?  

A Le t  me j u s t  l o o k  a t  something i f  I may. I want t o  

look  a t  the 10-year S t r a t e g i c  Plan, which I be l ieve  has - -  

w e l l ,  Page 111 o f  the 10-year S t ra teg i c  Plan says t h a t  the 

l a r g e s t  assessment program p rev ious l y  undertaken by the 



USGCRP was the Na t iona l  Assessment i n i t i a t e d  i n  1998, which 

produced an overview o f  repor ts  i n  l a t e  2000 and a  se r ies  o f  

s p e c i a l t y  repor ts  i n  the per iod  2001 t o  2003." So the 

10-year p lan  r e f e r s  t o  i t .  

Q Wel l ,  t h a t  i s  s l i g h t l y  d i f f e r e n t  from my quest ion.  

Let me repeat my quest ion.  

The Nat iona l  Assessment has been descr ibed as the most 

comprehensive and a u t h o r i t a t i v e  s c i e n t i f i c a l l y  based 

assessment o f  p o t e n t i a l  consequences of c l ima te  change f o r  

the Uni ted States.  Do you, persona l ly ,  t h i n k  t h i s  i s  an 

accurate desc r ip t i on?  

M r .  Tuohey. May I j u s t  ask a  quest ion? Can you c i t e  

the source o f  t h a t  comment? 

M r .  Baran. I be l ieve  Rick P i l t z  gave t h a t  quote. 

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. Thank you. 

M r .  Baran. Yes. 

The Witness. I t  i s  the  on ly  Nat iona l  Assessment, so t o  

say t h a t  i t  i s  the most a u t h o r i t a t i v e ,  the Act ,  the Global  

Change Research Ac t ,  requi res a  Nat iona l  Assessment be 

prepared every 4 years, and one was no t .  The ac t  was enacted 

i n  1990, and the f i r s t  Nat iona l  Assessment, most o f  i t ,  was 

publ ished i n  November 2000. So, t o  say i t  i s  the most 

a u t h o r i t a t i v e ,  i t  i s  the on ly  assessment t h a t  was performed. 

The C l i n t o n  admin i s t ra t i on  d i d  not  do a  Nat iona l  Assessment 

u n t i l  - -  and p u b l i s h  i t  u n t i l  2000. 



BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Do you t h i n k  t h e  N a t i o n a l  Assessment was based on 

s o l i d  sc ience? 

A  My v iew i s  r e a l l y  a  d e r i v a t i v e  v iew, and i t  de r i ves  

f rom a  l o t  o f  t he  commentary t h a t  Federa l  s c i e n t i s t s ,  

themselves, o f f e r e d  as p a r t  o f  t h e  Federa l  adv iso ry  committee 

proceedings t h a t  were deve lop ing t h e  N a t i o n a l  Assessment, and 

they a re  p a r t  o f  t h e  record,  and I have some o f  those 

c i t a t i o n s  w i t h  me, b u t  J o e l  Scheraga and Mike Sl imak a t  EPA, 

i n  a  Wa l l  S t r e e t  Jou rna l  a r t i c l e ,  c a l l e d  i t  a l a r m i s t .  Kevin 

T renber th  a t  t h e  N a t i o n a l  Center f o r  Atmospheric Research 

severe ly  c r i t i c i z e d  t h e  s e l e c t i o n  o f  t he  models t h a t  they 

used i n  t h e  N a t i o n a l  Assessment and t h e  premise o f  t h e  

N a t i o n a l  Assessment t h a t  models were s u f f i c i e n t l y  r e l i a b l e  t o  

p r e d i c t  impacts o f  c l i m a t e  change a t  t h e  l o c a l  l e v e l  because 

t he  I P C C  and a  whole hos t  o f  o the r  a u t h o r i t i e s  had s a i d  i n  

t he  second r e p o r t  i n  1995, i n  t h e i r  s p e c i a l  r e p o r t  on l o c a l  

impacts i n  1998 and i n  t h e i r  t h i r d  assessment r e p o r t  i n  2001 

t h a t  t h e  models a re  incapable  o f  r e l i a b l y  p r e d i c t i n g  impacts 

a t  t h e  l o c a l  l e v e l .  A  symptom o f  t h e  model 's  u n r e l i a b i l i t y  

was t h e  f a c t  t h a t  t he  two models used i n  t h e  N a t i o n a l  

Assessment c o n t r a d i c t e d  each o the r  r epea ted l y  on b a s i c  t h i n g s  

l i k e  p r e c i p i t a t i o n .  I n  va r i ous  reg ions  o f  t h e  coun t r y ,  one 

model would say p r e c i p i t a t i o n  w i l l  be g r e a t e r .  I n  t h e  same 



reg ions,  the  o ther  model would say p r e c i p i t a t i o n  w i l l  be much 

lower ,  and the  f a c t  t h a t  they were c o n t r a d i c t o r y  was 

symptomatic o f  the i n a b i l i t y  o f  models t o  r e l i a b l y  p r o j e c t  

reg iona l  impacts a t  a  l o c a l i z e d  l e v e l .  Yet, t h a t  was the 

foundat ion f o r  the reg iona l  repo r t s ,  and you w i l l  f i n d  a  

whole host o f  Federal s c i e n t i s t s  who complained and 

c r i t i c i z e d  the foundat ion,  t h i s  foundat ion o f  the Nat iona l  

Assessment, t h i s  element o f  the foundat ion o f  the Nat iona l  

Assessment. They were very c r i t i c a l  o f  i t .  I n  the 

New York Times' a r t i c l e  t h a t  Andy Revkin wrote i n  J u l y  o f  

2000, he c i t e d  a  Federal  s c i e n t i s t  who sa id  t h i s  was a l l  

being rushed ou t  and d r i v e n  by the e l e c t i o n ,  a  Federal 

s c i e n t i s t  who, h imse l f ,  purported t o  - -  you know, who was 

very concerned about c l ima te  change and the  ser ious t h r e a t  

t h a t  i t  poses. 

So I have given you a  very bas ic  sampling o f  the f a c t  

t h a t  t h i s  was very c o n t r o v e r s i a l  du r ing  i t s  development, 

severely c r i t i c i z e d  by Members o f  Congress. I n  f a c t ,  Members 

o f  Congress i n i t i a t e d  l i t i g a t i o n  against  the admin i s t ra t i on ' s  

p u b l i c a t i o n  o f  the Na t iona l  Assessment, s i t t i n g  Members o f  

Congress. Congresswoman Emerson, Congressman Knollenberg, 

Senator Inhofe ,  and var ious  o ther  groups i n i t i a t e d  t h i s  

l i t i g a t i o n ,  so i t  was very c o n t r o v e r s i a l .  My own view i s  

d e r i v a t i v e ,  though. I d i d n ' t  have an independent view. 

Q I s  i t  f a i r ,  based on the views o f  the s c i e n t i s t s  



t h a t  you were basing your own view on, t h a t  you had concerns 

about the substance o f  the Nat iona l  Assessment? 

A Yes. 

Q On October Sth, 2000, the Compet i t ive Enterpr ise  

I n s t i t u t e ,  o r  C E I ,  announced a  l a w s u i t  against  the 

admin i s t ra t i on  regard ing the Nat iona l  Assessment, c la iming  

t h a t  i t  had been u n l a w f u l l y  produced. Were you aware o f  t h i s  

l a w s u i t  a t  the t ime i t  was f i l e d ?  

A I was. 

Q Did you o r  any other  A P I  employee communicate w i t h  

C E I  regard ing t h i s  l awsu i t  p r i o r  t o  i t s  i n i t i a t i o n ?  

A I do not  r e c a l l .  

Q Was API engaged i n  any way w i t h  the dec is ion  t o  

f i l e  t h i s  l a w s u i t  o r  w i t h  the development o f  t h i s  l awsu i t?  

A I j u s t  d o n ' t  r e c a l l .  

Q Did API have any f i n a n c i a l  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  C E I  a t  

the t ime the l a w s u i t  was f i l e d ?  

A What do you mean by " f i n a n c i a l  r e l a t i o n s h i p " ?  

19 Q I t  cou ld  be any f i n a n c i a l  r e l a t i o n s h i p .  

20 Was A P I ,  f o r  example, funding C E I  i n  any respect? 

21 A  Yes. 

22 Q Can you descr ibe the r e l a t i o n s h i p ,  the ex ten t  o f  

23 the  funding? 

24 M r .  Tuohev. Meaning beyond what he has done? He has 

25 t a l k e d  about i t .  Do you want him t o  go beyond t h a t ?  



The Witness. I do no t  r e c a l l  how much money we were 

p rov id ing  a t  t h a t  t ime. 

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Did  you communicate w i t h  C E I  regard ing t h i s  l awsu i t  

a f t e r  the l a w s u i t  had been i n i t i a t e d ?  

A Probably. 

Q Do you r e c a l l  the nature o f  your communications? 

A No. 

Q You have no r e c o l l e c t i o n  a t  a l l  o f  any s p e c i f i c  - -  

M r .  Tuohey. Do you mean - -  l e t  me understand because I 

t h i n k  there may be a  disconnect here. 

We a l l  know there  were memos back - -  there  was a  

conversat ion o f  a  memo. Do you mean any t ime af terwards,  o f  

the f i l i n g  o f  the l a w s u i t ?  I mean, the  d iscuss ions w i t h  

Ebe l l ,  you ' re  going t o  ge t  t o  t h a t .  L e t ' s  j u s t  jump ahead 

here. Do you inc lude  t h a t ?  Your ques t ion  was a f t e r  the 

l awsu i t  was f i l e d  - -  

M r .  Baran. I'll rephrase my quest ion.  

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. 

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Dur ing the pendency o f  the  l a w s u i t  bu t  a f t e r  i t  was 

f i l e d ,  do you r e c a l l  having any communications w i t h  C E I ?  

A Not s p e c i f i c a l l y .  



Q Okay. Do you be l i eve  any A P I  funding supported the 

C E I  l i t i g a t i o n ?  

A I t  cou ld  have. I d o n ' t  know. The l i t i g a t i o n  

inc luded a  number o f ,  from my r e c o l l e c t i o n ,  o ther  f r e e  

en te rp r i se ,  nongovernmental o rgan iza t ions  and a l so  Members o f  

Congress, and I t h i n k  they were a l l  c o p l a i n t i f f s ,  and I d o n ' t  

know who was - -  how i t  was being pa id  f o r .  

Q Would i t  su rp r i se  you i f  A P I  had funded t h i s  

l i t i g a t i o n ?  

A I t  wou ldn ' t  su rp r i se  me t h a t  A P I  funded C E I .  We 

d i d .  Whether our funds t h a t  we gave - -  they had a  l o t  o f  

funders. Whether they were t raceab le  s p e c i f i c a l l y  t o  the  

l i t i g a t i o n ,  you know, I d o n ' t  know. We were a  funder o f  C E I .  

Q CEI 's  l a w s u i t  was s e t t l e d  w i t h  the admin i s t ra t i on  

on September 12th,  2001. Were you invo lved w i t h  the  

a d m i n i s t r a t i o n ' s  response t o  o r  defense o f  t h i s  l a w s u i t ?  

A Rosina Bierbaum wrote a  l e t t e r ,  I be l i eve ,  dated 

September - -  w e l l ,  I have i t  here. I t  i s  r i g h t  here, so - -  I 

thought t h i s  would come up. She dated a  l e t t e r  

September 6 th ,  2001, t o  Chr is  Horner, and I d i d  no t  have 

anyth ing t o  do - -  I do not  r e c a l l  being invo lved w i t h  her 

development o f  t h a t  l e t t e r .  

Q Okay. I understand the l e t t e r ,  bu t  were you 

invo lved i n  any way w i t h  the a d m i n i s t r a t i o n ' s  response t o  o r  

defense o f  t h i s  l a w s u i t ?  



A I vaguely remember, a t  one p o i n t ,  White House 

counsel asked me about i t ,  and I d o n ' t  r e a l l y  remember what I 

sa id  o r  what I thought. I t  was r i g h t  a f t e r  I got  there .  

Q Do you remember who you spoke w i t h  about t h i s ?  

A Yes. 

Q Who was i t ?  

A His  name was Noel Francisco. 

Q What i s  your understanding o f  how t h i s  case was 

resolved? 

M r .  Tuohey. Excuse me a second. Let me i n t e r r u p t  you 

f o r  a second. 

I promised you I would check, and I have. There i s  a 

f l i g h t  t h a t  leaves Reagan a t  7:30. I am w i l l i n g  t o  have him 

take t h a t  f l i g h t .  We can keep going f o r  another couple o f  

hours, okay? 

M r .  Baran. That would be great .  

Ms. Safavian. That i s  a problem f o r  me. 

M r .  Dotson. Wel l ,  you have u n t i l  5:30. 

Ms. Safavian. You'd b e t t e r  make i t  5:20 so I can get  my 

keys, ge t  t o  the garage and run ou t .  

M r .  Tuohey. Can we resolve t h i s  i n  a way t h a t  

accomplishes both? Because we c a n ' t  come back, and I am 

w i l l i n g  t o  extend t h i s  u n t i l  6:OO. I t  leaves a t  7:30. I 

t h i n k  we can go u n t i l  6:20, 6:15. 

Ms. Safavian. I f  you w i l l  l e t  me take a l l  my t ime up 



f r o n t ,  and then you a l l  end w i t h  the t ime, t h a t  might work. 

M r .  Dotson. Yes. Y o u ' l l  get  a  copy o f  the  depos i t ion .  

That would be agreeable. W e ' l l  f i n i s h  t h i s  ha l f -hou r  round. 

W e ' l l  move t o  you t o  use your balance o f  t ime, and then we 

w i l l  take the r e s t  o f  i t .  

Ms. Safavian. Does t h a t  work f o r  you? 

M r .  Tuohev. Say t h a t  again. Sorry.  

Ms. Safavian. I said,  I am f i n e  w i t h  t h a t  as l ong  as I 

can use a l l  my t ime up f r o n t ,  and then they w i l l  end. 

M r .  Tuohev. Fine. We're okay w i t h  t h a t .  Yes. 

Mr. Baran. Tha t ' s  agreeable t o  everyone? 

We want t o  make i t  c l e a r ,  however, t h a t  t h a t  may or  may 

no t  end our needs i n  terms o f  the depos i t ion ,  but  we 

c e r t a i n l y  w i l l  get  a  l o t  f u r t h e r  along. 

M r .  Tuohey. I d o n ' t  want t o  get  i n t o  t h a t  because I ' m  

t e l l i n g  you there  w i l l  be no more depos i t ions .  You c a n ' t  

compel i t .  You know you c a n ' t  compel i t ,  and we had an 

agreement. 

M r .  Dotson. I t h i n k  where we're moving now i s  everyone 

i s  i n  good f a i t h ,  and we're moving i n  the  same d i r e c t i o n .  

M r .  Tuohey. I want t o  he lp  you guys. I ' v e  sa id  t h a t  

from the beginning, bu t  I c a n ' t  keep having th ings  change on 

me. I ' m  w i l l i n g  t o  do t h i s ,  so I'll make arrangements. 

Go ahead. I ' m  w i l l i n g  t o  he lp  you ou t .  Keep t a l k i n g ,  

and I'll j u s t  keep going. 



1 

2 BY MR. BARAN: 

3 Q Let  me repeat the  l a s t  quest ion.  

4 What i s  your understanding o f  how t h i s  case was 

5 resolved? 

6 A I understand t h a t  the OSTP Ac t ing  D i r e c t o r ,  Rosina 

7 Bierbaum, wrote the  l e t t e r  t h a t  she d i d  on September 6 th  and 

8 t h a t  the p l a i n t i f f s ,  i n  exchange, i n  r e l i a n c e  on t h a t  l e t t e r ,  

9 dismissed - -  o r  dropped the  l a w s u i t ,  d i d  no t  pursue i t  any 

10 f u r t h e r .  

I1 

12 BY MR. BARAN: 

13 Q What i s  your understanding o f  the commitment made 

14 by the admin i s t ra t i on  w i t h  respect t o  the Nat iona l  

15 Assessment? 

16 A That i t  would no t  be r e l i e d  upon f o r  pol icymaking, 

17 t h a t ,  as Ms. Bierbaum's l e t t e r  says, the June 2001 repo r t  o f  

18 the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences on c l ima te  change and the 

19 c l ima te  change Cab ine t - l eve l  review which ex i s ted  i n  2001, 

20 quote, " w i l l  form the  bas is  o f  Government decision-making on 

2 1 the important issue o f  g l o b a l  c l ima te  change." 

22 So, Ms. Bierbaum, who had been i n  the C l i n t o n  

23 admin i s t ra t i on  and remained i n  the Bush admin i s t ra t i on ,  sa id  

24 t h a t  we w i l l  be r e l y i n g  upon the  June 2001 r e p o r t  o f  the 

2 5 Nat iona l  Academy of Sciences f o r  pol icymaking, and we w i l l  



not  be r e l y i n g  on the  Nat iona l  Assessment f o r  pol icymaking. 

Q Was t h a t  your understanding when you worked i n  the 

White House? 

A  That was my understanding. 

Q Under the sett lement agreement, d i d  you be l ieve  

t h a t  the  admin i s t ra t i on  had agreed t o  r e f r a i n  from mentioning 

the Na t iona l  Assessment i n  a l l  government repo r t s  and 

p u b l i c a t i o n s ?  

A  No, because, i n  the Climate Ac t i on  Report t h a t  was 

released i n  June 2002, which was a  submission from the State 

Department t o  the Uni ted Nations under the  frame o f  

convent ional  c l ima te  change, Chapter 6 o f  t h a t  repo r t  

summarized in fo rma t ion  from the Nat iona l  Assessment i n  t h a t  

r e p o r t .  A lso ,  i n  Ju l y  o f  2002, the admin i s t ra t i on  - -  I 

coord inated w i t h  the A g r i c u l t u r e  Department t o  release the 

a g r i c u l t u r e  sector  r e p o r t  o f  the Nat iona l  Assessment, so the 

Na t iona l  Assessment was s t i l l  emergent i n  some repor ts  i n  an 

i n f o r m a t i o n a l  sense, bu t  i t  was not  be ing used f o r  

pol icymaking and r e l i e d  upon f o r  pol icymaking pursuant t o  the 

l e g a l  agreement. 

M r .  Tuohev. Let  the  record r e f l e c t  the wi tness was 

ho ld ing  a  document c a l l e d  the P o t e n t i a l  Consequences of  

Cl imate V a r i a b i l i t y  and Change, a  repo r t  f o r  the U.S. Global 

Change Research Program i n  2002. Thank you. 



BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Did you be l i eve  t h a t  the admin i s t ra t i on  was l e g a l l y  

p r o h i b i t e d  from ment ioning the Nat iona l  Assessment i n  the 

Cl imate Change Science Program S t ra teg i c  Plan? 

A I thought t h a t  was p a r t  o f  the  l e g a l  agreement t h a t  

we should no t  - -  t h a t  the 10-year p lan  was a  p o l i c y  document 

and t h a t  t h i s  was a  forward- look ing 10-year S t ra teg i c  Plan, 

obv ious ly  c a l l e d  f o r  under the s t a t u t e ,  and we were i s s u i n g  

i t  i n  J u l y  o f  2003 which was supposed t o  take us through 

2013, and so i t  i s  a  forward- look ing document, and i t  was a  

p o l i c y  document i n  t h a t  i t  was - -  and f o r  t h a t  reason, i t  was 

inapprop r ia te  t o  be c i t i n g  t o  the Nat iona l  Assessment. 

Q So, i n  your view, any mention o f  the Nat iona l  

Assessment i n  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan  v i o l a t e d  the sett lement 

agreement? 

A I was concerned t h a t  i t  d i d .  

Q Did you be l i eve  t h a t  the admin i s t ra t i on  was l e g a l l y  

p r o h i b i t e d  from ment ioning the Nat iona l  Assessment i n  Our 

Changing Planet? 

A  Yes, because t h a t  i s  a  p o l i c y  document as w e l l  o f  

the admin i s t ra t i on .  Cer ta in  p o l i c y  p o s i t i o n s  are put  

forward. 

Q Did you o r  anyone a t  the White House d i r e c t  the 

Cl imate Change Science Program t o  de le te  references t o  the 

Na t iona l  Assessment from the  s t r a t e g i c  p lan  o r  Our Changing 



Plane t?  

A  Wel l ,  you used t h e  word " d i r e c t , "  and what I d i d  i n  

rev iew ing  - -  

M r .  Tuohey. Answer "yes" o r  "no" f i r s t ,  and then 

e x p l a i n .  D id  you d i r e c t  anyone? 

The Witness. I d i d  n o t  d i r e c t  anyone. I made comments 

i n  in teragency rev iew processes, recommending t h a t  re ferences 

t o  the  N a t i o n a l  Assessment be de le ted ,  b u t  as I have po in ted  

o u t ,  I was ove r ru led  on t h a t  p o i n t  by D r .  Mahoney, and the  

f i n a l  p l a n  i n  which I f o r m a l l y  concurred does r e f e r  t o  the  

N a t i o n a l  Assessment. 

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Who decided t o  make the  comments, o r  as you r e f e r  

t o  them, recommendations, i n  t h i s  regard  t o  t he  s t r a t e g i c  

p lan?  Was t h a t  your dec i s i on?  

M r .  Tuohey. I am j u s t  go ing  t o  ask. Do you mean t h e  

comments a t t r i b u t e d  t o  him i n  t he  document? 

M r .  Baran. I o r i g i n a l l y  asked whether he o r  anyone a t  

t he  White House d i r e c t e d  t he  C l imate  Change Science Program 

t o  d e l e t e  re ferences t o  t he  N a t i o n a l  Assessment f rom the  

s t r a t e g i c  p l a n  o r  Our Changing P lane t .  He responded by 

say ing  i t  wasn ' t  a  d i r e c t i o n ,  and now I am ask ing  who decided 

t o  make t h e  recommendation. 

M r .  Tuohey. Any recommendations o r  t h e  ones t h a t  are  



noted i n  here? I am j u s t  asking you t o  c l a r i f y .  That ' s  a l l .  

Any recommendation whatsoever? 

M r .  Baran. Wel l ,  de leted references t o  the Nat iona l  

Assessment. 

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. 

The Witness. I n  rev iewing documents over the past 4 

days, I see places where I recommended t h a t  references t o  the 

Nat iona l  Assessment i n  the 10-year S t r a t e g i c  Plan be deleted. 

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Did anyone t e l l  you t o  make t h a t  recommendation? 

A No. 

Q Did you consu l t  the Department o f  Jus t i ce  t o  

determine i f  t h a t  was an appropr ia te course o f  ac t ion? 

A I d i d  no t .  

M r .  Baran. Okay. I w i l l  ask the repo r te r  t o  mark the 

next e x h i b i t  . 

[ E x h i b i t  No. 10 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q E x h i b i t  10 i s  a  s t i p u l a t i o n  dated September 12th,  

2001, and a  memorandum i n  support o f  the  s t i p u l a t i o n ;  i s  t h a t  

co r rec t?  

A I d o n ' t  know. Let  me look  a t  i t .  



Q Sure. 

M r .  Tuohey. What was your quest ion? 

M r .  Baran. E x h i b i t  10 i s  a  s t i p u l a t i o n  dated 

September 12th,  2001, and a  memorandum i n  support o f  the 

s t i p u l a t i o n ;  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

M r .  Tuohey. The document speaks f o r  i t s e l f .  

You can answer yes. You can answer yes. 

M r .  Baran. Wel l ,  please d o n ' t  d i r e c t  the  witness how t o  

answer. 

M r .  Tuohey. Wel l ,  i t ' s  a  l e g a l  quest ion.  You're asking 

him what the document i s .  I t ' s  a  l e g a l  document. I t  speaks 

f o r  i t s e l f  . 

M r .  Baran. I ' m  asking him whether t h a t ' s  c o r r e c t .  

M r .  Tuohey. And I ' m  adv is ing  him he can answer yes. 

I ' m  adv is ing  him he can answer yes. I t ' s  a  l e g a l  document. 

He i s  no t  f a m i l i a r  w i t h  i t .  

M r .  Baran. Excuse me. I t  i s  no t  appropr ia te  f o r  you t o  

advise him on how t o  answer s p e c i f i c  quest ions.  

M r .  Tuohey. Then d o n ' t  ask him a  quest ion where the  

document speaks f o r  i t s e l f .  

M r .  Baran. Th is  i s  a  depos i t ion .  I w i l l  ask the 

quest ions.  He i s  go ing t o  answer them. 

M r .  Tuohey. He can answer the quest ion.  Go ahead. 

Don' t  read t h i s .  That ' s  not  p a r t  o f  i t .  Read the f i r s t  

two pages. 



The Witness. This  document i s  e n t i t l e d  J o i n t  

S t i p u l a t i o n  o f  Dismissal  w i thout  Pre jud ice .  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q The s t i p u l a t i o n  dismisses CEI 's  l a w s u i t  against  the 

admin i s t ra t i on  regard ing the Nat iona l  Assessment. Have you 

seen t h i s  s t i p u l a t i o n  and memorandum before? 

A  I do not  r e c a l l .  I might have, bu t  I do not  

r e c a l l .  

Q Did  you communicate w i t h  anyone about the contents 

o f  t h i s  s t i p u l a t i o n  o r  memorandum p r i o r  t o  i t s  execut ion by 

the  cou r t?  

A  I do not  r e c a l l .  

Q I s  i t  your assessment as a  lawyer t h a t  mentioning 

the Na t iona l  Assessment i n  a  government p u b l i c a t i o n  i s  

i n c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  the terms o f  t h i s  s t i p u l a t i o n ?  

M r .  Tuohey. I f  you know. I f  you can answer the 

quest ion.  

The Witness. I j u s t  d o n ' t  have a  l e g a l  judgment on t h i s  

document. I j u s t  d o n ' t .  I d o n ' t  r e a l l y  recognize i t .  I 

d o n ' t  r e a l l y  know what i t  abso lu te ly  requ i res  and abso lu te ly  

doesn ' t .  I d o n ' t  have a  view. 

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q When you were making e d i t s  t o  the  s t r a t e g i c  p lan  



and the  e d i t s  i nvo l ved  the  Nat iona l  Assessment, you were 

basing your e d i t s  on what understanding of t h i s  set t lement? 

A I made them based upon an understanding t h a t  the 

l awsu i t  had been withdrawn because the  admin i s t ra t i on  had 

communicated t h a t  i t  would not  r e l y  on the Nat iona l  

Assessment f o r  p o l i c y  purposes. 

Q Do you know where your understanding o f  t h i s  

agreement came from? 

A Let  me say t h a t  I d o n ' t  want t o  answer the quest ion 

d i r e c t l y .  Wel l ,  the d i r e c t  answer i s ,  no, bu t  there i s  - -  

when the admin i s t ra t i on  issued the Cl imate Ac t ion  Report i n  

2002, i n  June o f  2002, C E I  and a l o t  o f  i t s  c o l i t i g a n t s  

asserted t h a t  the admin i s t ra t i on  had v i o l a t e d  i t s  agreement 

on the Na t iona l  Assessment by i n c l u d i n g  in fo rmat ion  on the 

Nat iona l  Assessment i n  Chapter 6, and so I knew t h a t  they 

were asse r t i ng  t h a t  t h e i r  agreement had been v i o l a t e d ,  so 

t h a t  might have - -  yes, I j u s t  d o n ' t  know what I r e l i e d  on. 

I j u s t  walked around w i t h  the knowledge t h a t  there  had been a 

set t lement agreement t h a t  we wou ldn ' t  use t h i s  f o r  p o l i c y  

purposes. 

Q Okay, bu t  j u s t  t o  c l a r i f y ,  you are no t  sure whether 

o r  not  you a c t u a l l y  read the  set t lement  agreement o r  spoke 

w i t h  the White House Counsel o r  spoke w i t h  the Department of 
-- 

J u s t i c e  about i t ?  

A About t h i s  agreement r i g h t  here? 



Q Yes. 

A I d i d  no t  speak t o  the J u s t i c e  Department about i t .  

I do not  r e c a l l .  I j u s t  t h i n k  - -  I r e a l l y  t h i n k  i t  went t o  

OSTP, and they handled i t  w i t h  White House counsel. I d o n ' t  

t h i n k  I had any meaningful r o l e  i n  how t h i s  was resolved i n  

2001, September 2001. 

Q Do you t h i n k  t h a t  d e l e t i n g  references t o  the 

Nat iona l  Assessment i n  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan  and i n  Our Changing 

Planet increased o r  decreased p u b l i c  and congressional  

awareness o f  the  t h r e a t  posed by g l o b a l  warming? 

M r .  Tuohey. Do you understand the  quest ion? 

The Witness. Sor t  o f .  

M r .  Tuohey. Then res ta te  the  quest ion,  p lease. 

M r .  Baran. Le t  me repeat i t  f i r s t ,  and then i f  I need 

t o  r e s t a t e  i t ,  I w i l l .  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Do you t h i n k  d e l e t i n g  references t o  the Nat iona l  

Assessment i n  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan  and i n  Our Changing Planet 

increased o r  decreased p u b l i c  and congressional  awareness o f  

the t h r e a t  posed by g loba l  warming? 

A My own view i s  t h a t  the d e l e t i o n s ,  i f  y o u ' l l  l ook  

a t  them, were immater ia l  and t h a t  the documents - -  the 

s t r a t e g i c  p lan  and the Our Changing Planet Report re in fo rced  

the seriousness w i t h  which the admin i s t ra t i on  addressed 



g loba l  c l ima te  change, g l o b a l  c l ima te  change science research 

p r i o r i t i e s ,  so I d o n ' t  t h i n k  i t  diminished concern. I t h i n k  

those documents r e f l e c t e d  a  ser ious  concern on the p a r t  o f  

the admin i s t ra t i on  and commitment t o  responsib ly  address 

c l ima te  change. 

Q Jus t  t o  c lose  ou t  t h i s  sec t i on  o f  quest ion ing,  i t  

i s  your view t h a t  the de le t i ons  t o  the references t o  the 

Nat iona l  Assessment i n  the  s t r a t e g i c  p lan  and i n  Our Changing 

Planet had no e f f e c t  on the document's a b i l i t y  t o  communicate 

the t h r e a t  o f  g l o b a l  warming? 

A The d e l e t i o n s  were t o  c i t a t i o n s  t o  the Nat iona l  

Assessment. They weren ' t  t o  paragraphs from the Nat iona l  

Assessment. They were de le t i ons  t o  c i t a t i o n s ,  th ree  l i t t l e  

words, "see Na t iona l  Assessment," and so, when you d e l e t e  a  

formal c i t a t i o n ,  I d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h a t  t h a t  i s  c u t t i n g  

m a t e r i a l l y  i n t o  the meaning o f  the o v e r a l l  r e p o r t .  

M r .  Baran. Thank you. I t h i n k  I have gone a  l i t t l e  

over my t ime, so I am going t o  t u r n  i t  over t o  the m i n o r i t y .  

M r .  Dotson. Can I j u s t  discuss a  housekeeping mat ter? 

I t  i s  now 4:16. We have approximately 2 hours l e f t  o f  

quest ion ing.  We took a  h a l f  an hour, so you have a  h a l f  hour 

coming, which leaves approximately an hour and 45 minutes 

t h a t  we are going t o  s p l i t ,  I mean a t  l e a s t  45 minutes t h a t  

we are going t o  s p l i t  - -  an hour and a  h a l f  t h a t  we're going 

t o  s p l i t .  



M r .  Baran. So y o u ' l l  have a  h a l f  an hour p lus  an 

a d d i t i o n a l  45 minutes - -  t h a t  w i l l  f r o n t l o a d  you - -  and then 

a f t e r  t h a t ,  w e ' l l  have 45 minutes. 

M r .  Tuohey. I d o n ' t  t h i n k  you ' re  t a l k i n g  about an hour 

and a  h a l f .  He has go t  t o  leave here a t  6:30 f o r  a  7:30 

f l i g h t ,  so maybe 6:40, 6:45, bu t  no more than t h a t .  

You've got  t o  check bags; 6:30 t o  be safe.  So I t h i n k  

you've got an hour and 15 minutes. 

M r .  Baran. Two hours and 10 minutes then? 

M r .  Tuohey. Yes, 2 hours and 10 minutes. Yes, I ' m  

so r ry .  Jus t  around 6:30. I mean, I want t o  be sure about 

t r a f f i c  and s t u f f .  W e ' l l  t r y  t o  p lan  on t h a t .  W e ' l l  be 

a l l  r i g h t .  

Ms. Safavian. So what do I have? 

M r .  Dotson. So you have - -  i f  you take - -  

M r .  Baran. So you have 30 minutes fo l lowed by an 

a d d i t i o n a l  45 minutes, and then w e ' l l  have 45 minutes. 

M r .  Tuohey. Let  me j u s t  say, 7:30 - -  I d o n ' t  want you 

panick ing wh i l e  you ' re  t e s t i f y i n g  here, so l e t ' s  say - -  you 

have t o  check a  bag? 

The Witness. Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. And you have t o  get a  new t i c k e t  issued. 

We'd b e t t e r  say, t o  be safe,  20 a f t e r .  

M r .  Dotson. Okay. I t h i n k  t h a t  s t i l l  works, 2 hours. 

That s t i l l  works f o r  us. 



M r .  Baran. So, t o  be c l e a r ,  J e n n i f e r ,  you now have 1 

hour and 1 5  minutes. 

Ms. Safavian. So I have u n t i l  about 5:30? 

Mr. Baran. That ' s  c o r r e c t ,  and then w e ' l l  have 

45 minutes a f t e r  t h a t ,  and h e ' l l  s t i l l  ge t  ou t  o f  here on 

t ime. 

Ms. Safavian. What I might do i s  I might save 10 

minutes o f  i t  so t h a t  I can make i t  ou t  on t ime.  

M r .  Tuohey. You may need i t .  

Ms. Safavian. I may no t ,  but  i f  I need i t ,  I w i l l  have 

Brooke f i n i s h  our f i n a l  round w i t h  the l a s t  10 minutes. 

Okay. Sorry.  

EXAMINATION 

BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q A quick quest ion f o r  you. 

Can you t e l l  me what the Na t iona l  Academy o f  Sciences' 

2001 Report says about the a b i l i t y  o f  models t o  p r e d i c t  

reg iona l  changes? Do you know? 

A There are a  number o f  c i t a t i o n s  i n  t h e  Na t iona l  

Academy Report about - -  so r ry .  

Wel l ,  a t  Page 19, f o r  example, there  i s  a  sentence on 

the reg iona l  sca le,  and i n  the longer term, there  i s  much 

more unce r ta in t y ,  and t h a t  i s  a l l  i n  a  d iscuss ion  about the 

Nat iona l  Assessment. There i s  t h a t  d e f i n i t i v e  statement. 

Q That there  i s  unce r ta in t y?  



A Uncer ta in ty  p a r t i c u l a r l y  a t  the  reg iona l  sca le and 

i n  the longer  term. On Page 21, i t  says, "Whereas a l l  models 

p r o j e c t  g l o b a l  warming and g loba l  increases i n  p r e c i p i t a t i o n ,  

the s ign  o f  the  p r e c i p i t a t i o n  p r o j e c t i o n s  va r ies  among models 

f o r  regions. The range o f  models' s e n s i t i v i t i e s  and the 

chal lenge o f  p r o j e c t i n g  the s ign  o f  the p r e c i p i t a t i o n  changes 

f o r  some regions represent a s u b s t a n t i a l  l i m i t a t i o n  i n  

assessing c l ima te  impacts."  

So t h a t  i s  a  p r e t t y  d i r e c t  quote. I t  says the models 

are con t rad i c to ry  on the bas ic  quest ion o f  whether there w i l l  

be more p r e c i p i t a t i o n  o r  l e s s  p r e c i p i t a t i o n  i n  a  c e r t a i n  

region, and t h a t  severely handicaps the understanding o f  what 

reg iona l  consequences might be from g l o b a l  c l ima te  change. 

Q Okay. I j u s t  want t o  f i n i s h  up w i t h  where I 

stopped w i t h  my l a s t  round o f  ques t ion ing ,  l o o k i n g  a t  Rick 

P i l t z '  memo. Do you s t i l l  have t h a t  i n  f r o n t  o f  you? 

M r .  Tuohey. No. We've got  i t  over here. I t  should be 

over here. 

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q And we were on Page 10. 

A Okay. 

Q We had already p r e t t y  much gone over the October 

28th, 2002 d r a f t  vers ion  o f  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan .  

A Yeah. 



Q I ' m  no t  going t o  go over t h a t  any f u r t h e r ,  bu t  i f  

y o u ' l l  l ook  a t  the next  paragraph which s t a r t s  w i t h  the  

Number 2. 

A Yes. 

Q He's saying t h a t ,  i n  the f i n a l  review o f  the  

rev ised s t r a t e g i c  p lan  dated June Znd, 2003, CEQ made about 

450 comments throughout the document, and you can f e e l  f r e e  

t o  read t h i s  paragraph i f  you want. 

M r .  Tuohey. Do you want him t o  read the  paragraph t o  

h imse l f?  

Ms. Safavian. Yes, please. 

M r .  Tuohey. Okay. 

The Witness. Okay. Okay. 

BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q And 'I d o n ' t  have t h i s  vers ion,  so I c a n ' t  g ive  i t  

t o  you t o  show you, bu t  here i s  my quest ion,  and see i f  you 

can do t h i s  j u s t  by reading what was i n  t h i s  paragraph. 

Do you r e c a l l  o r  do you have a r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  making 

e d i t s  t o  t h i s  - -  you know, t o  t h i s  degree f o r  t h i s  d r a f t  f o r  

your f i n a l  review o f  t h i s  p lan? 

M r .  Tuohey. This  i s  the June 2nd d r a f t ?  

Ms. Safavian. Yes, o f  2003. 

The Witness. I be l ieve ,  a t  t h i s  p o i n t ,  t h a t  Bryan 

Hannegan and I were both making comments and t h a t  they were 



combined i n  one document, and we s p l i t  up the  chapters and 

made d i f f e r e n t  comments. 

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q So what M r .  P i l t z  has i n  t h i s  paragraph sounds 

f a m i l i a r  t o  you as some o f  the comments o r  e d i t s  you made? 

A They are r e a l l y  h i s  cha rac te r i za t i ons ,  h i s  

op in ions,  o f  the impact o f  our comments. I d o n ' t  r e a l l y  

agree w i t h  a  l o t  o f  the way he charac ter izes  our comments. 

Q Did you in tend  t o  a l t e r  and d e l e t e  references t o  

the p o t e n t i a l  p u b l i c  h e a l t h  impacts? 

A Wel l ,  i f  y o u ' l l  go again t o  the  Na t iona l  Academy o f  

Sciences a t  Page 20, you know, I was guided by what they 

sa id ,  which i s  t h a t ,  quote, "much o f  the Uni ted States 

appears t o  be pro tec ted  against  many d i f f e r e n t  hea l th  

outcomes r e l a t e d  t o  c l ima te  change by a  s t rong p u b l i c  hea l th  

system, r e l a t i v e l y  h igh  l e v e l s  o f  p u b l i c  awareness and a  h igh  

standard o f  l i v i n g . "  I t  goes on t o  say, "The understanding 

o f  the r e l a t i o n s h i p s  between weather/c l imate and human h e a l t h  

i s  i n  i t s  in fancy ,  and the re fo re ,  the h e a l t h  consequences o f  

c l ima te  change are poor l y  understood." 

On t h a t  bas is ,  I would make a  recommendation i n  my 

comments on proposals t h a t  I thought r i s k e d  o v e r s t a t i n g  human 

hea l th  impacts, because the  Nat iona l  Academy had t o l d  us t h a t  

i t  i s  a  study i n  i t s  in fancy ,  and the impacts are poo r l y  



understood. 

Q And d i d  M r .  Hannegan agree w i t h  you on t h a t ?  

A I do not  remember s p e c i f i c a l l y .  

Q But d i d  you end up sending back one document t h a t  

had both o f  your comments inc luded i n  i t ,  or  d i d  you each 

send up your own e d i t s ?  

A What I t h i n k  I r e c a l l  from having reviewed the 

documents i n  the past  4 days i s  t h a t  t he re  was a  j o i n t  se t  o f  

comments, CEQ, t h a t  r e f l e c t e d  both h i s  and my views, and I 

t h i n k  he typed i t ,  and then we sent i t  back. I could be 

mistaken, but  I t h i n k  t h a t  i s  what he d i d .  

Q And you t h i n k  t h a t  t h a t  i s  regard ing t h i s  d r a f t ?  

A Yes, because he was there by then. 

M r .  Tuohey. Do we have a  copy o f  t h i s  d r a f t ?  

Ms. Safavian. I do no t .  Do you have a  copy o f  i t ?  

M r .  Tuohey. Does counsel f o r  the m a j o r i t y  have a  copy 

o f  the June 2nd, 2003 d r a f t ?  

M r .  Dotson. Th is  i s ,  Our Changing Planet? 

M r .  Tuohey. No, o f  our s t r a t e g i c  p lan .  We have the  

copy here t h a t  you presented from October 2002, and i f  there  

are going t o  be quest ions about the June 2, 2003 d r a f t ,  i t  

would be h e l p f u l  t o  have t h a t  d r a f t  i n  f r o n t  o f  us. 

Ms. Safavian. My quest ions are more general .  

M r .  Tuohey. Yes, I know they are.  

M r .  Dotson. Should we en ter  t h i s ?  



Ms. Safavian. Why d o n ' t  you j u s t  p u t  i t  i n  so he has i t  

i n  case he - -  

M r .  Dotson. Can we make i t  an e x h i b i t ?  

Ms. Safavian. I f  you want. 

M r .  Tuohey. No o b j e c t i o n  from us. 

Ms. Safavian. Yes. E x h i b i t  11. Tha t ' s  f i n e .  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 11 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

The Witness. So t h i s  here appears t o  be - -  again, t h i s  

i s  no t  j o i n t  comments. These appear t o  be handwr i t ten 

i n d i v i d u a l  comments. I d o n ' t  know i f  they are - -  

BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

Q I s  i t  your handwr i t ing? 

A Wel l ,  I j u s t  looked a t  a  page t h a t  I be l ieve  i s  

M r .  Hannegan's. 

Q Ah, okay. So maybe they do encompass both o f  your 

comments. 

A I t h i n k  these are M r .  Hannegan's handwr i t ing,  and I 

am l o o k i n g  j u s t  a t  these couple pages r i g h t  here. 

Q Do you see any t h a t  i s  your handwr i t ing? 

A We s o r t  o f  w r i t e  a l i k e ,  bu t  so f a r ,  I see 

M r .  Hannegan's handwr i t ing,  and you w i l l  see, o f  course, t h a t  

99.9 percent o f  the document has no comments on i t .  



Q I do see t h a t ,  yes. There are a l o t  o f  b lank 

pages. 

A So what I have seen so f a r  are M r .  Hannegan's - -  

appear t o  be M r .  Hannegan's comments, D r .  Hannegan. I do not  

see any o f  my comments a t  t h i s  p o i n t .  

Q You do r e c a l l  rev iewing t h i s  d r a f t  vers ion  o f  the  

p lan  and making comments? 

A Not necessar i l y .  I d o n ' t  know. You know, I t h i n k  

we reviewed vers ions together  i n  the s p r i n g  o f  2003, bu t  

these comments t h a t  I am now look ing  a t  as t h i s  e x h i b i t  

appear t o  be h i s  comments. 

Q And would e i t h e r  you o r  M r .  Hannegan - -  I know you 

sa id  maybe he compiled both sets  o f  comments? 

A Yes. 

Q Where d i d  you a l l  send those e d i t s  o r  comments t o ?  

A I t h i n k ,  i n  t h i s  case, they would have gone back t o  

OMB because we were back t o  the formal interagency review 

process t h a t  OMB f a c i l i t a t e s  a t  the end o f  - -  toward the end 

o f  the documents. 

Q And, when you would send i t  t o  OMB, d i d  you j u s t  

send i t  t o  OMB or  d i d  you a l so  send i t  t o  D r .  Mahoney? 

A I d o n ' t  r e a l l y  remember. I t  would be ord inary  t o  

j u s t  send them back t o  OMB. 

Q Okay. 

A They were compi l ing  comments o f  a l l  o f  the 



agencies . 

Q Okay. Then r e f e r r i n g  back t o  M r .  P i l t z '  memo, a t  

the top  o f  Page 11, he says t h a t  he be l ieves  t h a t  t h i s  

markup, CEQ's markup o f  t h i s ,  was never shared w i t h  o r  ve t ted  

by CCSP agency p r i n c i p a l s  o r  agency science program managers. 

I s  t h a t  your understanding? 

A I ' m  s o r r y .  Which paragraph are you l o o k i n g  a t ?  

Q A t  the  very top  o f  Page ll? 

A I n  l a t e  June, CEQ comments - -  

M r .  Tuohey. The quest ion i s  whether the statement i s  

made t h a t  comments here - -  f o r g e t  about t h a t  f o r  a minute - -  

whether comments here were no t  shared w i t h  CCSP. 

I s  t h a t  your understanding? 

The Witness. Yes, because i t  would have gone t o  OMB. 

OMB was compi l ing  a l l  o f  the agencies' comments. The CCSP, 

themselves, were commenting. 

BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

Q Okay. So they sent t h e i r  comments t o  OMB? 

A Yes, everyone. OMB i s  c o l l e c t i n g  everyone's 

comments a t  the end o f  a  process, and then OMB d i s t i l l s  what 

i t  has and sends i t  t o  D r .  Mahoney f o r  h i s  f i n a l  

decision-making. 

Q But even though OMB compiles everyth ing,  they s t i l l  

send i t  back t o  CCSP, D r .  Mahoney, who has the f i n a l  review 



and e d i t  and whatever. He i s  the f i n a l  say on - -  

A That i s  my understanding. 

Q Okay. 

A Yes, and he sa id  so i n  w r i t t e n  l e t t e r s  t o  the 

Senate i n  J u l y  o f  2005. He answered w r i t t e n  questions from 

the Senate and descr ibed t h i s  whole process. 

M r .  Tuohev. Wel l ,  j u s t  as a p o i n t  o f  c l a r i f i c a t i o n ,  l e t  

me ask, i f  I may: Counsel j u s t  asked a quest ion o f  whether 

CCSP o r  i t s  representa t ives  saw these comments. You f i r s t  

sa id  no, and then you sa id  D r .  Mahoney saw them. 

Did they o r  d i d  they no t  see the  comments? 

The Witness. Wel l ,  D r .  Mahoney was the head o f  CCSP. 

M r .  Tuohey. R igh t .  

The Witness. So - -  

M r .  Tuohey. I n  t h a t  capac i ty ,  d i d  he see the comments? 

The Witness. He saw the comments, and he was the 

d i r e c t o r ,  i n  t h a t  lower box, o f  our o rgan iza t i ona l  cha r t ,  so 

they went back t o  him. 

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q Righ t .  So they d i d ,  though, go back t o  CCSP, and 

i t  was v e t t e d  i n  a sense? 

A Maybe i t  d i d n ' t  go back t o  s t a f f ,  bu t  i t  went back 

t o  D r .  Mahoney as the d i r e c t o r  o f  the  program. 

Q Okay. Then i f  y o u ' l l  go - -  l o o k i n g  on Page 11 of 



M r .  P i l t z '  memo, l ook  a t  Number 3 ,  the  paragraph t h a t  s t a r t s  

w i t h  Number 3 .  I f  you can, j u s t  q u i c k l y  read t h a t .  

M r .  Tuohev. Do you mean on page - -  oh, Page 11, next 

page, Page 11. 

Ms. Safavian. Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. Thank you. 

The Witness. Yes, I see t h a t  paragraph. 

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q And you have already had a  lengthy  d iscuss ion about 

the Nat iona l  Assessment and the  l a w s u i t  and the set t lement .  

Did you p lay  a  l ead  r o l e  i n  any o f  t h a t ?  

A I n  the set t lement  o f  the Na t iona l  Assessment 

l i t i g a t i o n ?  

Q Yes. 

A I d i d  no t  p lay  a  l ead  r o l e .  I d i d  no t  - -  I d i d  no t  

p lay  a  lead r o l e .  

M r .  Tuohey. A l ead  r o l e  i n  what? 

The Witness. I n  the  set t lement  o f  the  Nat iona l  

Assessment. 

M r .  Tuohey. Is t h a t  what your ques t ion  was? 

Ms. Safavian. Yes. 

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q Did you p lay  a  l ead  r o l e  i n  en fo rc ing  the 



suppression o f  the  Na t iona l  Assessment - -  

A That i s  h i s  - -  

Q - -  o f  the - -  

A That i s  h i s  d e s c r i p t i o n .  I have j u s t  spoken t o  

e d i t s  t h a t  I made on the 10-year S t r a t e g i c  Plan where I 

recommended the d e l e t i o n  o f  references t o  the Na t iona l  

Assessment i n  a  p o l i c y  document as be ing  i n c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  

the l e g a l  r e s o l u t i o n  o f  the case. 

M r .  Tuohey. Would you read the  quest ion back. 

L i s t e n  t o  the quest ion.  

I thought your quest ion was, d i d  you p lay  a  lead r o l e ,  

quote, i n  en fo rc ing  the  suppression o f  the Na t iona l  

Assessment? 

Ms. Safavian. That i s  the quest ion.  

BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

Q Did  you o r  d i d n ' t  you? 

A No, I d o n ' t  agree w i t h  - -  

Q I mean, I understand what you sa id  before.  When 

you were rev iewing documents, you would cross o f f  - -  and I 

have seen t h i s  where you've crossed ou t  the  Na t iona l  

Assessment, reference t o  the Nat iona l  Assessment because o f  

the set t lement  t h a t  was not  t o  be used f o r  p o l i c y  dec is ions;  

c o r r e c t ?  
. . 

A Yes. 



Q Did you in fo rm others? Did you requ i re  others i n  

some - -  I w i l l  use the word "suppression" because t h a t  i s  the 

word t h a t  M r .  P i l t z  uses, but  were you openly out there  i n  

t r y i n g  t o  prevent o ther  people from r e f e r r i n g  t o  the Nat iona l  

Assessment? 

A No. I n  f a c t ,  the record shows t h a t ,  when we were 

dea l i ng  w i t h  documents t h a t  were no t  o f  a  p o l i c y  nature l i k e  

the Cl imate Ac t i on  Report o f  June 2002, Chapter 6 o f  i t  

r e l i e d  on p o r t i o n s  and a  summary o f  the Nat iona l  Assessment. 

Also, I held  up t h i s  document from Ju ly  2002, the a g r i c u l t u r e  

repo r t  o f  the Nat iona l  Assessment which the  U . S .  Department 

o f  A g r i c u l t u r e  people coordinated the re lease,  t o l d  the White 

House they were going t o  release i t ,  and they released i t .  

Beyond t h a t ,  I would say t h a t  the Nat iona l  Assessment 

remained on a  government Web s i t e  throughout t h i s  t ime 

per iod ,  www.nacc.usgcrp.gov, something l i k e  t h a t ,  but  i t  was 

always ava i l ab le .  

Q Okay. Further w i t h i n  t h a t  same paragraph, he 

w r i t e s ,  "Pub l ic  d isc losure  o f  the CEQ Chief  o f  S t a f f ' s  

communications w i t h  the Competit ive Enterpr ise  I n s t i t u t e  

suggests j o i n t  p o l i t i c a l  s t r a t e g i z i n g , "  and t h i s  i s  no t  - -  

A He i s  speaking about an e-mai l  t h a t  received a 

l o t  - -  

M r .  Tuohev. Let her ask the quest ion.  

The Witness. Oh, I ' m  sor ry .  I ' m  so r ry .  



M r .  Tuohev. There i s  no quest ion.  

Ms. Safavian. Wel l ,  you ' re  a c t u a l l y  g e t t i n g  t o  where I 

was going because I was going t o  say I d o n ' t  want t o  discuss 

the l a w s u i t  t h a t  was already brought up by the m a j o r i t y  

counsel, regard ing CEI 's  l a w s u i t ,  bu t  what I do want t o  ask 

you about, because I t h i n k  he was r e f e r r i n g  t o  t h i s  document 

- -  and l e t  me show you. 

This  w i l l  be E x h i b i t  1 2 .  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 12 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

M r .  Tuohey. Do you want him t o  read i t ,  counsel? 

Ms. Safavian. Yes, please. 

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q Have you f i n i s h e d  reading? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. M r .  Cooney, t h i s  appears t o  be an e-mai l  

addressed t o  you from Myron E b e l l  a t  C E I .  Can you t e l l  us 

who Myron E b e l l  was o r  i s ?  

A I guess he was a longt ime employee a t  C E I  who has 

worked on c l ima te  change p o l i c y .  

Q F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  have you seen t h i s  before? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Okay. Did you receive i t ?  



A I d i d  receive i t  as an e-mai l .  

Q As an e-mai l ,  and i t  s t a r t s  w i t h ,  "Dear P h i l ,  

thanks f o r  c a l l i n g  and ask ing f o r  our he lp . "  

Can you exp la in  t h a t  t o  us? 

A I d i d  no t  ask f o r  h i s  he lp.  A c t u a l l y ,  we had, I 

would say, an a c t i v e  disagreement. I d i d  c a l l  him e a r l i e r  i n  

the day and asked him t o  read the Cl imate Ac t i on  Report 

before making a  judgment about i t ,  before merely accept ing 

what The New York Times and everyone e l se  was saying t h a t  day 

about i t .  He had already begun t o  be very c r i t i c a l ,  and 

there  were a l o t  o f  voices t h a t  day. I mean, the media on 

both s ides were tak ing  up t h i s  issue o f  t h i s  Cl imate Ac t ion  

Report. I f  you go back and look ,  i t  was very con t rove rs ia l ,  

bu t  you know, C E I  p a r t i c u l a r l y  was outraged, f u r i o u s  about 

the r e p o r t ,  and I t o l d  him t h a t  i t  was my view t h a t  the  

r e p o r t  i n  the New York Times was i n c o r r e c t .  I t  d i d n ' t  

charac ter ize  the Cl imate Ac t i on  Report p roper l y .  I t o l d  him 

f u r t h e r  t h a t  I had p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  and was conf ident  i n  the 

interagency process t h a t  developed the  Cl imate Ac t ion  Report, 

and so I was ask ing him t o  read the r e p o r t  before he 

c r i t i c i z e d  i t .  

22 Q What was so c o n t r o v e r s i a l  about the  Cl imate Ac t ion  

23 Report? 

24 A I t  was c o n t r o v e r s i a l  because Chapter 6 o f  the 

25 r e p o r t ,  which spoke t o  c l ima te  change impacts, r e l i e d ,  i n  



p a r t ,  on summaries o f  m a t e r i a l s  from the Nat iona l  Assessment, 

and obv ious ly ,  the  conservat ive groups i n  C E I  had very s t rong 

f e e l i n g s  about the  Nat iona l  Assessment and were very c r i t i c a l  

o f  the admin i s t ra t i on  f o r  i n c l u d i n g  m a t e r i a l  i n  t h i s  repo r t  

t o  the Uni ted Nat ions t h a t  r e l i e d  on i n fo rma t ion  from the 

Nat iona l  Assessment. 

Q What was the purpose o f  the Cl imate Ac t ion  Report? 

A That i s  a  very good quest ion.  

The Cl imate Ac t i on  Report,  as I understood i t ,  working 

w i t h  the  Sta te  Department, which r e a l l y  had the  lead on i t ,  

i s ,  every 4 years, under the  Uni ted Nat ions '  framework 

convention on c l i m a t e  change, count r ies  are supposed t o  o r  

are expected t o  o r  are ob l i ged  t o  submit what they c a l l  a  

" n a t i o n a l  communication" t o  the  convention t h a t  describes a  

whole host o f  s t a t i s t i c s  r e l a t i n g  t o  popu la t ion ,  geography, 

greenhouse gas emissions i n  a  country .  One o f  the 

requirements a l so  i s  t h a t  you address impacts o f  c l imate  

change, and we made the dec i s ion  - -  these repor ts  are a  

snapshot i n  t ime,  and the i n fo rma t ion  we had on impacts was 

from the Na t iona l  Assessment, and we had some caveats i n  the 

r e p o r t  about the u n c e r t a i n t i e s  o f  reg iona l  p r o j e c t i o n s  o f  

c l ima te  change, bu t  we d i d  i nc lude  - -  the admin i s t ra t i on  

inc luded in fo rma t ion  from the Nat iona l  Assessment i n  the 

repo r t .  

Q And when d i d  the  Cl imate Ac t ion  Report come out? 



A  Wel l ,  i t  was f i l e d  l i k e  a t  t h e  end o f  May 2002, b u t  

The New York Times ran  a  f r on t -page  s t o r y  on t h i s  da te  o f  

June 3 rd ,  2002, and t h a t  i s  when a  l o t  o f  t h e  media on b o t h  

s i d e s ,  conse rva t i ve  and l i b e r a l  media, i f  you w i l l  a l l o w  

those terms, i n  t h e  U n i t e d  S ta tes  were v e r y  focused on 

commenting on t h i s  r e p o r t .  

Q And so t h i s  came o u t  a f t e r  t h e  se t t l emen t  was 

reached w i t h  CEI on t h e  N a t i o n a l  Assessment, t h e  use o f  t h e  

N a t i o n a l  Assessment; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A  Yes. 

Q So why was t h i s  p e r m i t t e d  - -  why was t h i s  r e p o r t ,  

t he  C l imate  A c t i o n  Report  - -  

A  I d i d  no t  see i t  as a  p o l i c y  document. 

Q Did  you rev iew i t ?  Were you i n v o l v e d  i n  any way 

w i t h  t h e  C l imate  A c t i o n  Report? 

A  I was. 

Q Okay. What was your invo lvement? 

A  I was s o r t  o f  t he  CEQ r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  f o r  t h e  

i n te ragency  rev iew o f  t h e  document. As I s a i d ,  t he  EPA and 

t h e  S t a t e  Department, i f  you l o o k  a t  t h e  document, i t  i s  

f i l e d  by t h e  S ta te  Department w i t h  t h e  framework convent ion,  

b u t  I was i n v o l v e d  i n  - -  

Q So you may have added - -  

A  - -  rev iew ing  t h e  r e p o r t .  

Q - -  suggest ions t o  i t?  



A Yes. 

Q And you saw the reference t o  Nat iona l  Assessment i n  

i t ,  and y e t ,  you d i d n ' t  de le te  t h a t ?  

A No, I d i d  no t  because I saw the repo r t  not  as a  

p o l i c y  repo r t  bu t  as meeting a  l e g a l  o b l i g a t i o n  t h a t  we f i l e  

a  n a t i o n a l  communication t h a t  had the f o l l o w i n g  elements i n  

i t ,  and one element was impacts, and t h a t  was the i n fo rma t ion  

t h a t  was a v a i l a b l e  t o  the U . S .  Government a t  t h a t  t ime. The 

Bush admin i s t ra t i on  had no t  undertaken a  d i f f e r e n t  

assessment, and so the judgment was made t o  use the 

i n fo rma t ion  t h a t  had been developed i n  the Nat iona l  

Assessment and t o  t r y  t o  caut ion  - -  t o  pu t  i n  language t h a t  

caut ioned about the l i m i t a t i o n s  o f  reg iona l  impacts bu t  t o  

i nc lude  i t  so t h a t  we would be i n  l e g a l  compliance under the 

framework convention, which i s  a  r a t i f i e d  t r e a t y  o f  the  

Uni ted States,  w i t h  our r e p o r t i n g  requirements, and so i t  was 

a  r e p o r t i n g  document; i t  wasn't a  p o l i c y  document. 

Q Okay. I understand. 

So you c a l l e d  Myron E b e l l  on June 3rd? 

A Yes. 

Q I ' m  so r ry .  Was t h a t  because he had p rev ious l y  

contacted you o r  because o f  the New York Times' piece? 

A I cannot remember except I heard t h a t  he was t a k i n g  

a  very h igh  p r o f i l e  and c r i t i c i z i n g  the f i l i n g  o f  the Climate 

Ac t i on  Report, and I wanted t o  exp la in  t o  him - -  a c t u a l l y ,  I 



wanted t o  ask him t o  read t h e  r e p o r t  b e f o r e  rende r i ng  

judgment on i t .  

Q How l o n g  would you - -  do you r e c a l l  how l o n g  your 

conversa t ion  was w i t h  him? 

A I t  was 5 minutes.  I t  was n o t  agreeable. 

Q I t  was n o t  agreeable? 

A We were i n  a  disagreement. He was f u r i o u s ,  and I 

was ask ing  him t o  read t h e  r e p o r t .  

Q So he had n o t  read t h e  r e p o r t  when you had t a l k e d  

t o  him? 

A Wel l ,  t h a t  was my view t h a t  he cou ld  no t  have read 

t he  r e p o r t  i f  - -  t h a t  was my v iew t h a t  i t  was u n l i k e l y  he had 

read t h e  r e p o r t .  I t  was a  b i g ,  t h i c k  r e p o r t ,  as you can see, 

t h a t  they m o b i l i z e d  very  q u i c k l y  t o  be ve ry  c r i t i c a l  o f  t h e  

r e p o r t ,  b u t  I was n o t  c o n f i d e n t  t h a t  they had read i t  

thorough ly .  

Q So they had a l ready  pu t  o u t  l i k e  a  press re lease  o r  

something? 

A I cannot remember. Something l i k e  t h a t .  

Q But you a l ready  knew a t  t h a t  t ime  t h a t  they were 

c r i t i c a l  o f  t h i s ?  

A Yes. I mean, I j u s t  d o n ' t  want t o  specu la te  on how 

I knew, bu t  I j u s t  - -  because I c a n ' t  r e a l l y  remember, bu t  

you a l l  have been i n  s i t u a t i o n s  i n  your  jobs ,  you know, where 

people say, "Downtown's upset  about something," o r  "So-and-so 



doesn ' t  l i k e  t h i s  t h i n g . "  I d o n ' t  r e a l l y  remember, but  I 

understood t h a t  they were q u i t e  angry about the Cl imate 

Ac t ion  Report.  

Q And d i d  you ask him o r  C E I  f o r  any he lp  o r  

assistance? 

A I asked him t o  read the  r e p o r t  because I thought, 

i f  he read the r e p o r t ,  he might - -  h i s  expressed op in ion  

might be b e t t e r  informed. 

Q But you d i d n ' t  ask f o r  C E I  t o  do anyth ing f o r  the  

admin i s t ra t i on?  

A No. No. I n  f a c t ,  i f  you look  a t  a l l  o f  t h i s  

repo r t  - -  t h i s  e -mai l  - -  i n  contex t ,  a l l  he does i s  - -  

r e a l l y ,  "before t h i s  one l i t t l e  d i s a s t e r ,  we could a l l  l o c k  

arms w i t h  t h i s  admin i s t ra t i on "  - -  

M r .  Tuohey. Jus t  answer the ques t ion .  

The Witness. He was very mad, and he was not  going t o  

do anyth ing t o  be h e l p f u l .  I n  f a c t ,  he s a i d  he was going t o  

c a l l  f o r  Governor Whitman t o  be f i r e d  the  next day. He was 

going t o  cont inue t o  be very c r i t i c a l  o f  the admin i s t ra t i on  

f o r  t h i s  r e p o r t .  

BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q Further  down i n  the  e-mai l ,  he t a l k s  about the 

references t o  the  Na t iona l  Assessment, and he considers i t  t o  

be very h u r t f u l .  I guess, based on t h a t ,  i t  looks l i k e  he 



d i d  view t h a t  as be ing the p o l i c y  o r  the  Cl imate Ac t ion  

Report as p u t t i n g  f o r t h  p o l i c y .  

A Yes. 

Q A f t e r  you go t  t h i s  e-mai l  and you read i t ,  d i d  you 

have any f u r t h e r  fo l l ow-up  conversat ions w i t h  M r .  Ebe l l ?  

A No, no t  t h a t  I r e c a l l .  

Q Did you e-mai l  him back and respond o r  anything? 

A No, I d i d  no t  e-mai l  him back. That would have 

been d i sc losed  i n  the  Freedom o f  I n fo rma t ion  Act.  I searched 

i t  and produced t h i s  document. I d i d  no t  w r i t e  him back. 

Q Did  you t h i n k  i t  was impor tant  a t  the t ime - -  t h i s  

i s  going back severa l  years - -  you know, recogniz ing t h a t  he 

put  i n  here, "thanks f o r  c a l l i n g  and ask ing f o r  our he lp , "  i f  

you hadn ' t  asked him f o r  anything, d i d  you f e e l  i t  was 

necessary t o  c o r r e c t  t h a t ?  

A I d i d  not  f e e l  i t  necessary t o  c o r r e c t  t h a t  

because, a t  t h a t  moment i n  t ime, I was p r e t t y  w e l l  done w i t h  

him. We were i n  an argument, and I was not  going t o  cont inue 

t o  engage w i t h  him. 

Q And what d i d  C E I  do, i f  anything, about the  Cl imate 

Ac t ion  Report? 

A They f i l e d  Data Qua l i t y  P e t i t i o n s  under a  newly 

enacted law a t  f ou r  separate agencies - -  a t  the EPA, the  

Commerce Department, the  State Department and w i t h  the White 

House O f f i c e  o f  Science and Technology Po l i cy  - -  and I 



p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  the dec is ion,  i n  the  coord inated dec is ion ,  by 

a l l  o f  those agencies t o  deny CEI 's Data Q u a l i t y  P e t i t i o n s .  

They wanted a l l  references t o  the Cl imate Ac t i on  Report 

p u l l e d  o f f  o f  Web s i t e s  a t  those respec t ive  agencies, and i n  

working w i t h  counsel from a l l  o f  those agencies, you know, 

you wanted the responses t o  be cons is ten t  and r a t i o n a l e s  t o  

be cons is ten t ,  bu t  there was a  process i n  which I 

p a r t i c i p a t e d  which resu l ted  i n  CEI 's  Data Q u a l i t y  P e t i t i o n s  

being denied, and i t  was on ly  - -  w e l l ,  I w i l l  j u s t  leave i t  

a t  t h a t .  That i s  something, though, t h a t  Senator Lieberman 

had w r i t t e n  t o  Jim Connaughton about t h i s  whole e -mai l  t h i n g  

t h a t  I had received from C E I ,  and o ther  people had asked 

about what t h i s  meant. The At torney General o f  Connect icut ,  

the At torney General of Maine, Senator Lieberman, and the 

White House d i d  respond t o  Senator Lieberman. The i r  

response, you know, was no t  up on the Web s i t e ,  bu t  they 

responded, and they described my a c t i v e  r o l e  i n  denying - -  i n  

the coo rd ina t i ng  process t o  deny CEI 's  Data Q u a l i t y  P e t i t i o n s  

on t h i s  r e p o r t .  So the opposi te - -  I can say i n  a  very 

general sense t h a t  what was thought t o  have occurred and 

repor ted t o  have occurred between C E I  and I, some conspiracy,  

t h a t  the exact opposi te was the case. 

Q And i s  t h a t  documented? You sa id  you were able t o  

respond t o  - -  

A I t  i s  a l l  documented, a l l  o f  the lawyers who 



p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  a l l  o f  the  d e l i b e r a t i o n s  t o  t u r n  down those 

Data Q u a l i t y  P e t i t i o n s .  I was i n  the room and p a r t i c i p a t e d  

i n  the meetings and was very comfortable w i t h  t u r n i n g  them 

down, and Jim Connaughton sa id  so i n  h i s  l e t t e r  back t o  

Senator L i  eberman. 

Q What was your involvement i n  rev iewing Our Changing 

Planet? 

A You know, I t h i n k  i t  was j u s t  o rd ina ry .  I t h i n k  

the Our Changing Planet Report would come through the OMB 

process t o  - -  as I said,  you know, i t ' s  the  OMB process, 17 

a f fec ted  agencies. The Our Changing Planet  Report i s  c a l l e d  

f o r  - -  i t s  p repara t ion  i s  c a l l e d  f o r  i n  the Global  Change 

Research Act ,  bu t  you know, I want t o  take one s tep sideways 

f o r  10 seconds. The Global  Change Research Act - -  you know, 

I do have i t  here, and you a l l  have i t ,  too,  because i t  was 

sent ou t  as p a r t  o f  the documents l a s t  week, bu t  Sect ion 102 

gives CEQ a r o l e  i n  a l l  o f  the interagency process regard ing 

the prepara t ion  o f  documents under the  Act ,  i n c l u d i n g  the Our 

Changing Planet  Report,  i n c l u d i n g  the 10-year S t ra teg i c  Plan, 

and i t  says t h a t  a  h igh- rank ing  o f f i c i a l  from each o f  these 

agencies i s  supposed t o  be the one who i s  rev iewing these 

documents and coo rd ina t i ng  them and r e p o r t i n g  them, and I was 

the h igh- rank ing  o f f i c i a l  a t  t h a t  agency, and so - -  

Q You were tasked - -  

A And so t o  get t o  your quest ion - -  



Q - -  w i t h  t h i s  issue - -  

A  Yes. I got  on the review l i s t  as the CEQ 

representa t ive  who reviewed the Our Changing Planet Report 

when OMB would send i t  ou t  f o r  interagency review, and I 

t h i n k  - -  you know, there  were a  l o t  o f  people on those 

reviews, 50, 60 people. I was one. 

Q And was anybody e lse  a t  CEQ a l so  invo lved i n  

rev iewing t h a t ,  l i k e  M r .  Hannegan? 

A Yes. M r .  Hannegan, a f t e r  he came, r e a l l y ,  r e a l l y  

i n  l a r g e  p a r t  took over the whole science p o r t f o l i o .  He took 

over a  l o t  o f  the work on c l imate  change. You know, we were 

d r a f t i n g  vo lun ta ry  emissions r e p o r t i n g  gu ide l ines .  A t  DOE, 

t h a t  was a  huge p r o j e c t .  He worked on t h a t .  He worked on 

the science s t u f f .  He had the background and the i n t e r e s t ,  

and he was a  very competent person, and he took over a  l o t  o f  

the c l ima te  change work when he came t o  the counc i l .  

Q And when d i d  he - -  I ' m  sor ry .  T e l l  me again. When 

d i d  he - -  

A I t h i n k  i t  was i n  the spr ing  o f  2003. I d o n ' t  

remember the  exact date.  

Q O f  2003? 

A I be l i eve  so. 

Q So was Our Changing Planet s o r t  o f  l i k e  the 

s t r a t e g i c  p l a n  i n  t h a t  there  are many d r a f t s  o f  i t?  

A Not as many as the s t r a t e g i c  p lan.  The s t r a t e g i c  



p lan  was r e a l l y  a  very impor tant  document because i t  set  the 

tone o f  the a d m i n i s t r a t i o n ' s  research p r i o r i t i e s  f o r  a  

10-year per iod,  and a l o t  o f  people were inves ted  i n  i t ,  and 

we inc luded the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences i n  i t s  formal 

review, and we had the b i g  i n t e r n a t i o n a l  workshop, so the 

review process on the 10-year S t ra teg i c  Plan was a l o t  more 

e laborate than the review process on the annual Our Changing 

Planet Report. The Our Changing Planet Report was j u s t  

r o u t i n e l y  t ransmi t ted  and sent t o  and accepted by Congress. 

I t  i s  a  repo r t  t h a t  accompanies our submission o f  the budget, 

and we were request ing between $1.6 b i l l i o n  and $2 b i l l i o n  a 

year f o r  c l ima te  change research, and i t  i temized what 

agencies would be doing what work under our budget. I t  i s  a  

budget r e p o r t .  

Q And i t  was prepared by CCSP? 

A I t  was i n i t i a l l y  d r a f t e d  - -  M r .  P i l t z  t e s t i f i e d  a t  

the hear ing i n  January t h a t  he was the  person who d r a f t e d  the 

Our Changing Planet Report. I d i d n ' t  r e a l l y  know who d r a f t e d  

i t ,  bu t  he sa id  he d r a f t e d  i t ,  and then i t  would be sent t o  

OMB f o r  interagency review, and I would comment along w i t h  

many o thers .  

Q So d i d  you deal  w i t h  D r .  Mahoney again w i t h  regard 

t o  your comments on t h i s ?  

A I d o n ' t  remember s p e c i f i c a l l y ,  bu t  I would j u s t  say 

t h a t  D r .  Mahoney and I had a very c o r d i a l  and r e s p e c t f u l  



working r e l a t i o n s h i p ,  and i f  he had a  ques t ion  about i t  o r  

about a  recommendation I had made, he would p i c k  up the phone 

o r  I would do the same, but  he he ld  the  pen a t  the end o f  the 

process, and he sa id  so i n  h i s  statements t o  Congress. 

[ E x h i b i t  No. 1 3  

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MS. SAFAVIAN: 

Q Let  me j u s t  show you a  document on t h i s  mat ter ,  and 

i f  you w i l l ,  j u s t  take a  qu ick l ook  through t h i s .  I am not  

going t o  ask you about every th ing  i n  here, bu t  i t ' s  j u s t  t o  

r e f r e s h  your r e c o l l e c t i o n  about t h i s  document. 

A Yes. 

Q Are these your e d i t s ,  your handwr i t ing  e d i t s ,  on 

these pages t h a t  we see? 

A They are.  You know, i t  i s  my handwr i t ing ,  bu t  I am 

no t  sure what I d i d  w i t h  t h i s  document when I wrote on i t .  I 

may have - -  I d o n ' t  know i f  I sent i t  back t o  Dr. Mahoney o r  

whether I c a l l e d  him and sa id,  you know, a f t e r  a  day o r  two 

t h i n k i n g  about i t  and sa id,  you know, " I  have got one o r  two 

b i g  comments on t h i s . "  I do no t  remember fo rma l l y  sending 

t h i s  back t o  him. 

Q You d o n ' t ?  

A No. 

Q Because i t  looks l i k e  - -  



A I may have c a l l e d  him o r  I may have sa id  - -  I may 

have thought about i t  overn igh t  and sa id,  "Gee, maybe I ' m  

making a mountain out  o f  a m o l e h i l l .  I ' v e  j u s t  got  two 

th ings  t h a t  r e a l l y  mat ter  t o  me. They ' re  t r y i n g  t o  pub l i sh  

t h i s  r e p o r t .  They're t r y i n g  t o  have t h i s  p u b l i c  workshop." 

So I might have c a l l e d  him and sa id,  you know, "What's t h i s  

p o i n t  on a ' c e r t a i n  page' "? I do no t  remember sending t h i s  

back w i t h  my hard, you know, w r i t t e n  comments. These might 

have been j u s t  my notes t o  mysel f ,  and I may have c a l l e d  him. 

Q So you have no r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  e i t h e r  sending t h i s  

back o r  having any conversat ion w i t h  D r .  Mahoney? Because, . 

as t o  some o f  your comments on the  s ide ,  i t  looks l i k e  

t h e y ' r e  proposing a r e v i s i o n  t o  your i n i t i a l  comment, and 

sometimes - -  

A Yes. 

Q - -  you have on the s ide  "no" o r  "okay" - -  

A Yes. 

Q - -  o r  you know, " take t h a t  o u t "  o r  whatever. 

Do you r e c a l l  having d i r e c t  conversat ions w i t h  

D r .  Mahoney about, you know, t h e i r  suggestions and whether 

you agreed w i t h  them o r  d i d n ' t  agree w i t h  them? 

A I j u s t  d o n ' t  remember s p e c i f i c a l l y .  I t  i s  

November 2002, so t h a t  was j u s t  - -  I j u s t  d o n ' t  remember a 

day where we t a l k e d  about t h i s .  

Q Let  me ask you t h i s ,  though. 



D r .  Mahoney i s  sending t h i s  back t o  you w i t h  a r e v i s i o n  

of your i n i t i a l  comment. Would you have been i n  a p o s i t i o n  

t o  e i t h e r  send t h i s  back o r  t o  c a l l  him and say, "Sorry,  

D r .  Mahoney. No, you cannot change my comment"? 

A He was o f  a much h igher  rank than I i n  the 

admin i s t ra t i on .  He was the Senate-confirmed Ass is tan t  

Secretary o f  the  Department o f  Commerce, and so i t  would - -  I 

understood he had a h igher  rank, and i t  was he. Not on l y  

t h a t ,  he had r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  as the D i r e c t o r  o f  the Cl imate 

Change Science Program O f f i c e  t o  have the f i n a l  word on 

content .  So, you know, I could have sa id ,  "Why n o t " ?  I 

could have argued, bu t  he always had the f i n a l  judgment and 

dec is ion .  

Q So you c o u l d n ' t  demand t h a t  he take one o f  your 

comments i f  he d i d  no t  want t o ?  

A No. 

Q Okay. Did you ever meet - -  you sa id  e a r l i e r  you 

met M r .  P i l t z  because you were i n  some meetings w i t h  him. 

A Yes. I would see him a t  meetings, yes. So I might 

say " h i "  t o  him, and he would say " h i "  t o  me. 

Q Did M r .  P i l t z  ever d i r e c t l y  conf ront  you about h i s  

concerns t h a t  he has pu t  i n  t h i s  memo t h a t  we have been 

t a l k i n g  about? Did he ever address t h i s  w i t h  you? 

A No. No. I t  was - -  i t  i s  puzz l i ng  t o  me t h a t  we 

d i d  p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  a number o f  meetings together ,  and I now 



understand he had s t rong views about my r o l e ,  bu t  he d i d n ' t  

speak t o  me about i t .  

Q Did  D r .  Mahoney o r  anybody e l s e  on h i s  beha l f ,  

perhaps, ever address any o f  these issues w i t h  you? 

A Rick P i l t z '  issues? 

Q Yes. 

A No. D r .  Mahoney j u s t  - -  he j u s t  d i d  h i s  job.  We 

t a l k e d  about - -  we t a l k e d  occas iona l l y .  We t a l k e d  th ings  

through, and i t  was very respec t fu l .  

Q I would l i k e  t o  t a l k  about the - -  

A He d i d n ' t  t e l l  me M r .  P i l t z  had a  problem. I d i d  

not  know t h a t .  

Q You d i d  no t  know t h a t  u n t i l  you l a t e r  saw a  copy o f  

h i s  memo? 

A Yes, and a  l o t  o f  o ther  th ings .  

Q I would l i k e  t o  t a l k  now about the EPA's d r a f t  

r e p o r t  on the environment. 

A Yes. 

Q Can you t e l l  me what was your r o l e ,  i f  any, w i t h  

regard t o  t h a t  r e p o r t ?  

A Wel l ,  again, I was a  reviewer.  Although, t h a t  was 

a  b i g  r e p o r t ,  and there  were a  l o t  o f  dimensions t o  the 

r e p o r t  - -  a i r  q u a l i t y ,  water q u a l i t y ,  Federal  land,  

Super Fund cleanups. I t  was a  b i g ,  enormous repo r t ,  so a  l o t  

o f  people reviewed i t .  



Q W i t h i n  CEQ? 

A  W i t h i n  t h e  - -  throughout  t h e  Federa l  Government. 

T h i r t y  agencies p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  t h e  in te ragency  rev iew on 

t h a t ,  something l i k e  t h a t .  A l o t  o f  people p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  

t h e  rev iew because i t  was about env i ronmenta l  i n d i c a t o r s ,  and 

so I - -  bu t  I d i d  comment on a  ve ry  s h o r t ,  I t h i n k  i t  was, 4- 

o r  5-page c l i m a t e  s e c t i o n  t h a t  they had d r a f t e d .  

Q I ' m  s o r r y .  J u s t  so I understand,  your o n l y  r o l e  i n  

r ev iew ing  t h a t  document was t he  s h o r t  s e c t i o n  on c l i m a t e  

change? 

A  Not r e a l l y ,  because I do r e c a l l  a t  some p o i n t  

l o o k i n g  a t  some o f  t h e  a i r  q u a l i t y  chap te rs  a l though t he re  

were people i n  CEQ who were exper ts  about a i r  q u a l i t y ,  so 

they would have reviewed i t ,  bu t  I do remember l o o k i n g  a t  

o t h e r  elements o f  t h e  r e p o r t  and l o o k i n g  a t  i t  i n  i t s  

t o t a l i t y  because i t  was an impor tan t  r e p o r t  on environmental  

i n d i c a t o r s ,  b u t  na r row ly ,  I d i d  l o o k  a t  t he  c l i m a t e  change - -  

w e l l ,  t h e  5-page summary t h a t  they had d r a f t e d  f o r  i n c l u s i o n  

i n  t h e  r e p o r t  on g l o b a l  c l i m a t e  change. 

Q So who e l s e  besides y o u r s e l f  a t  CEQ - -  I mean how 

many o t h e r  people a t  CEQ looked a t  t h i s  r e p o r t  a l so?  

A  A  l o t .  I would say a  number o f  people.  I n  f a c t ,  

we had a t  t h a t  t ime  a  d e t a i l e e  f rom EPA named Alan Hecht who 

was r e a l l y  - -  he was a t  CEQ, bu t  he was work ing w i t h  EPA on 

t h e  development and - -  t h e  in te ragency  development and rev iew 



o f  t h e  s t a t e  o f  t h e  environment r e p o r t ,  and CEQ, i t s e l f ,  had 

f o r  many years under t h e  a u t h o r i t y  t h a t  i t  has under NEPA - -  

i ssued  a r e p o r t  on env i ronmenta l  i n d i c a t o r s ,  b u t  i n  t h i s  

case, an agreement was made t h a t  EPA would undertake an 

e f f o r t  l i k e  t h a t ,  and so we had a d e t a i l e e  a t  CEQ, A lan 

Hecht,  who r e a l l y  managed t h i s ,  and he would walk t he  d r a f t  

around t o  d i f f e r e n t  people i n  CEQ and g e t  comments, c o l l e c t  

them and send them back t o  t h e  Agency. 

Q So would you have g i ven  him your  comments? 

A Yes. 

Q And how many do you r e c a l l ?  How many d r a f t s ?  Do 

you r e c a l l  how many ve rs i ons  o f  t h i s  r e p o r t  you would have 

looked a t ?  

A You know, i t  was - -  i n  t h i s  case, t h e r e  were a l o t  

o f  d i f f e r e n t  d r a f t s .  I t  was no t  - -  i t s  development r e a l l y  

was n o t  smooth i n  t he  in te ragency  process,  n o t  o n l y  on t h e  

c l i m a t e  change i ssue ,  bu t  i n  genera l ,  i t  was no t  r e a l l y  

smooth, so t h e r e  were a number o f  d r a f t s .  

Q And do you r e c a l l  - -  and I d o n ' t  have t he  document, 

so t h i s  i s  o n l y  what your r e c o l l e c t i o n  i s .  

Do you r e c a l l  what t ype  o f  e d i t s  o r  suggest ions,  maybe 

t h e  themes, t h a t  you would have made comments on o r  e d i t e d  t o  

t h i s  r e p o r t ?  Do you r e c a l l  any o f  them? 

A Yes, I do r e c a l l  some o f  t h e  e d i t s  t h a t  I 

suggested. 



Q What are the  ones t h a t  you r e c a l l ?  

A  I r e c a l l  - -  God, there are so many repo r t s .  

Q I know. 

A I r e c a l l  there  was t h i s  opening, Global  Cl imate 

Changes I m p l i c a t i o n s ,  Global  I m p l i c a t i o n s  f o r  Human Heal th  

and the Environment o r  something. I t  was the  opening 

statement, and I thought - -  i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t  o r  - -  

Ms. Bennett.  Go ahead. I d o n ' t  r e c a l l  o f f  the top  o f  

my head. 

The Witness. Wel l ,  i t  seemed a  sweeping statement, t o  

me, r e l a t i v e  t o  what the Nat iona l  Academy o f  Sciences has 

sa id  about how poor l y  understood any impacts on human hea l th  

would be. I also  recommended an i n s e r t i o n  t o  what was a  new 

repor t ,  the r e p o r t  by Soon and Bal iunas, on proxy data the 

past 1,000 years and what i t  sa id  about the  temperature 

record f o r  the past 1,000 years, and I recommended a  c i t a t i o n  

t o  t h a t  r e p o r t  which had come out  i n  the  s p r i n g  o f  2003 and 

was a  f e d e r a l l y  funded r e p o r t  - -  al though, A P I ,  I understood, 

con t r i bu ted  a  minimal amount - -  bu t  as a  new r e p o r t ,  i t  had 

gained a  l o t  o f  a t t e n t i o n ,  and i t  was prepared by W i l l y  Soon 

and S a l l y  Bal iunas,  who are both s c i e n t i s t s  a t  the  Harvard 

Smithsonian Center f o r  Ast rophys ics,  and I thought i t  was 

m a t e r i a l  because i t  spoke t o  the ques t ion  o f  whether the  

20th Century was, i n  f a c t ,  the warmest i n  the past 

mi l lennium. I t  was new. I t  was c u r r e n t ,  and I recommended 



i t  be i n s e r t e d ,  so I r e a l i z e d  t h a t  t h a t  has been 

c o n t r o v e r s i a l  i n  M r .  P i l t z '  v iew. So I l ooked  a t  a  coup le  o f  

t he  comments t h a t  I had made on d r a f t s .  There were d i f f e r e n t  

d r a f t s ,  though, t h a t  evolved,  and I t h i n k  t h e r e  was a  v iew. 

There was an exper ience t h a t  EPA was n o t  ve ry  r e c e p t i v e  t o  

comments and recommendations t h a t  o t h e r  agencies were making 

on i t s  d r a f t s .  I t h i n k  t he re  was f r u s t r a t i o n .  I t h i n k  t h e r e  

was a  v iew - -  i f  you l o o k  a t  documents t h a t  were sent  up t o  

t he  committee t h a t  I reviewed l a s t  week t h a t  were sent  t o  the  

Counc i l  o f  Economic Adv isors ,  t h e  O f f i c e  o f  Science and 

Technology P o l i c y ,  t he  O f f i c e  o f  Management and Budget, t h e  

Department of  Energy, they were a l l  concerned and s t a t e d  

t h e i r  concern t h a t  the  EPA 5-page d r a f t  on c l i m a t e  change 

lacked  ba lance,  and t h a t  was t h e  v iew t h a t  we shared, so 

t h e r e  was back and f o r t h  on t h a t  element o f  t h e  r e p o r t .  

Q "Back and f o r t h "  meaning you were i n v o l v e d  i n  t h a t ,  

o r  do you mean "back and f o r t h "  among t h e  d i f f e r e n t  agencies? 

A  I gave my comments t o  A lan  Hecht,  who was t h e  

d e t a i l e e ,  and he s a i d  - -  you know, he r e a l l y  took  t h e  

comments back t o  EPA, and then we'd g e t  a  new d r a f t  a  month 

l a t e r ,  and we would say, "Why haven ' t  any o f  our  comments 

been addressed"? So t he re  was some f r u s t r a t i o n ,  I t h i n k ,  b u t  

A lan  was t h e  i n t e r f a c e  between t h e  Environmental  P r o t e c t i o n  

Agency and our  o f f i c e  and a  l o t  o f  o t h e r  agencies.  He was 

t h e  s o r t  o f  t h e  d e t a i l e e  guy who was p u l l i n g  t h i s  r e p o r t  



together ,  l ead ing  i t ,  lead ing  i t s  development i n  be ing p u l l e d  

together .  So, i n  CEQ, a number o f  us gave comments t o  Alan, 

and he took them back t o  EPA f o r  t h e i r  cons idera t ion .  

Q Did you have any conversat ions w i t h  anyone a t  EPA 

about your e d i t s  o r  suggestions? 

A With EPA? 

Q Yes. 

A Wel l ,  Alan h imse l f  was an EPA employee, and he was 

d e t a i l e d  a t  the White House, so I o n l y  spoke t o  him. I 

d i d n ' t  speak t o  anyone a t  the EPA, you know, t o  my 

r e c o l l e c t i o n .  

Ms. Safavian. Okay. Le t  me show you t h i s  document 

which i s  E x h i b i t  14. 

[ E x h i b i t  No. 14 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MS.  SAFAVIAN: 

Q And I w i l l  j u s t  ask you t o  take a qu icker  view o f  

i t .  

A I have seen t h i s  p o r t i o n  o f  i t .  I haven' t  seen the 

t h i r d  page. 

Q Wel l ,  I ' m  on ly  going t o  focus on the f i r s t  two 

pages. So you have seen t h i s  before,  and when d i d  you see 

i t ?  

A I do not  remember. A f t e r  - -  you know, a f t e r  the 



Sta te  o f  the Environment Report was released, I bel ieve ,  i n  

June 2003, the re  was a  l o t  o f  media a t t e n t i o n  about the f a c t  

t h a t  there  was no t  a  c l ima te  chapter i n  the  r e p o r t .  I t h i n k  

I saw t h i s  memoranda, bu t  i t  was on ly  a f t e r  the repo r t  was 

issued, and - -  

M r .  Dotson. Can I i n t e r r u p t  and ask a  quest ion? 

This  document, t h i s  e x h i b i t ,  i s  d i f f e r e n t  than the memo 

t h a t  we received from CEQ i n  the  same mat te r .  I was j u s t  

wondering. I am j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  f i g u r e  ou t  where t h i s  came 

from. I t  seems t o  have come from a  textbook,  but t h a t  was i n  

the l a s t  t ranche o f  documents t h a t  we received i n  the - -  take 

your t ime.  I was j u s t  wondering i f  we should inc lude t h a t  

along w i t h  the - -  

Ms. Safavian. Not u n t i l  I ' v e  had a  chance t o  review i t .  

BY M S .  SAFAVIAN: 

Q Okay. I ' m  so r ry .  You sa id  you were saying t h a t  

you - -  

A That I became aware o f  t h i s  memorandum a f t e r  the 

r e p o r t  was released and the  media covered the  repo r t .  

Q Did you know p r i o r  t o  seeing t h i s  t h a t  there was 

some concern on EPA's p a r t  about CEQ and OMB's e d i t s  and 

comments t o  the r e p o r t ?  

A You know, I r e c a l l  Alan Hecht saying, "We're 

g e t t i n g  some pushback from EPA, bu t  I'll handle i t , "  but  he 



was the  f r o n t  - -  he was the i n t e r f a c e ,  and he - -  I remember 

h i s  saying something l i k e  t h a t ,  you know, and so - -  

Q But you d o n ' t  r e c a l l  beyond t h a t  any other  

controversy about the White House's e d i t s  t o  the repo r t?  

A I r e c a l l  t h a t  there  was a  r e s o l u t i o n  process a t  the 

end o f  the process f o r  disagreements, and t h a t  was between 

Governor Whitman and Chairman Connaughton, and I understood 

t h a t  Governor Whitman made the dec is ion  t o  remove the 5-page 

summary on c l ima te  change science and, ins tead,  decided t o  

i n s e r t  a  reference, a  Web s i t e  reference, t o  the 10-year 

S t ra teg i c  Plan and t o  the USGCRP Web s i t e  f o r  the Our 

Changing Planet Report.  

I might j u s t  say f u r t h e r  t h a t  D r .  Marburger, the White 

House Science Advisor,  issued a  p u b l i c  statement on t h i s  i n  

2004 i n  response t o  a  r e p o r t  from the Union o f  Concerned 

S c i e n t i s t s  about t h i s ~ w h o l e  issue, and he has taken i t  upon 

h imsel f  t o  exp la in  the White House Science O f f i c e ' s  view o f  

t h i s  issue,  and so I d o n ' t  know i f  you have h i s  statement, 

but  i t  i s  an impor tant  i t ' s  cons is ten t .  

Q You mentioned t h a t  you knew t h a t  there  was a  

dialogue between M r .  Connaughton and C h r i s t i n e  Todd Whitman. 

Do you know when t h a t  occurred? 

A I d o n ' t .  

Q Were you present du r ing  the meeting? 

A I was not .  



Q Okay. How do you even know about i t  then? 

A I c a n ' t  r e a l l y  remember. 

Q Do you t h i n k  i t  was something M r .  Connaughton would 

have informed you about? 

A He may have come i n t o  my o f f i c e  and sa id ,  you know, 

"They're going t o  p u b l i s h  t h i s  repo r t  next  week. We r e a l l y  - 

we had a  good conversat ion,  and we have a  path forward,"  o r  

something. I shou ldn ' t  even say th ings  l i k e  t h a t .  I d o n ' t  

remember anyth ing t h a t  he sa id .  I d o n ' t  know how I knew t h a t  

they had a  conversat ion,  bu t  h i s  o f f i c e  was r i g h t  next t o  

mine, so he might have t o l d  me t h a t  he had spoken t o  her .  

Q Wel l ,  then, how do you know t h a t  i t  was Ms. Whitman 

who made the dec i s ion  t o  j u s t  remove those 5 pages and make 

o ther  references? 

A You know, I could be i n c o r r e c t  on t h i s  p o i n t ,  bu t  I 

be l ieve  t h a t  the  EPA p u b l i c  statements i n  the media a f t e r  the 

r e p o r t  was publ ished s a i d  t h a t  the EPA has decided t o  remove 

the c l i m a t e  change 5-page summary i n  favor  o f  a  reference t o  

the s t r a t e g i c  p lan ,  which came out ,  as you know, a  month 

l a t e r  and was a  much f u l l e r  expos i t i on  o f  the science o f  

c l ima te  change and what we were going t o  be addressing than 

the 5-page summary t h a t  the EPA had developed was. 

Sorry f o r  the l o n g  answer. 

Q T h a t ' s  okay. 

So, beyond, maybe, what you read i n  the press, do you 



r e c a l l  having any f u r t h e r  r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  anybody e l se  

d iscuss ing t h i s  matter w i t h  you, the concerns t h a t  EPA may 

have had about the White House's e d i t s  t o  t h e i r  r e p o r t ?  

A No. I would j u s t  vo lunteer  something, I guess, I 

have already sa id .  My lawyer doesn ' t  want me t o  vo lunteer  

anyth ing,  bu t  we were s o r t  o f  m y s t i f i e d  t h a t ,  as we commented 

on var ious  d r a f t s ,  t h a t  the comments d i d n ' t  seem t o  be - -  
they were no t  addressed, and so a l o t  o f  people were saying, 

you know, "Why i s n ' t  the EPA responding t o  the comments i t ' s  

r e c e i v i n g  on the  r e p o r t  on a whole range o f  i ssues"?  

Q Do you mean r e f e r r i n g  j u s t  t o  CEQ's comments o r  - -  
A Everybody's. Everybody's. A l l  o f  the other  

agencies were. 

Q They had the same complaint? 

A Yes. You know, the n a t u r a l  resource agencies i n  

the Department o f  the I n t e r i o r  c o l l e c t  a l o t  o f  data on 

western lands and graz ing and endangered species and th ings  

l i k e  t h a t ,  and there  was, I t h i n k ,  a l e v e l  o f  concern among a 

number o f  agencies t h a t  the EPA was no t  be ing responsive t o  

i n p u t  t h a t  i t  was rece iv ing ,  but  Alan Hecht, again, i s  the 

i n t e r f a c e  a t  our o f f i c e .  

Ms. Safavian. A t  t h i s  t ime, what I am going t o  do i s  I 

t h i n k  I w i l l  ho ld  and reserve our remaining 13 ,  14 minutes, 

and a t  the end, i f  you a l l  would j u s t  save t h a t  t ime, Brooke 

may have a few fo l l ow-up  questions j u s t  t o  wrap th ings  up. 



M r .  Baran. Sure. 

Ms. Safavian. Does t h a t  work? I t h i n k  we have about 1 3  

minutes; i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  So, i f  you w i l l ,  j u s t  save those 1 3  

minutes. 

I apologize,  M r .  Cooney, bu t  I do have t o  leave now. 

Thank you very much f o r  being here today and answering our 

quest ions.  

The Witness. Thank you. 

M r .  Dotson. Can we take one moment f o r  the repo r te rs  t o  

swi tch? 

[Recess. 1 



RPTS BINGHAM 

DCMN HERZFELD 

[5:18 p.m.] 

M r .  Baran. I am J e f f  Baran, and I w i l l  be doing the 

next se t  o f  quest ion ing.  

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q I would l i k e  t o  r e t u r n  t o  E x h i b i t  Number 9.  

E x h i b i t  Number 9 i s  an October 28, 2002, fax cover sheet 

attached t o  a  number o f  pages from the  October 2 1 ,  2002, 

d r a f t  o f  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan .  You prepared t h i s  fax ,  c o r r e c t ?  

A Yes. My w r i t i n g  on the cover sheet. 

Q There are a  number o f  handwr i t ten e d i t s  and 

comments t o  t h i s  d r a f t .  D id you persona l ly  make these e d i t s  

and comments? 

A Yes. I haven' t  looked a t  every page, but  I expect 

I d i d .  

Q Take a  moment t o  review i t .  

M r .  Tuohev. Your quest ion i s  comprehensive, a l l  the 

changes? 

Mr. Baran. Yes. 

The Witness. Okay. These appear t o  be a l l  o f  my 

comments, yes. 

M r .  Baran. We are done w i t h  t h a t  document. 

I w i l l  ask the  repo r te r  t o  mark t h i s  e x h i b i t  E x h i b i t  1 5 ,  



May 30, 2003, fax  cover sheet at tached t o  a  two-page document 

and a  number o f  pages from the May 28, 2003, d r a f t  o f  the 

s t r a t e g i c  p lan.  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 1 5  

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q You prepared t h i s  fax ,  c o r r e c t ?  

A Yes. That i s  my handwr i t ing on the cover l e t t e r .  

Q The fax  sheet r e f e r s  t o  red f l a g s .  What d i d  you 

mean by " red  f l a g s " ?  

A Wel l ,  t h a t  was D r .  Mahoney's term when he sent ou t  

these d r a f t s  t o  M r .  Connaughton, D r .  Marburger and o thers .  

He c a l l e d  i t  a r e d - f l a g  review. And i t  was, you know, an 

i n fo rma l  process f o r  reviewing the d r a f t  a t  t h a t  t ime. 

Q Did a  red f l a g  s i g n i f y  t h a t  i t  was an e d i t  o f  

s i g n i f i c a n c e ,  p a r t i c u l a r  s ign i f i cance?  

M r .  Tuohey. I f  you know. 

The Witness. I t  was - -  i t  was h i s  term. I guess i f  you 

pu t  - -  i f  you hand-wrote the words " r e d  f l ag , ' '  i t  i s  l i k e  can 

we t a l k  about t h i s  one? You know, the  o ther  s t u f f  may have 

been e d i t o r i a l ,  bu t  i f  you put  " red  f l a g , "  i t  would imply 

l e t ' s  t a l k  about t h i s  one. 

Q So i f  there  were top i cs  t h a t  you had ser ious  

concerns about, you would red f l a g  those? 

A Wel l ,  i t  was a  r e d - f l a g  review. Sometimes you 



would w r i t e  the  word " red  f l a g "  and imply  - -  I guess i t  would 

imply  t h a t  you ' re  ser ious about the comment, and you want t o  

t a l k  about i t .  

Q When you used the term " red  f l a g , "  d i d  you expect 

t h a t  t h a t  e d i t  would be accepted? 

A No, because D r .  Mahoney made a l l  f i n a l  dec is ions.  

I was j u s t  - -  

Q So when you d i d  your e d i t i n g  a t  CEQ, d i d  you 

genera l l y  use the  term " red  f l a g "  i n  t h i s  way? 

A My e d i t i n g  a t  CEQ a t  l a rge?  I d o n ' t  understand 

your quest ion.  

Q Le t  me rephrase the  quest ion.  Wi th  respect t o  the  

s t r a t e g i c  p lan,  when you used the term " red  f l a g , "  d i d  you 

use i t  i n  the way you j u s t  described? 

A Again, I would say t h a t  the terminology " red  f l a g  

review" was i n  the cap t ion  l i n e  o f  what D r .  Mahoney sent ou t .  

But,  yes, I genera l l y  descr ibe t h a t  I - -  i f  I was 

red - f l agg ing  something, I thought i t  was an important issue.  

Q I n  your experience, when you ra i sed  a  red f l a g ,  

would your concern be addressed by D r .  Mahoney? 

A  I genera l l y  d i d n ' t  do a  r e c o n c i l i a t i o n  between 

whether I had made a  comment and whether i t  was accepted. 

Q The next two pages o f  the document are comments by 

chapter.  The top  o f  the page says, "Comments from Bryan 

Hannegan (CEQ) . "  I s  t h i s  a  l i s t  o f  Bryan Hannegan's e d i t s ?  



A I assume so. 

Q Take a l ook  a t  the e d i t s  f o r  a  moment. Do those 

look  l i k e  e d i t s  t h a t  Bryan Hannegan would make? 

A Some do. I wouldn ' t  make a comment l i k e  - -  I don ' t  

t h i n k  I would make a comment l i k e ,  "Thawing permafrost may 

not  necessar i l y  l ead  t o  emissions o f  methane," because I 

d o n ' t  know anyth ing about t h a t .  So he would more l i k e l y  have 

made t h a t  comment than I. 

Q On the remaining pages there  are a number o f  

handwr i t ten comments and e d i t s  t o  t h i s  d r a f t .  Take a moment 

t o  review those. Are a l l  o f  these e d i t s  and comments yours? 

A Yes. These comments appear t o  be my comments. 

Q Thank you. We are f i n i s h e d  w i t h  t h a t  e x h i b i t .  

M r .  Baran. I ask the repo r te r  t o  mark t h i s  e x h i b i t  

E x h i b i t  16.  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 16 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q E x h i b i t  16 i s  a  June 2nd, 2003, fax  cover sheet 

at tached t o  a number o f  pages from the  May 29th, 2003, d r a f t  

o f  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan .  You prepared t h i s  fax ,  co r rec t?  

A You s a i d  from a May 29th, 2003 - -  

Q D r a f t  o f  the  s t r a t e g i c  p lan.  

A These are my comments. 

Q So, you prepared t h a t  fax?  



A Um-hum. Yes. 

M r .  Tuohey. You have t o  answer yes o r  no. 

The Witness. Yes. 

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q And the handwr i t ten e d i t s  and comments on t h a t  

d r a f t  were yours? 

A Yes. 

Q Thank you. We are done w i t h  t h a t  e x h i b i t .  

M r .  Baran. I w i l l  ask the repo r te r  t o  mark t h i s  

exhi b i  t . 

[ E x h i b i t  No. 17 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q E x h i b i t  17  i s  a  l i s t  o f  CEQ e d i t s  and comments t o  

the s t r a t e g i c  p lan .  I t  i s  dated June 16th,  2003; i s  t h a t  

c o r r e c t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Are these your e d i t s  and comments? 

A The document i t s e l f  says BH and PC, so they appear 

t o  be both o f  our comments i n teg ra ted  i n t o  one document. 

Q A t  severa l  po in ts  i n  the document, there  are 

comments t h a t  have an explanat ion associated w i t h  them. For 

example, on t h i s  f i r s t  page, when you see the reference t o  

page 6, l i n e  38 t o  40,  there  i s  an e d i t  there  fo l lowed by, i n  

brackets,  "Explanat ion,"  and then an explanat ion i s  given. 



M r .  Tuohey. The one t h a t  says, " L e t ' s  be judged by our  

p roduc ts . "  

M r .  Baran. Co r rec t .  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Can you t e l l  us whether exp lana t i ons  l i k e  those 

were yours? 

A I c a n ' t .  

Q L e t ' s  l o o k  a t  t he  nex t  page, page 22, t he  re fe rence  

t o  page 22 ,  l i n e  44 t o  45. See, t h e r e  i s  an e x p l a n a t i o n  

t h e r e :  "Exp lana t ion :  Wasn't i t  a l l  ' i n t e r n a l '  processes i n  

t h e  h i s t o r i c  record?  What was t h e  source o f  any ' e x t e r n a l '  

f o r c i n g ? "  

Do you know i f  t h a t  was your  e x p l a n a t i o n  i n  e d i t ?  

A I do n o t .  

Q L e t ' s  t u r n  t o  nex t  page, t h e  re fe rence  t o  page 27, 

l i n e  39 t o  41. There i s  an exp lana t i on  t h e r e :  "Legal  

cons ide ra t i ons  p rec lude  ment ion ing  t h e  N a t i o n a l  Assessment." 

Do you know whether t h a t  i s  your  e d i t  and comment? 

A  I r e a l l y  do n o t  know whether i t  i s  mine. 

Q So you j u s t  d o n ' t  have a  r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  whether 

any s p e c i f i c  e d i t  o r  comment on t h i s  l i s t  was yours  o r  Bryan 

Hannegan's? 

A I f  I went one by one, he, o b v i o u s l y ,  i s  a  t r a i n e d  

s c i e n t i s t  and would g i v e  comments t h a t  I would recognize as 

h i s  i f  they  were ve ry  i n h e r e n t l y  s c i e n t i f i c .  



Q Do you have a  sense w i t h  t h i s  round o f  e d i t s  how 

many e d i t s  you made i n  comparison t o  how many e d i t s  Bryan 

Hannegan made? 

A  I d o n ' t  r e c a l l .  

M r .  Baran. I t h i n k  we a re  done w i t h  t h a t  e x h i b i t .  

I ask t h e  r e p o r t e r  t o  mark t h i s  e x h i b i t  E x h i b i t  18. 

[ E x h i b i t  No. 18 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q E x h i b i t  18 i s  a  number o f  pages f rom the  Agency's 

concurrence d r a f t  o f  t h e  s t r a t e g i c  p l a n .  There are  a  number 

o f  handwr i t t en  e d i t s  t o  t h i s  d r a f t .  D i d  you pe rsona l l y  make 

these e d i t s ?  

M r .  Tuohey. Take your t ime.  

The Witness.  A c t u a l l y  I would say t h a t ,  yes, I 

recognize t h i s  as my handwr i t i ng .  And on page 216, t h i s  

appears t o  be where I make a  recommendation t o  d e l e t e  a 

re fe rence  t o  t he  N a t i o n a l  Assessment. As I p o i n t e d  o u t  

before ,  t h a t  was a  recommendation t h a t  was n o t  accepted by 

D r .  Mahoney as t he  f i n a l  r e p o r t .  Page 111 con ta ins  t h i s  

sentence. 

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q But these were your  e d i t s ?  

A  I b e l i e v e  so. 

Q Thank you. We a re  done w i t h  t h a t  e x h i b i t .  



M r .  Baran. I w i l l  ask the repo r te r  t o  mark t h i s  

e x h i b i t .  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 19  

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q E x h i b i t  19 i s  a  June 5 ,  2003, fax cover sheet 

attached t o  a  number o f  pages from the June 4, 2003, d r a f t  o f  

the execut ive summary o f  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan .  You prepared 

t h i s  fax ,  c o r r e c t ?  

A Yes. 

Q There are a  number o f  handwr i t ten e d i t s  and 

comments t o  t h i s  d r a f t .  Please take a  moment t o  look a t  the 

document. Are a l l  o f  these e d i t s  and comments yours? 

A They are.  

Q Thank you. We are f i n i s h e d  w i t h  t h a t  e x h i b i t .  

M r .  Baran. I ask the  repo r te r  t o  mark t h i s  e x h i b i t .  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 20 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q E x h i b i t  20 has a  number o f  pages from the June 5 th ,  

2003, d r a f t  o f  the execut ive summary o f  the  s t r a t e g i c  p lan.  

There are a  number o f  handwr i t ten e d i t s  t o  t h i s  d r a f t .  D id 

you persona l ly  make these e d i t s ?  

A  Th is  i s  my handwr i t ing .  You r e f e r  t o  them as 

e d i t s ,  though, and these are recommendations. That was no t  



i n  a f i n a l  - -  

Q Suggested. 

A Suggested. 

M r .  Tuohev. And t h a t  would be t r u e  f o r  a l l  o f  the  

documents you have shown him today w i t h  regard t o  the 

s t r a t e g i c  p lan .  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q I s  t h a t  your view i n  each case? 

A T h a t ' s  t r u e .  They were recommendations, comments. 

A l o t  o f  them were posed as quest ions,  i n  f a c t .  

M r .  Baran. We are done w i t h  t h a t  document. 

I w i l l  ask the  repo r te r  t o  mark t h i s  e x h i b i t .  

[ E x h i b i t  No. 21 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q E x h i b i t  2 1  i s  a J u l y  3rd,  2003, e -mai l  at tached t o  

a number o f  pages o f  a J u l y  24th,  '03,  d r a f t  o f  the Cl imate 

Change Science Program r e v i s i o n  document. 

M r .  Tuohev. Do you know what t h i s  i s ?  Look a t  the 

t h i r d  page. 

The Witness. Yes. I guess, t h i s  i s  t h i s  - -  

M r .  Baran. I haven ' t  asked a ques t ion  y e t .  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q I n  the  upper r igh t -hand corner o f  the e-mai l ,  there  

i s  a note which reads, "Discussed w i t h  Jim Mahoney 7/9/03. 



He w i l l  cons ider  these suggested f i n a l  e d i t s .  P C . "  

Did  you w r i t e  t h i s  note? 

A Yes. I t  i s  my w r i t i n g .  

Q Descr ibe t h e  conversa t ion  w i t h  D r .  Mahoney t o  which 

t h i s  no te  r e f e r s .  

A I r e a l l y  d o n ' t  have any s p e c i f i c  r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  

t h e  conversa t ion .  

Q There a re  a  number o f  handwr i t t en  e d i t s  t o  t h i s  

d r a f t .  D i d  you p e r s o n a l l y  make these e d i t s ?  

M r .  Tuohey. Take your t ime .  Go through t he  d r a f t .  I t  

i s  a  l e n g t h y  document. 

The Witness.  They appear t o  be my e d i t s ,  except on t h i s  

one page where I r e a l l y  c a n ' t  see what t h e  comment i s .  I t  

j u s t  doesn ' t  copy here.  

M r .  Tuohey. J e f f ,  t h a t  page t h e r e  i s  no number, b u t  i t  

i s  t h e  page t h a t  - -  

The Witness. J u s t  c a n ' t  see what t h e  comment i s .  

Ms. Bennet t .  - -  s t a r t s  w i t h  "G loba l  carbon cyc le . "  

M r .  Tuohey. "G loba l  carbon c y c l e "  i s  i n  the  upper 

l e f t - h a n d  co rne r .  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q I b e l i e v e  t h e  comment reads, "Seques t ra t ion  

o p p o r t u n i t i e s  o r  a l t e r n a t i v e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  o p t i o n s . "  

Sure, maybe mine i s  a  l i t t l e  b i t  b e t t e r .  

A Yes. That  would be c o r r e c t .  



Q We are through w i t h  t h a t  document. 

E x h i b i t  22. 

[ E x h i b i t  No. 22 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q E x h i b i t  22 i s  a fax cover sheet at tached t o  a 

number o f  pages from the June 20, 2003, d r a f t  o f  the Cl imate 

Change Science Program's v i s i o n  document. You prepared t h i s  

fax ,  co r rec t?  

A Yes. 

Q There are a number o f  handwr i t ten e d i t s  and 

comments t o  t h i s  d r a f t .  And can you t e l l  us whether these 

e d i t s  and comments are yours? 

M r .  Tuohey. While he i s  l ook ing  a t  t h a t ,  I assume t h a t  

t h i s  was a document produced by the CEQ? 

M r .  Baran. Tha t ' s  co r rec t .  

M r .  Tuohev. Okay. 

The Witness. This  appears t o  be my handwr i t ing.  These 

would r e f l e c t  comments. But there  i s  - -  the re  are a number 

o f  t h ings  going on. This  i s  comments, b u t  a l so  you have . 

comments, "Leave," "Good," and so they seem t o  r e f l e c t  a 

r e c o n c i l i a t i o n  o r  d iscuss ion o f  comments as w e l l  as i n i t i a l  

comments. 

M r .  Tuohey. And i s  t h a t  your language, your w r i t i n g ?  

The Witness. I t  looks l i k e  my w r i t i n g ,  s o r t  o f .  



BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Jus t  t o  c l a r i f y ,  the base comments are the ones 

t h a t  are yours; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A  Wel l ,  d i s t i n g u i s h i n g  the base from the 

r e c o n c i l i a t i o n  comments - -  

M r .  Tuohey. He f i r s t  asked about the  base comments. 

The base comments are yours? 

The Witness. You c a n ' t  t e l l  what are the base versus 

the r e c o n c i l i a t i o n  comments, so i t  i s  j u s t  a  l i t t l e  b i t  

confusing. L i k e  t h e r e ' s  "good" i n  t h i s  margin. I d o n ' t  know 

whether i t  i s  good because I was s a t i s f i e d  w i t h  the way they 

were going t o  handle i t ,  o r  I thought i t  was a  good comment. 

I j u s t  d o n ' t  know. 

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Jus t  t o  be c l e a r ,  was i t  a l l  your handwr i t ing,  o r  

d i d  i t  look  l i k e  one s e t  o f  comments was done by you, and 

another se t  o f  comments, the r e c o n c i l i a t i o n ,  was done by 

someone e lse? 

M r .  Tuohey. Some o f  i t  i s  hard t o  see, hard t o  read. 

The Witness. I t  i s  my judgment t h a t  they are both 

probably my handwr i t ing,  but  I d o n ' t  - -  the re  are words I 

look  a t  t h a t  d o n ' t  necessar i l y  l ook  l i k e  my handwr i t ing.  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q F a i r  enough. Thank you. 

M r .  Baran. I ask the repo r te r  t o  mark t h i s  e x h i b i t .  



[ E x h i b i t  No. 23 

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q E x h i b i t  23 i s  the approval form f o r  the s t r a t e g i c  

p lan  f o r  the  Cl imate Change Science Program. Your s ignature 

appears on the  form, and there i s  a checkmark next t o ,  " I  

approve o f  the  at tached r e p o r t . "  You d i d  s ign  t h i s  form, 

c o r r e c t ?  

A I d i d .  

Q I f  you refused t o  c lea r  the s t r a t e g i c  p lan,  would 

i t  have been issued? 

A I t  i s  - -  I expect i t  would have. I d o n ' t  t h i n k  - -  

you know, t h i s  was unusual t o  have a concurrence form. I 

t h i n k  D r .  Mahoney wanted an assurance t h a t  every agency t h a t  

had worked on t h i s  p r o j e c t  f o r  a year ,  through m u l t i p l e  

d r a f t s ,  had an a f f i r m a t i v e  s ignature  w i t h  h i s  o f f i c e  t h a t  

they endorsed the p lan .  

And I c a n ' t  r e a l l y  answer your quest ion,  i f  I had sa id  

no, would i t  have been - -  not  have gone. I t h i n k  he was 

l o o k i n g  f o r  t h i s ,  f o r  assurance, and everyone gave him the 

assurance, and everyone had a l o t  o f  confidence i n  him. And 

I gave him the  assurance, and I concurred. I c a n ' t  r e a l l y  

speak t o  what the consequence would have been i f  I had no t .  

I doubt though t h a t  i t  would have stopped the  p u b l i c a t i o n  o f  

the r e p o r t ,  because D r .  Mahoney had c o n t r o l  over f i n a l  e d i t s  



and f i n a l  approval o f  the r e p o r t .  

Q So your sense i s  t h a t  t h i s  s t r a t e g i c  p lan  could 

have been issued w i thout  White House approval? 

M r .  Tuohey. You're equat ing h i s  s ignature  w i t h  White 

House approval? 

M r .  Baran. Yes. 

The Witness. Approval connotes something t h a t  looks 

l i k e  t h i s ,  some hard-edged, t a n g i b l e  "we approve." 

Never r e a l l y  got t o  t h a t  on these repo r t s .  I n  t h i s  case 

I t h i n k  D r .  Mahoney was look ing  f o r  assurance t h a t  everybody 

was on board. I t  was an impor tant  r e p o r t  t o  the 

admin i s t ra t i on .  And I t h i n k  he was conf ident  t h a t  he would 

get a 100 percent response r a t e  t h a t  everyone agreed t o  the 

repo r t .  Even though everyone's comments weren ' t  accepted, 

15 and he re jec ted  a l o t  o f  comments, he wanted t o  know t h a t  

16 everyone concurred i n  the repo r t  as a team e f f o r t  across the 

17 admin i s t ra t i on .  He had made the  f i n a l  judgments, bu t  he 

18 wanted everyone's concurrence. 

19 But genera l l y  w i t h  these documents, there  wasn't a hard 

20 approval. The comment process was r e s p e c t f u l  and i t e r a t i v e ,  

2 1 o f t e n  i n  the form of quest ions,  and so we d i d n ' t  get  t o  

22 l e g a l i s t i c  hard approvals. 

23 BY MR. BARAN: 

24 Q Let  me ask t h i s :  Do you be l i eve  t h a t  the Cl imate 

25 Change Science Program thought they could re lease the 



s t r a t e g i c  p l a n  w i thout  your s ignature  on t h a t  form? 

A I t h i n k  they t h i n k  - -  I t h i n k  they could have 

released i t  w i thout  my s ignature .  I t h i n k  they might have 

taken h a l f  a  day t o  appeal t o  the Chairman and say, your guy 

has a  problem w i t h  t h i s ,  I would l i k e  t o  discuss i t  w i t h  you, 

but  everyone e l s e  supports i t .  But again,  i t  i s  a  very 

hypo the t i ca l  quest ion.  I concurred i n  the  r e p o r t .  

M r .  Tuohey. That wasn't  the  quest ion.  

The Witness. I am s o r r y .  I am s o r r y .  I j u s t  - -  I 

d o n ' t  know the  answer t o  your quest ion.  

I d o n ' t  t h i n k  - -  I t h i n k  t h a t  the r e p o r t  would have been 

publ ished. I t  was the cu lmina t ion  o f  a  very p u b l i c ,  

year- long e f f o r t .  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q Jus t  no t  t o  belabor i t ,  bu t  j u s t  t o  make sure you 

understood my quest ion,  do you t h i n k  t h a t  the CCSP f o l k s  had 

the same understanding t h a t  you d i d ?  

A CCSP f o l k s  were not  d i s t i n g u i s h a b l e  from 

D r .  Mahoney. D r .  Mahoney ran the CCSP, and he had the most 

important understanding. And I t h i n k  t h a t  he f e l t  t h a t  he 

had a u t h o r i t y  t o  pub l i sh  the repo r t .  

Q Okay. We are done w i t h  t h a t  e x h i b i t .  

Mr. Baran. I ask the repo r te r  t o  mark t h i s  e x h i b i t .  

E x h i b i t  i s  24 marked. 

[ E x h i b i t  No. 24 



was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . ]  

BY MR. BARAN: 

Q E x h i b i t  24 i s  a copy, a sheet  o f  paper t h a t  was 

a t tached  t o  your  e d i t s  t o  EPA's d r a f t  r e p o r t  on t he  

environment. 

Do you recognize the  document; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A Which month o f  comments? There were - -  i t  was a 

cover sheet t o  which s e t  of  comments? There were a number o f  

se t s  o f  comments. 

Q Le t  me rephrase t he  ques t ion .  Do you recognize 

t h i s  e x h i b i t  t o  be a copy o f  a sheet o f  paper a t tached  t o  a 

s e t  o f  comments t o  t h e  d r a f t  r e p o r t  on t he  environment? 

A I recognize t h a t  as my handwr i t i ng .  And I 

recognize t h e  response back i s  f rom A lan  Hecht. 

Q And A lan  Hecht was t h e  - -  

A EPA. 

Q D e t a i l e e  - -  

A D e t a i l e e  a t  CEQ who was c o o r d i n a t i n g  our feedback 

on t h i s  r e p o r t .  

Q The e x h i b i t  reads, t h a t  t o p  comment, "Alan,  these 

changes must be made. Thanks. P h i l . "  

I s  t h a t  your comment? 

A That  was my comment. 

Q And as t h e  Ch ie f  o f  S t a f f  o f  t h e  Whi te House CEQ, 

you were g i v e n  an o rder  here,  we ren ' t  you? 



A No. I mean, the language i s  mandatory, bu t  the 

comment process w i t h i n  the execut ive branch i s  very c o l l e g i a l  

and r e s p e c t f u l .  And I wouldn ' t  read i t  as an order .  I t h i n k  

my r e c o l l e c t i o n  i s  t h a t  I wrote t h i s  comment a f t e r  we had 

received back from EPA a  few a d d i t i o n a l  d r a f t s  t h a t  d i d  no t  

r e f l e c t  t h a t  they had considered comments t h a t  had been 

provided by our Agency. Yet we were r e c e i v i n g  a t  the same 

t ime a message from EPA, through Alan Hecht, t h a t  Governor 

Whitman wanted t o  pub l i sh  the repo r t  soon, t h a t  she wants t o  

pub l i sh ,  you know, soon; I c a n ' t  remember the exact t ime, bu t  

w i t h i n  a  c e r t a i n  t ime frame. And my r e c o l l e c t i o n  i s  t h a t  I 

wrote t h i s  s o r t  o f  i n  response t o  t h a t  pressure. I f  they 

want t o  pub l i sh ,  they need t o  respond, t o  engage i n  our 

comments. 

And so i t  was my way o f  g e t t i n g  Alan Hecht something t o  

go back t o  the Agency w i t h  and say, you have got t o  engage 

t h e i r  comments. You c a n ' t  j u s t  cont inue t o  d is regard  them. 

But i t  was - -  i t  wasn't - -  i t  j u s t  was no t  an order .  I t  was 

not  an order ,  which was your quest ion.  

Q Do you expect t h a t  Alan Hecht took t h i s  comment t o  

EPA and t o l d  them t h a t  the  changes you made had t o  be made? 

M r .  Tuohey. I f  you know. I f  you know. 

The Witness. I d o n ' t  know. I r e a l l y  d o n ' t  know how he 

used i t .  

BY MR. BARAN: 



Q Did  you have a  d iscuss ion w i t h  Alan Hecht about 

t h i s  note so t h a t  you knew he had the same understanding of 

the note t h a t  you d i d ?  

A I d o n ' t  r e c a l l .  Alan and I would t a l k  

occas iona l l y ,  and he would - -  he was very con f iden t  as a  

capable i n t e r f a c e  i n  l ead ing  t h i s  p r o j e c t  and i n  g e t t i n g  our 

comments back t o  the EPA. And so I j u s t  d o n ' t  have a  

s p e c i f i c  r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  a  conversat ion,  bu t  we would t a l k .  

He would say, g e t t i n g  pushback, o r ,  I have got  i t  under 

c o n t r o l .  

Q We are done w i t h  t h a t  e x h i b i t .  

The committee has learned t h a t  execut ive branch agencies 

would sometimes contact  CEQ regard ing s p e c i f i c  press requests 

t o  i n t e r v i e w  s p e c i f i c  s c i e n t i s t s .  Please e x p l a i n  how t h i s  

p r a c t i c e  was es tab l i shed.  

A I d o n ' t  know enough about i t  r e a l l y .  

Q Were you invo lved i n  t h i s  process o f  s i g n i n g  o f f  on 

s p e c i f i c  requests by media t o  i n t e r v i e w  government 

s c i e n t i s t s ?  

A I was - -  may have been invo lved.  What happened was 

communications people who handle press c a l l s  a l l  t he  t ime 

know each o the r .  They meet. They go t o  lunch.  And i f  a  

c a l l  came i n  t o  an agency, and they weren ' t  q u i t e  sure what 

t o  do about i t ,  sometimes they would ask t h e i r  own 

management, how do we handle t h i s ?  O r  a  c a l l  would come i n  



1 t o  b o t h  t h e  White House and an agency, and we would say, who 

2 i s  go ing  t o  r e t u r n  t he  c a l l ?  And so communications people 

3 would f i g u r e  ou t  how t o  respond t o  media requests .  

4 Sometimes they came bo th  t o  t h e  White House and the 

5 agency, and so they coord ina ted .  And on occasion,  a l though I 

6 d o n ' t  have any s p e c i f i c  r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  a conversa t ion ,  our 

7 communications o f f i c e  person cou ld  come i n t o  my o f f i c e  and 

8 say, I got  a c a l l  f rom t h e  NOAA guy, I g o t  a c a l l  f rom t h i s  

9 guy, I handled i t  t h i s  way. They may have t a l k e d  t o  me about 

10 i t .  I t  was - -  communications people had t h e i r  own network, 

11 and they handled media and - -  

12 Q Could CEQ approve o r  d isapprove press requests? 

13 A I t h i n k  t h a t  i s  t o o  hard  a word, approve o r  

14 d isapprove.  Our communications people would render a view as 

15 t o  whether someone should g i v e  an i n t e r v i e w  o r  no t  o r  who i t  

16 should be. I n  t he  White House, you know, t h a t  i s  what they 

17 d i d ,  communicating w i t h  v a r i o u s  communications o f f i c e s .  But ,  

18 aga in ,  i t  was i t e r a t i v e .  I t  wasn ' t  i n  our na tu re  t o  be 

19 g i v i n g  sharp o rders  r e a l l y .  I t  was, who i s  go ing  t o  handle 

20 t he  c a l l ?  How are we do ing  t o  handle t h i s ?  And 

21 communications people d i d  t h a t  among themselves gene ra l l y .  

22 I f  they wanted t o  i n t e r v i e w  t h e  Chairman, then they would 

23 t a l k  t o  t he  Chairman about i t .  

24 Q The committee has l ea rned  t h a t  i n  2005 the  Na t i ona l  

25 Oceanic - -  NOAA con tac ted  Miche le  S t .  M a r t i n  a t  CEQ about a 



1 pending media request  t o  i n t e r v i e w  a NOAA s c i e n t i s t .  Can you 

2 e x p l a i n  how Ms. S t .  M a r t i n  would have assessed and responded 

3 t o  t h i s  request?  

4 A I j u s t  d o n ' t  know enough about t h a t  s p e c i f i c  

5 request .  She, l i k e  me, go t  150 e -ma i l s  a day, 25  c a l l s .  I 

6 d o n ' t  know how she would have handled t h a t  request .  

7 Q Ms. S t .  M a r t i n  t o l d  NOAA t o  moni tor  the  press c a l l s  

8 and r e p o r t  back t o  CEQ. Were you aware o f  t h i s  p r a c t i c e ?  

9 A No, n o t  t h a t  I r e c a l l .  

10 Q So you never gave an i n s t r u c t i o n  t o  Ms. S t .  M a r t i n  

11 o r  anyone e l s e  t o  have agencies r e p o r t  back on press c a l l s ,  

12 press i n t e r v i e w s  w i t h  government s c i e n t i s t s ?  

13 A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l .  
I 

14 Q On August 2 8 ,  2003, EPA denied a p e t i t i o n  t o  

15 r egu la te  greenhouse gas emissions f rom motor veh i c l es .  Are 

16 you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  t h i s  d e c i s i o n ?  

17 A I am. 

18 Q D id  you moni tor  t h i s  Agency a c t i o n  w h i l e  se rv ing  as 

19 the  CEQ Ch ie f  o f  S t a f f ?  

20 A No. I spoke t o  our  genera l  counsel  when t h i s  was 

2 1 emerging f o r  decis ionmaking,  a very  e a r l y  p o i n t ,  and s a i d  

22 t h a t  I was uncomfortable - -  because I had taken such a 

23 p o s i t i o n  i n  opposing t he  p e t i t i o n  i n  my p r i o r  job,  I was 

24 uncomfortable hav ing  any th ing  t o  do w i t h  EPA's 

25 decis ionmaking.  And she s a i d  t o  me, as I r e c a l l ,  w e l l ,  t he re  



i s  no formal bar t o  your p a r t i c i p a t i o n ,  bu t  you can 

v o l u n t a r i l y  recuse yourse l f  from a l l  decisionmaking on the  

p e t i t i o n .  And I d i d .  

Q So you were concerned t h a t  i t  would g ive  the 

appearance o f  improp r ie t y  o r  c o n f l i c t  o f  i n t e r e s t  i f  you were 

i nvolved? 

A  Yes. I t  made me f e e l  uncomfortable t o  be invo lved.  

And I thought i t  improper because I had taken such a  p u b l i c  

advocacy p o s i t i o n  against  the p e t i t i o n  before I jo ined  

government. 

Q Were there  any o ther  mat ters  wh i l e  you were a t  CEQ 

on which you recused y o u r s e l f ?  

A Yes. 

Q Can you descr ibe those f o r  us? 

A To the best  o f  my a b i l i t y ,  a f t e r  the e l e c t i o n  i n  

2004, I had p r e t t y  w e l l  reached a  conclus ion t h a t  I was ready 

t o  l ook  f o r  work ou ts ide  o f  government, and I interv iewed 

w i t h  some law and lobby ing  f i r m s ,  and the re  are formal  

recusals i n  place w i t h  our general counsel f o r  any mat ters  

t h a t  - -  i n  which they were imp l i ca ted .  

But through the  sp r ing  o f  '05,  as i t  became inc reas ing l y  

c l e a r  t o  me t h a t  I was going t o  be l eav ing ,  and I r e a l l y  d i d  

no t  know where I was going t o  go, I was s o r t  o f  s t r u g g l i n g  

w i t h  i t  every n i g h t .  And I had another oppor tun i t y  i n s i d e  

the admin i s t ra t i on  t h a t  I was a l so  cons ider ing .  I backed o f f  



q u i t e  a  b i t  on pol icymaking. The Asia P a c i f i c  Par tnersh ip,  

f o r  example, was being developed i n  the sp r ing  o f  2005, and I 

made i t  c l e a r  t o  my col league, Ken Peal, and t o  others t h a t  I 

f e l t  uncomfortable; the knowledge t h a t  I would be l eav ing  the 

admin i s t ra t i on  soon, I d i d n ' t  want t o  be deeply invo lved i n  

the  development o f  t h a t  i n i t i a t i v e .  And I do r e c a l l  sending 

e-mai ls  t o  col leagues and EOP n o t i f y i n g  them t h a t  I had 

formal  recusals i n  p lace,  so no t  t o  b r i n g  t o  my a t t e n t i o n  

p r i o r i  t y  mat ters  on energy and envi ronmental i ssues . 

I was con t inu ing  t o  manage the Agency budget, h i r i n g ,  

f i r i n g ,  and making sure t h a t  a l l  documents coming i n  were 

being responded t o ,  bu t  I was backing away from an a c t i v e  

p o l i c y  r o l e .  And I was very a f f i r m a t i v e  about i t  and 

consul ted very c l o s e l y  w i t h  our general counsel about those 

mat ters .  

Q Was there a  formal recusal  form f o r  the EPA 

p e t i t i o n  t o  regu la te  greenhouse gases? 

A  There i s  no formal form, bu t  my p r a c t i c e  was - -  i t  

was I i n f o r m a l l y  recused mysel f ,  and I d i d  no t  work on the 

decisionmaking. There were meetings t h a t  were c a l l e d .  And I 

d i d  no t  p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  the decisionmaking on t h a t .  

Q But i n  a l l  o ther  cases the re  were formal  recusals? 

A Wel l ,  when i t  came t o  p o t e n t i a l  f u t u r e  employment, 

I would f i l e  a  formal  recusal .  But i n  t h i s  case, i t  was a 

p r a c t i c e  t h a t  I had discussed w i t h  our general  counsel, and 



she understood t h a t  I was no t  going t o  be invo lved,  and my 

col leagues understood t h a t  I was not  going t o  be invo lved.  

Q Do you know how many formal recusals  were f i l e d  by 

you? 

A I be l ieve  I f i l e d  fou r  formal  recusals du r ing  my 

t ime a t  the  White House. Two were w i t h  respect t o  law f i r m s .  

One was w i t h  respect t o  another company, and one was w i t h  

respect t o  ExxonMobil. 

M r .  Baran. Okay. My ques t ion ing  t ime i s  up. 

Ms. Bennett.  The M i n o r i t y  would l i k e  t o  take the  l a s t  

1 3  minutes o f  quest ions.  

EXAMINATION 

BY MS.  BENNETT: 

Q Jus t  t o  repeat,  I am Brooke Bennett,  M i n o r i t y  

counsel. I had a j u s t  a  couple o f  quest ions f o r  you. 

Going back t o  E x h i b i t  2 3 ,  and, i f  I r e c a l l  c o r r e c t l y ,  I 

be l ieve  i t  was - -  the M a j o r i t y  counsel 's quest ion was 

something along the l i n e s  o f  i f  you had refused t o  c l e a r  the 

r e p o r t ,  would the repo r t  not  have been issued? Could you 

j u s t  read through the opt ions t h a t  are presented on t h i s  form 

and l e t  me know whether o r  no t  there i s  one t h a t  s p e c i f i c a l l y  

asks f o r  an op t ion ,  provides you an o p t i o n  t o  re fuse the 

r e p o r t ?  

A That i s  a  very good quest ion.  There i s  no t  an 

o p t i o n  f o r  re fus ing  concurrence. 



Q I j u s t  wanted t o  c l a r i f y  t h a t .  

Also going back t o  E x h i b i t  22 ,  and I j u s t  want t o  be 

double c l e a r  on t h i s  because, l o o k i n g  a t  the handwr i t ing,  if 

you could j u s t  have another qu ick  l ook  a t  some o f  the 

documents o r  some o f  the comments on there  and l e t  me g ive  

you a copy - -  

M r .  Tuohev. To be s p e c i f i c ,  do you inc lude  the  f r o n t  

page? 

Ms. Bennett.  I w i l l .  

BY M S .  BENNETT: 

Q The copy t h a t  was prov ided t o  you by M a j o r i t y  

counsel i s  a  b i t  l i g h t .  

Ms. Bennett.  So w i t h  your agreement would you mind i f  I 

g ive  him the same one t h a t  we had prepared? But i t  i s  

s l i g h t l y  darker ,  so you can see the  comments s l i g h t l y  b e t t e r .  

M r .  Tuohey. What page? 

Ms. Bennett.  If you go, f o r  example, t o  page 14. 

M r .  Tuohey. Page 14. 

BY MS.  BENNETT: 

Q And look  a t  the word "good" on page 14. I f  you 

look  on page 1 5  - -  
M r .  Tuohey. "Good" on 14. 

BY MS. BENNETT: 

Q Do you mind j u s t  double-checking t h a t  and make sure 

i t  i s  o r  i s  no t  your handwr i t ing? And you can probably 



compare i t  t o  15. 

M r .  Tuohey. "Good" 1 5 .  

The Witness. They both l ook  l i k e  my handwr i t ing.  

BY MS.  BENNETT: 

Q They bo th  look  l i k e  your handwr i t ing? 

A I f  I was w r i t i n g  f a s t .  

Q And a t  the  bottom o f  page 18, a l so  t h a t  "good"? 

A Yes. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  I j u s t  wanted t o  double-check. 

M r .  Baran. For the  record,  l e t ' s  sw i tch  these documents 

so we have the  b e t t e r  copy f o r  the record.  

M r .  Tuohey. F ine.  

M r .  Baran. We w i l l  mark t h i s  2 2 .  

M r .  Tuohey. Makes sense. 

BY MS.  BENNETT: 

Q I f  you go back t o  E x h i b i t  20, I was j u s t  cur ious  i f  

maybe you cou ld  e x p l a i n  something t o  me. 

M r .  Tuohey. E x h i b i t  20. 

BY M S .  BENNETT: 

Q On t o p  o f  E x h i b i t  20 - -  

M r .  Tuohey. This  i s  the science p lan .  

BY MS. BENNETT: 

Q CCSP s t r a t e g i c  p lan .  And the  f i r s t  page i s  l i s t e d  

the execut ive summary, and i t  i s  f i n a l  t e c h n i c a l  review, 

dated 5 June, 2003. I was cur ious as t o  why "s t ra teg i c1 '  i s  



scratched out  and i t  says "science."  Do you r e c a l l ?  

A I d o n ' t  r e c a l l .  

Q Also going back t o  E x h i b i t  17 ,  can you t e l l  me 

whose handwr i t ing i s  on the top  o f  E x h i b i t  17? Where i t  

says - -  E x h i b i t  17 i s  the CEQ review and comment o f  science 

p lan  f o r  the CCSP, and i t  i s  a  l i s t  o f  e d i t s ,  those e d i t s  

down on the  panel. And a t  the top i t  says, "6/16/03. BH 

p lus  PC." Do you know - -  

A That looks l i k e  Bryan Hannegan's handwr i t ing  t o  me. 

Q That i s  not  your handwr i t ing,  you d o n ' t  be l ieve? 

A No. 

Q Something you mentioned a  moment ago t a l k i n g  about 

the p o i n t  a t  which you s t a r t e d  backing away from p o l i c y  

dec is ions,  making p o l i c y  dec3sions. What was the t ime frame 

again t h a t  you gave on t h a t ,  t o  the best  o f  your 

r e c o l l e c t i o n ?  

A Wel l ,  i t  was i n  the sp r ing  2005. I had in te rv iewed 

w i t h  one law f i r m ,  I t h i n k  i t  was i n  December 2004 a f t e r  the 

e l e c t i o n .  And so I was concerned about being invo lved i n  

p o l  i cymaki ng . 

You know the formal recusal  was on ly  w i t h  respect t o  

matters concerning t h a t  law f i r m  t h a t  were pending t h a t  would 

happen t o  come before me. So the formal  recusal  was over any 

m a t e r i a l  mat ter  i n  which t h a t  law f i r m  o r  a  c l i e n t  o f  t h a t  

f i r m  was invo lved.  But s t i l l ,  I had a  general  and increas ing  



unease about con t inu ing  t o  be deeply i nvo l ved  i n  p o l i c y  when 

I knew t h a t  I was - -  t h a t  I was p lann ing  t o  leave.  I d i d n ' t  

d o n ' t  know what the  heck I was going t o  do, bu t  I was 

p lanning t o  take a  next s tep  w i t h  my career .  

Q Okay. That i s  f i n e .  One l a s t  quest ion f o r  you 

a c t u a l l y ,  and going back t o  the  o rgan iza t i ona l  c h a r t  t h a t  we 

had d i s t r i b u t e d  toward the  very beginning, and I am going t o  

have t o  the d i g  t o  f i n d  i t  here. I t  i s  E x h i b i t  7 ,  which i s  

an o rgan iza t i ona l  cha r t  t h a t  discusses the c l ima te  change 

a c t i v i t y .  

With regard t o  the Cl imate Change Science Program, the 

person who was responsib le  f o r  the f i n a l  product ,  a f t e r  a  

fashion,  i n  terms o f  p u t t i n g  i t  together  and t a k i n g  i n  the 

Agency comments, e t  cetera,  t h a t  was who? 

A That was D r .  Mahoney, the Ass i s tan t  Secretary o f  

Science f o r  Oceans and Atmosphere. 

Q Who had the same r o l e  f o r  Our Changing Planet? 

A Doctor Mahoney again, because the  Our Changing 

Planet was a  product o f  the Cl imate Change Science Program. 

So any program - -  any product o f  the  program, D r .  Mahoney i s  

the d i r e c t o r  o f  the  program, and he had de f ined i t .  

Q What about the Cl imate Ac t i on  Report? 

A Cl imate Ac t ion  Report, which was the repo r t  f i l e d  

w i t h  the Uni ted Nat ions i n  June 2002, was f i l e d  by the State 

Department, i f  you look  a t  the i n s i d e  cover o f  t h a t  r e p o r t ,  



and t h a t  makes sense because i t  i s  a  t r e a t y  o b l i g a t i o n  t o  

f i l e  the r e p o r t ,  and the State Department f i l e d  t h a t  repor t .  

Q And the  D r a f t  Report on the Environment? 

A EPA had the f i n a l  dec i s ion  because i t  was t h e i r  

product.  

Q Okay. And - -  but  CEQ d i d n ' t  have any f i n a l  say on 

any o f  these documents? 

A No. We had a  r o l e  i n  o rd inary  interagency review 

comments, and we p a r t i c i p a t e d  along w i t h  a l l  the other  

agencies, White House o f f i c e s .  

Q So when, f o r  example - -  and I d o n ' t  have i t  i n  

f r o n t  o f  me, I apologize - -  bu t  when there  would be an e-mai l  

o r  a  d r a f t  d i s t r i b u t e d  by D r .  Mahoney t o  the  CCSP, i t  was an 

e n t i r e  group o f  d i f f e r e n t  agencies, 30 o r  - -  I t h i n k  

p rev ious l y  you s a i d  there  was 30 o r  so d i f f e r e n t  agencies who 

were i nvo l ved  i n  - -  

A P o t e n t i a l l y .  

Q - -  some o f  t h i s  draf tmaking? And so the comments 

would be coming from a l l  the other  agencies back i n t o  

D r .  Mahoney? 

A Yes. I n i t i a l l y  when d r a f t s  were i n i t i a t e d ,  they 

get  a  l o t  o f  s t u f f  from a l l  the agencies, and then the CCSPO 

o f f i c e  would pu t  i t  together .  But when i t  went through OMB 

review again, i t  would be sent out  t o  a l l  those same agencies 

again f o r  f i n a l ,  you know, review and comment. 



1 Q Okay. And then  what - -  j u s t  o u t  o f  c u r i o s i t y ,  what 

2 r o l e  d i d  t h e  O f f i c e  o f  Science and Technology P o l i c y  p l a y ?  

Were they p a r t  o f  t h i s  in te ragency?  

A They p layed a  ve ry ,  ve ry  prominent  r o l e .  Ka th ie  

Olson was a  Senate-conf i rmed D i r e c t o r  f o r  sc ience - -  t he  

O f f i c e  o f  Science and Technology P o l i c y .  She was t h e  

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  t o  t he  b lue  box, i f  you w i l l .  But she was a  

va lued co l league ,  Ph.D. s c i e n t i s t ,  and she had a  ve ry  a c t i v e  

r o l e .  A l l  o f  OSTP d i d ,  D r .  Marburger and o t h e r  OSTP 

personnel .  

Q And then t h e  o the r  - -  I n o t i c e  go ing  back t o  

E x h i b i t  23 ,  which i s  t h e  comments needed, which i s  t h e  

N a t i o n a l  Science and Technology concur ren t  sheet ,  cou ld  you 

t e l l  us t h e  - -  

A Yes. 

Q The N a t i o n a l  Science and Technology Counc i l  as 

w e l l ?  

M r .  Tuohey. What i s  your ques t ion?  

BY MS.  BENNETT: 

Q Why would t h i s  r o l e  - -  why would t h i s  concur ren t  

sheet  be sen t  t o  t h e  N a t i o n a l  Science and Technology Counc i l?  

Do you know? Do you know what t h e i r  r o l e  was? 

A I used t o  know a l l  t h i s  s t u f f ,  and I don' t  know, T---- 

d o n ' t  know e x a c t l y .  I t  i s  a h i g h - l e v e l  committee. I t  had 

e x i s t e d  i n  t h e  p r i o r  a d m i n i s t r a t i o n  on t h i s  f o r m a l l y  



c o n s t i t u t e d  - -  and why i t  i s  capt ioned NSTC, I j u s t  c a n ' t  

remember e x a c t l y  why they were d i f f e r e n t  from o ther  groups. 

Q But t h i s  was another - -  

A  H i g h - l e v e l  group. 

Q Nonetheless, the  bottom l i n e  i s  t h a t  the f i n a l  

product res ted  w i t h  D r .  Mahoney i n  terms o f  c o l l e c t i n g  a l l  

the f i n a l i z e d  - -  

A  Yes. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  

Ms. Bennett.  I d o n ' t  have any more quest ions.  

M r .  Dotson. Wel l ,  thank you so much f o r  your 

f l e x i b i l i t y  - -  

M r .  Tuohey. Thank you. 

M r .  Dotson. - -  and p a r t i c i p a t i n g  i n  these deposi t ions.  

And t h i s  concludes the  depos i t ion .  

[Whereupon, a t  6:10 p.m., the i n t e r v i e w  was concluded.] 



C e r t i f i c a t e  o f  Deponen t / I n te rv iewee  

I have read  t h e  f o r e g o i n g  pages, wh ich  c o n t a i n  t h e  

c o r r e c t  t r a n s c r i p t  o f  t h e  answers made by me t o  t h e  q u e s t i o n s  

t h e r e i n  reco rded .  

Wi tness  ~ a m e /  
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"office" should read "offices" 

strike "a" 

should read "sent up to the Congress from 
the CEQ" 

should read "Framework Convention on Climate Change" 

after "searched." delete "it" and insert "my files" 

delete "in Mr. Piltz' view" 

;Vk /=.- 
Mark H. Tuohey I11 




